RN

Collective Bargaining Agreement

Between





MIAMI - DADE COUNTY, FIORIDA THE PUBLIC HEALTH TRUST and

LOCAL 1991 SEIU

THE SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION

October 1, 2017 - September 30, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I - I		5
ARTICLE II -		5
	RECOGNITION	5
Section 1.	Recognition	5
Section 2.	Probationary and Per Diem Employees	5
	- UNION-MANAGEMENT COOPERATION	6
Section 1.	Union-Management Cooperation	6
Section 2.	Employee-Management Conference Committee	6
Section 3.	Membership	6
Section 4.	Dues Deduction	7
Section 5.	Non-Discrimination	7
Section 6.	Bulletin Boards	7
Section 7.	Copies of Documents	7
Section 8.	New Employee Orientation	8
	NOTIFICATION, CONSULTATIONS AND NEGOTIATIONS	8
Section 1.	Prevailing Benefits Clause	8
Section 2.	Notification, Consultations and Negotiations	8
	- UNION REPRESENTATION	8
Section 1.	Union Representatives	8
Section 2.	Grievance Representation	8
Section 3.	Released Time	8
Section 4.	Adjustment of Grievance	9
	- GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	9
Section 1.	Resolution of Grievances	9
Section 2.	Definition	9
Section 3.		10
Section 4.	Class Grievances	10
Section 5.	Time Limits	10
Section 6.	Employee Obligation	10
Section 7.	Employer Responses	10
Section 8.	Exclusions	10
	I - ARBITRATION	11
	- CORRECTIVE ACTION	11 11
Section 1.	Just Cause	11
Section 2.	Procedure Written Benrimends and Becards of Counceling	
Section 3.	Written Reprimands and Records of Counseling	12
Section 4. Section 5.	Hearing Pursuant to the Hearing Examiner System Grievance Procedure	13 13
Section 6.	Just Culture	14
Section 7.	Absenteeism/Tardiness	14
	HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME	15
Section 1.	Work Hours	15
Section 2.	Overtime	16
Section 3.	Work Week	16
Section 4.	Time Schedules	16
Section 5.	Hours of Work and Overtime	16
Section 6.	Alternative Schedules	17
Section 7.	Rotating Shifts	17
Section 8.	Consecutive Shifts	17
Section 9.	Flexible Hours for Higher Degree Education	18
Section 10.	Public Holidays	18
ARTICLE XI		18
Section 1.	Pay Day	18
Section 2.	Paycheck Errors	18
Section 3.	Salary Increases	18
Section 4.	Step Increases	19
Section 5.	Shift Differential and Weekend Differential	20
Section 6.	Main Campus In-Patient Differential	21
Section 7	On-Call Pay	21

Section 8.	Call-In Pay	22
Section 9.	Uniform Allowance	22
Section 10.	Per Diem Nurse Rates	22
ARTICLE XII	- PAID EDUCATIONAL LEAVE	23
Section 1.	Eligibility Criteria	23
Section 2.	Clinical Certification	23
Section 3.	Financial Aid	23
Section 4.	Staff Development Programs	23
Section 5.	In-Service and Career Development Program	24
	I - VACATION AND LEAVE	24
Section 1.	Personal Leave Day Program	24
Section 2.	Extended Illness Leave Program	27
Section 3.	Vacation Requests	29
Section 4.	Leave Without Pay	30
Section 5.	Bereavement Leave	30
Section 6.	Military Leave	30
Section 7.	Voting	30
Section 8.	Jury Duty	31
Section 9.	Administrative Leave	31
	Leaves for Union Business	31
	/ - FULL-TIME WEEKEND SHIFTS	32
	- EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES	33
Section 1.	Probationary Periods	33
Section 2.	Lounge Areas	33
Section 3.	Work in Higher Classification	33
Section 4.	Classification Appeal	34
Section 5.	Employee's File	34
Section 6.	Evaluation of Work Performance	34
Section 7.	Promotions and Demotions	35
Section 8.	Longevity Bonus	36
Section 9.	Educational Bonus	37
Section 10.	Reference Books and Periodicals	37
Section 11.	Parking Facilities	37
Section 12.	New Equipment and Procedures	38
Section 13.	Drug Discount Tuition/Conference Beimburgement	38
Section 14.	Tuition/Conference Reimbursement	38 38
Section 15.	Job Specification Language Rubella and Hengtitis R Vaccine	38
Section 16. Section 17.	Rubella and Hepatitis-B Vaccine	38
Section 18.	Injuries, Rehabilitation and Reorientation Child Care/Elderly Care	39
Section 19.	Scope of Nursing Practice	39
Section 20.	Referral and Recruitment Incentive Program	39
Section 21.	Cellular Phone Program	40
	I - VACANCIES, TRANSFERS, REASSIGNMENTS,	40
	ERS AND FILLING VACANCIES	40
Section 1.	Shift Transfers, Posting and Filling of Vacancies	70
and Reassign		40
Section 2.	Unit Mergers	41
	II - ORIENTATION, FLOATING, CROSS-TRAINING, CENTRAL	71
	LOAT POOL NURSES	42
Section 1.	Orientation Types	42
Section 2.	Cross-training	42
Section 3.	Floating	43
Section 4.	Central Staffing Float Pool Nurses	43
Section 5.	Pay Premium	43
Section 6.	Extra Shift Bonus Program	44
	III - REASSIGNMENT, Layoffs, Recall and Reemployment Righ	
Section 1.	Reassignment Procedure	44
Section 2.	Layoff Procedure	45
Section 3.	Recall Procedure	47
· · · · · · · ·		

Section 5. ARNP Reassignment, Layoff, and Recall Procedures	50	
Section 6. Furloughs	50	
ARTICLE XIX - CONTRACTING OUT	50	
ARTICLE XX - REEDUCATION AND SKILLS ENHANCEMENT PROGRAM	51	
ARTICLE XXI - GROUP INSURANCE	52	
ARTICLE XXII – NURSING REPRESENTATION ON COMMITTEES	53	
ARTICLE XXIII - SAFETY AND HEALTH	54	
Section 1. General Recognition	54	
Section 2. Joint Health and Safety Committee	54	
Section 3. New Practices and Procedures	55	
Section 4. Protection from Respiratory Hazards and Infectious Diseases	55	
Section 5. On the Job Assault	56	
Section 6. Security	56	
Section 7. Safe Patient Handling and Minimal Lift Team	56	
ARTICLE XXIV - QUALITY NURSING		
AND CAREER DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE	56	
Section 1. Establishment	56	
Section 2. Purpose	56	
Section 3. Matters Eliminated from Discussion	56	
Section 4. Make-up of the Committee Section 5. Meetings and Agenda	57	
Section 5. Meetings and Agenda	57	
Section 6. Recommendations	57	
ARTICLE XXV - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS AND SCOPE OF THIS AGREEME	NT57	
ARTICLE XXVI - TOXICOLOGY AND ALCOHOL TESTING	58	
ARTICLE XXVII - PHYSICAL AND PSYCHOLOGICAL IMPAIRMENTS	59	
ARTICLE XXVIII - ASSIGNABILITY OF CONTRACT	59	
ARTICLE XXIX - MISCELLANEOUS	60	
ARTICLE XXX - STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS	60	
ARTICLE XXXI - TERM OF AGREEMENT	61	
ARTICLE XXXII - NURSE STAFFING RATIOS	61	
ARTICLE XXXIII - PENSION BENEFITS	62	
ARTICLE XXXIV - EMPOWERMENT PROGRAM FOR SEIU REGISTERED		
NURSES, ATTENDING PHYSICIANS & PROFESSIONALS		
BARGAINING UNITS	62	
Section 1. Labor-Management Partnership Agreement	62	
Section 2. Empowerment and Efficiencies	65	
ARTICLE XXXIV - HEALTH AND WELLNESS CULTURE	65	
Section 1. Introduction	65	
Section 2. Pillars of Wellness	65	
Section 3 Goals & Objectives	65	
Section 4. Implementation and Recommendations:	66	
Section 5. Join the Movement (Wellness Incentive Plan)	67	
APPENDIX A - ACTIVE JOB CLASSIFICATIONS	68	
APPENDIX B - UNITS IDENTIFIED AS EXCLUDED		
FROM IN-PATIENT UNIT DIFERENTIAL	69	
APPENDIX C	70	
APPENDIX D - MEDICAL PLANS	80	
CRNA AGREEMENT		
CRNA SIDE LETTER AGREEMENT (SUPLEMENT)		
OR ON CALL PAY	101	
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 1		

ARTICLE I - PREAMBLE

This Agreement is entered into on December 10, 2017 by and between the Public Health Trust (PHT) and Miami-Dade County, Florida (County), hereinafter referred to as the Employer, and Local 1991, Service Employees International Union, hereinafter referred to as the Union, for the period October 1, 2017 through September 30, 2020, subject to ratification by the Union membership and approval by the Public Health

Trust and the Board of County Commissioners of Miami-Dade County, Florida.

All new or amended provisions contained in this Agreement shall be effective the beginning of the first pay period immediately following final ratification and approval by the Board of County Commissioners, unless a different effective date is specifically provided for in the affected article.

ARTICLE II - PURPOSE

It is the purpose of this Agreement to promote and expand harmonious relationships between the Employer and the Employees represented by the Union; to provide, where not inconsistent with the Constitution, Charter, Statute, Ordinance or Personnel Rules, for the salary structure, fringe benefits and employment conditions of the employees covered by this Agreement. Both parties agree that they share the responsibility to provide uninterrupted nursing care to patients and citizens of Miami-

Dade County.

In addition to standards of performance adopted by the Public Health Trust, including, but not limited to, appropriate audit methodologies, the Employer recognizes its obligations under the Nurse Practice Act of Florida and the Standards for Nursing Service as developed by the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations (JCAHO) and the New Standards for Performance Improvement. The Employer also agrees to give consideration to the Code for Nurses as adopted by

the American Nurses' Association in the development of standards of performance.

Upon ratification and approval, the provisions of this Agreement will supersede Personnel Rules or Administrative Orders and/or other rules and regulations in conflict herewith. The Employer retains the right to establish through Administrative Order or Personnel Rules practices or procedures which do not violate the provisions of this contract.

ARTICLE III - RECOGNITION

Section 1. Recognition

The Employer recognizes the Union as the exclusive bargaining representative for all full-time employees, regularly employed part-time non-casual employees and per diem employees who average twenty (20) or more hours weekly employed by the Employer in the classifications as identified in Appendix A and all other classifications in which the duties can only be performed by a Registered Nurse, as presently exist or as may be from time to time established by the Employer excluding Clinical Nursing Supervisors, Supervisors, Assistant Directors, Directors of Nursing, and all other employees of the Trust.

Section 2. Probationary and Per Diem Employees

Probationary, non-permanent employees and per diem employees shall continue to be governed in all respects by the Code of Miami-Dade County, Florida. Personnel Rules, Pay Plan, and all other regulations in effect prior to the execution of this Agreement, and there shall be no change in any of the wages, benefits, hours or terms

and conditions of employment of such employees except as a result of this Agreement.

Within the meaning of the above paragraph, the following provisions only shall not apply to probationary employees: Article IX, Section 1, 2(D), 3, 4 and 5 and Article XV, Section 6(E). Only the following provisions apply to per diem employees: Articles I; II; III; IV, Sections 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8; V; VI; XI, Sections 1, 2, 3A, 5, 6, 9 and 10; XIII, Section 6, 7 and 8; XV, Section 2, 5, 6 (A, B, C, D, H), 10, 11, 12, 13, 15, 16, 17, 18 and 19; XVII, Section 1 (A and B) and 2 (A); XIX; XXII; XXIII, Section 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6; XXIV; XXV; XXVII; XXVIII; XXIII; XXIX; XXX and XXXI. Articles VII and VIII shall only apply to alleged contract violations.

ARTICLE IV - UNION-MANAGEMENT COOPERATION

Section 1. Union-Management Cooperation

It is recognized that regular meetings between the Employer and the Union are desirable in order to deal with matters of mutual concern as they arise and to improve employee-management cooperation.

Section 2. Employee-Management Conference Committee

- A. The Employer's management, jointly with the elected representatives of the Union, shall establish a Conference Committee to assist in solving mutual personnel and other employee-management problems not involving grievances or matters within jurisdiction of any other Labor Management Committees.
- B. The purpose of the Committee is to foster improved relations between the Employer and the Union.
- C. The Committee shall be on a permanent basis and shall consist of four (4) representatives of management and four (4) representatives of the Union. Persons serving on this committee should be at a level to represent the parties' interests.
- D. This Committee will meet monthly. Each party will submit an agenda of topics to be discussed at least five (5) calendar days prior to the scheduled meeting. Only subjects appearing on the agenda will be discussed unless business of an emergency nature is added by mutual consent.
- E. Within the authority of the representatives, both parties will make every effort to implement any agreement or plan which results from these meetings. If unable to implement, the representatives will make appropriate recommendations.
- F. It is the objective of the Employer to pay salaries that are competitive in the local area. To this end, salaries will be discussed by this Committee whenever requested by either party.

Section 3. Membership

- A. Each pay period, the Employer will provide the Union with a printout and/or an electronic copy of the job title, department, Lawson ID, badge number, position, name, job code, pay rate, annual pay rate, FTE, pay grade, pay step, shift, work schedule, union code, union name, union membership status, job status, status description, hire date, adjusted hire date, anniversary date, exempt or hourly, supervisor name, union dues by individual, COPE contributions by individual, process level, work phone, work email, and termination date for all employees in the bargaining unit. With written authorization from the employee, the Employer shall provide addresses and phone numbers.
- B. Quarterly, JHS will provide a list of all newly created Company 300 positions to the Union by job classification and job description.

C. The Union will have 4000 copies of this agreement printed and the Employer will reimburse the Union for 50% of mutually agreed upon cost. The Union will provide the Employer with five hundred (500) copies. The Union will distribute copies of this Agreement to all employees in the bargaining units.

Section 4. Dues Deduction

- A. Upon receipt of a properly executed written authorization from an employee, the Employer agrees to deduct the regular Union dues of such employees from their biweekly pay and remit the same to the Union within fourteen (14) calendar days from the date of the deduction. The Union will notify the Employer, in writing, thirty (30) days prior to any change in the regular Union dues deduction as provided by law. Any employee may revoke the Union dues deduction as provided by law.
- B. Upon receipt of a properly executed written authorization from an employee, the Employer agrees to deduct COPE contributions from an employee's biweekly pay in the amount designated by the employee and remit the same to the Union within fourteen (14) calendar days from the date of deduction. The Union will notify the Employer, in writing, thirty (30) days prior to any change in the regular COPE dues deduction as provided by law. Any employee may revoke the COPE dues deduction upon written authorization.
- C. The Union agrees to indemnify and hold the Employer harmless against any and all claims, suits, orders or judgments brought or issued against the Employer as a result of any action taken or not taken by the Employer under the provisions of this section.
- D. If during the life of this contract there is any changes to the law which in any way affects dues deduction, JHS will work collaboratively with the Union to implement alternative dues deduction methods.

Section 5. Non-Discrimination

There shall be no discrimination against any employee by the Employer or the Union because of race, color, sex, creed, national origin, age, marital status, disability, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, religion, political affiliation or Union membership or activity covered or described under this Agreement. There shall be no discrimination shown between equally qualified employees in work assignments, training, transfers, evaluations, promotions, layoff and recall, education and tuition assistance.

All employees covered by this Agreement shall be protected in the exercise of the right to join and assist the Union, or to refrain from such activity; to designate representatives for the purpose of processing grievances and to engage in other lawful activities for the purpose of collective bargaining or for the purpose of implementing any other rights provided under the Public Employees Relations Act or other pertinent laws, or the provisions of this Agreement.

Section 6. Bulletin Boards

The Employer agrees to provide a suitable number of bulletin boards or bulletin board space for exclusive Union use. There will be at least one (1) board per patient care unit and/or work site/area and additional others to be mutually determined.

Section 7. Copies of Documents

The Employer will provide the Union with a copy of all manuals, job descriptions, personnel policies and administrative rules and regulations that are applicable to the bargaining unit.

Section 8. New Employee Orientation

The Union and the Employer shall work cooperatively to ensure that the Union representatives shall have an opportunity to address/contact new employees about the Union and to provide them with a copy of the Collective Bargaining Agreement and a list of Union officers and representatives.

ARTICLE V - NOTIFICATION. CONSULTATIONS AND NEGOTIATIONS

Section 1. Prevailing Benefits Clause

Any benefits recognized by the Employer and heretofore enjoyed by the employee, which are not specifically provided for or abridged by this Agreement, shall continue under conditions upon which they have previously been granted.

Section 2. Notification, Consultations and Negotiations

The Employer shall notify the Union in writing of any proposed changes in personnel policies or practices, which affect the conditions under which nurses work. Whenever possible, such written notification shall be provided the Union at least four (4) weeks in advance of the proposed implementation of the changes. If requested by the Union within ten (10) days of its receipt of such notification, the Employer will meet with the Union to discuss the proposed changes and to negotiate in good faith over the impact of such changes on unit employees.

Examples of changes which entitle the Union to such notification include but are not limited to the following: The PHT or the County merging with or acquiring other hospitals or agencies; changes in job descriptions, specifications, qualifications or evaluation system; new or changed job classifications; changes in the Employer's policies and procedures, work or disciplinary rules; changes in shift starting and quitting times; plans for opening or acquiring new units or reassignment of nursing personnel; and such committee recommendations as the Employer wishes to implement even where

the Union was represented on the committee making the initial recommendations.

Nothing in this article shall diminish the right of the Employer to take action described under Article XXV, Management Rights and Scope of this Agreement.

ARTICLE VI - UNION REPRESENTATION

Section 1. Union Representatives

The Union has the right to select its representatives to carry out the activities permitted by this Agreement, and will furnish the Employer with a list of elected officials and unit representatives for designated purposes within thirty (30) days after the execution of this Agreement. The Union will keep such lists current.

Section 2. Grievance Representation

The Employer recognizes the right of the Union to appoint not more than thirtynine (39) representatives at JMH and satellite facilities for the purpose of assisting employees in the adjustment of grievances under the terms of this Agreement. In the event of an expansion of the bargaining unit above the number of employees in the unit at the execution of this Agreement, the Employer agrees that the Union shall be allowed to appoint one (1) additional representative for each sixty (60) additional bargaining unit employees.

Section 3. Released Time

A. With prior approval from the employee's supervisor, time off with pay shall be

allowed to the Union representatives assigned to regular shifts to allow for participation in activities described in Articles IV, V, VI, VII, VIII, IX, XXII, XXIII and XXIV of this Agreement. Approval will not be unreasonably withheld.

- B. No nurse shall be paid for such time unless regularly scheduled to work at a time when such activities are going on; nor shall schedules be changed to allow paid time for such activities. In unusual circumstances, request for schedule changes may be submitted by Unit representatives for approval by their supervisor or schedule changes may be made by the Employer. However, in order to encourage participation of night-shift nurses in the activities detailed in Section A, night-shift nurses who spend two (2) hours or more in any day attending such activities shall be given a maximum of two (2) hours off their regular shift with pay.
- C. Up to twenty (20) bargaining unit members will be allowed time off with pay for contract negotiations. Up to an additional seven (7) bargaining unit members will be allowed time off without pay for contract negotiations. Approval will not be unreasonably withheld. The Union will make every effort to elect employees from various hospital centers.

Section 4. Adjustment of Grievance

It is agreed and understood by both parties that unit representatives designated by the Union may, without loss of pay, process grievances during working hours. An employee representative, before leaving the work area to transact appropriate Union-Employer business during working hours, shall first obtain permission from the appropriate supervisor. When it is necessary to contact a nurse in another area, the representative will contact the appropriate supervisor to arrange an appointment with the concerned nurse(s). Permission will be granted by either supervisor as a matter of discretion but shall not be unreasonably withheld. The parties recognize that time spent in such activities shall not interfere with patient needs and, if necessary, shall be conducted on the employees' own time.

Every effort will be made by the Employer to allow unit representatives to investigate grievances as rapidly as possible, preferably on the same date as the grievance becomes known, and when possible at least within twenty-four (24) hours.

ARTICLE VII - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Section 1. Resolution of Grievances

In a mutual effort to provide harmonious working relationships between the parties to this Agreement, it is agreed to and understood by both parties that the following shall be the sole procedure for the resolution of grievances arising between the parties as

to the interpretation or application of the provisions of this Agreement.

It is agreed that every effort will be made by the Union and the Employer to resolve disagreements or disputes informally and promptly prior to the initiation of the formal grievance procedure. An employee may be assisted or represented by a representative of the Union during the grievance procedure. Unless the employee requests Union representation, nothing in this section shall prevent the Employer from discussing any incident or circumstance related to any employee without the presence of a Union representative. However, the Employer agrees not to deny representation if it is requested.

Section 2. Definition

A grievance shall be defined as any dispute arising from the interpretation or application of this Agreement, or arising from conditions of employment. A class grievance shall be defined as any dispute which concerns two (2) or more employees within the bargaining unit. Class grievances should name all employees and/or classifications

covered in the grievance. Each written grievance, when filed, shall contain a brief statement of the facts of the violation claimed, together with the article of the contract violated and the remedy sought. All grievances shall be processed in accordance with the grievance procedure as set forth in this article.

Section 3. Procedure

The employee or Union shall file a grievance, in writing, with the Director Employee/Labor Relations and Workforce Compliance Department, or designee, within ten (10) calendar days of the occurrence or knowledge giving rise to the grievance. This person, or designee, shall meet with the grievant and the Union Representative within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the written grievance and shall reply in writing within ten (10) calendar days after the grievance hearing.

Whenever possible, appropriate and unique to one division, the Union will attempt to discuss Union grievances, except those concerning disciplinary action, health and safety or Union rights, with the Division Director or designee before submitting the grievance directly to the Director of Employee/Labor Relations and Workforce Compliance Department.

Section 4. Class Grievances

In order to minimize the disruption to patient care in the case of class grievances, no more than two (2) employees per shift, per unit, plus a Union representative, shall be released from work for grievance meetings.

Section 5. Time Limits

Failure to observe the time limits for submission of any grievance at any step will automatically result in the grievance being considered abandoned. Failure to meet or to respond to a grievance within the prescribed time limit will automatically move the grievance to the arbitral step.

Extensions of time limits shall only be by mutual agreement in writing between the parties to this Agreement, except that either party shall be permitted one (1) extension of time per grievance as a matter of right not to exceed fifteen (15) days, providing that the other party is notified in writing of the extension prior to the expiration of the original period.

Section 6. Employee Obligation

The parties acknowledge that as a principle of interpretation, employees are obligated to work as directed while grievances are pending, except as set forth in Article XXIII, Safety and Health, of this Agreement.

Section 7. Employer Responses

All responses required, above, shall be directed to the aggrieved employee with a copy furnished to the Union, or to the Union. In class grievances, copies will be directed to the Union only. A rejection of a grievance must contain a statement of the reasons for the rejection.

Section 8. Exclusions

Any subjects excluded from the arbitration procedure (Article VIII) shall also be excluded from the grievance procedure with the sole exception of written reprimands, which shall be grievable but not arbitrable as provided under Article IX, Disciplinary Action, Section 3, Written Reprimands and Records of Counseling. A Record of Counseling is non-disciplinary and therefore not grievable or arbitrable.

ARTICLE VIII - ARBITRATION

If the Union is not satisfied with the reply to the grievance, the Union shall have ten (10) calendar days after receipt thereof to notify the Employer of intent to submit the grievance to arbitration. Within thirty (30) days following notification to the Employer, the Union must file a request for arbitration. The Union must simultaneously provide the Employee/Labor Relations Department with a copy of the request for arbitration and the applicable grievance. If the parties cannot agree upon an impartial arbitrator within five (5) days, the parties shall request a list of seven (7) arbitrators from FMCS or AAA. The parties shall each strike from said list, alternately, three (3) names, after determining the first strike by lot, and the remaining name shall be the arbitrator. The arbitrator shall promptly conduct the hearing on the grievance at which both parties shall be permitted to present their evidence and arguments. The decision of the arbitrator shall be rendered in writing no later than thirty (30) days after the

conclusion of the hearing, and such decision shall be final and binding.

Each party will pay its own expenses and will share equally in expenses incurred mutually in arbitration including the cost of the transcript, if mutually requested. Employees required to testify will be made available without loss of pay; however, whenever possible, they shall be placed on call to minimize time lost from work and, unless directly required to assist the principal Union Representative in the presentation of the case, they shall return to work upon completion of their testimony. The intent of

the parties is to minimize time lost from work and disruption of patient care.

The arbitrator shall limit his/her opinion to the interpretation or application of this Agreement and shall have no power to amend, modify, nullify, ignore or add to the provisions of this Agreement.

Grievances, as defined, may be submitted regarding the matters contained in the Agreement or arising from conditions of employment.

Reprimands and determinations under Article XV (Employment Practices), Section 4 (Classification Appeal), and Section 15, B, C, D (Job Specification Language) are not arbitrable.

ARTICLE IX - CORRECTIVE ACTION

Section 1. Just Cause

An Employee shall not be discharged, disciplined or demoted except for just cause. The Employer will follow progressive disciplinary procedures, whenever appropriate, and in all instances will have the burden of proving just cause for disciplinary action taken.

Section 2. Procedure

- A. The corrective action process will begin when the Employer gives the Employee and the Union a Corrective Action Report (CAR) or Record of Counseling (ROC). The Union copy of the CAR/ROC will be sent electronically to the Union President/designee and the Union Membership Data Coordinator, and shall include the name and contact information of the affected employee and management person designated to hear the rebuttal.
- B. The CAR/ROC shall specify the charges against the Employee, and include the law, rule, regulation, and/or policy allegedly violated. In addition to the CAR or ROC, all supporting documentation (statements, records, etc.) will be attached. The Employer agrees to inform the Employee of his/her right to representation in the corrective action process. Upon request, the employee shall have the right to representation in discussions concerning actual or pending corrective action.

- C. Final Decisions and Rebuttals: Final corrective action determinations will not be rendered until the completion of the rebuttal meetings where the Employer and the Employee, together with the Representative, through use of evidence, documents and witnesses, have the opportunity to present their respective cases. Within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the CAR/ROC, the Union representative assigned to the matter shall contact the management person designated in connection with the CAR/ROC to notify them of the Union's and Employee's readiness to schedule the rebuttal hearing. The Employer will then send the Union three (3) possible dates for the rebuttal hearing that correspond to the Employee's schedule over the ensuing ten (10) calendar days. Rebuttal meetings must be heard within ten (10) calendar days of the Union notifying the Employer of their readiness, unless mutually agreed between the parties. A decision will be rendered without a rebuttal hearing if the Employee fails to schedule the rebuttal within the ten (10) day period, or if the Employee waives the right to a rebuttal. The Employer shall have ten (10) calendar days to render a decision following the rebuttal presentation unless time is extended by mutual agreement. The Union and employee shall receive a copy of the rebuttal response.
- D. The Employer agrees that corrective actions (dismissals, suspensions, demotions) except written reprimands and records of counseling, will be appealable by the employee to a hearing examiner as provided in the Miami-Dade County Code and the Personnel Rules of the PHT or, at the option of the Union and the employee, to the Grievance and Arbitration procedures provided in Articles VII and VIII of this Agreement. The employee shall be notified in writing of both appeal procedures by name and contract article.
- E. CARs and ROCs shall be given on a timely basis and insofar as practicable within twenty-one (21) days after the Employer discovers the facts or concludes the investigation requiring the presentation, except where good cause for delay is shown. Good cause shall include, but not be limited to, the pendency of outside criminal, administrative or other proceedings, or if the Employee, manager, supervisor, or the director rendering a decision is on leave. There will be no notification to the employee prior to the initiation of the corrective action process (e.g., 48-hour notification).
- F. Any disciplinary action currently in an employee's file which is overturned shall be stamped invalid.
- G. An employee will be offered the option of using accrued personal leave during a suspension.

Section 3. Written Reprimands and Records of Counseling

Written Reprimands shall be appealable by the employee to the grievance procedure, but shall not be further appealable to either an Arbitrator or to a County Hearing Examiner Officer. Within thirty (30) days of the receipt of the Employer's reply to such a grievance at any step of the grievance procedure, the employee and/or the Union shall have the right to file a written response to the Written Reprimand and have said response inserted in the employee's personnel folder.

Written Reprimands and Records of Counseling, together with any reference to such reprimands or Records of Counseling excluding performance evaluations, shall cease to be of any force or effect after a two (2) year period from receipt of the Record of Counseling or Written Reprimand in which the employee has received no further disciplinary actions or Records of Counseling. At the employee's specific written request, these shall be promptly stamped in the employee's personnel file as no longer in effect.

Section 4. Hearing Pursuant to the Hearing Examiner System

- A. The employee subjected to the corrective action process shall be informed in writing of the charges. The employee or the employee's representative shall have the right to confront and question all witnesses under oath. The right of discovery and procedural rights in accordance with the Florida Rules of Civil Procedure shall be provided to the employee.
- B. All corrective actions including demotions, suspensions, and dismissals of permanent employees, but excluding written reprimands and records of counseling, shall be appealable to a hearing examiner, in accordance with the applicable section(s) of the Miami-Dade County Code (Section 2-47). This section shall not apply to the termination of a nonpermanent or probationary employee or to the demotion of permanent employees who fail to complete the promotional probationary period to the satisfaction of the department for other than disciplinary reasons.
- C. The decision of a hearing examiner shall include a finding of facts, conclusions to sustain the decision and may include recommendations, a copy of which shall be immediately provided to the employee and to the Union.
- D. The above referenced Code provisions providing for a disciplinary appeal process are to be read to include the following procedural guarantees:
- 1. The Employer shall continue to abide by the previously agreed to and published Hearing Examiner Procedure Manual.
- The PHT Labor Relations Manager shall be responsible for initiating the selection of the hearing examiner on each appeal and setting the date, time and place for the hearing upon consultation with the parties involved. There shall be no ex parte communication between the participants of the hearing and the examiner.
- 3. The parties to the hearing shall not initiate ex parte communications with the President of the PHT for the purpose of influencing the final appeal decision. This decision shall be based solely on the hearing record.

Section 5. Grievance Procedure

- A. The Union will have the option on behalf of a permanent status bargaining unit employee, to appeal disciplinary actions resulting in dismissals, suspensions or demotions of permanent employees through the grievance and arbitration procedure contained in Article VII and VIII of this Agreement. The Union shall notify the Office of Labor Relations in writing no later than ten (10) calendar days from the employee's receipt of the final corrective action determination of its decision on whether to exercise the option of appealing through the grievance and arbitration procedure or request an appeal in accordance with Section 2-47 of the Code of Miami-Dade County. The Union's choice between the grievance and arbitration procedure or the Code provision under Section 2-47, once made, shall not be subject to change.
- B. In the case where the Union chooses not to select the grievance and arbitration procedure for disciplinary actions resulting in dismissals, suspensions or demotions of permanent employees then the disciplinary appeal provisions under Section 2-47 of the Code of Miami-Dade County shall prevail and be utilized if a timely appeal is requested. In the event the Union selects the option to appeal disciplinary actions resulting in dismissals, suspensions or demotions of permanent employees under the grievance and arbitration procedure then the provisions of Section 2-47 of the Code will not be applicable.

Section 6. Just Culture

Just Culture: The PHT and the Union jointly embrace Just Culture. The parties recognize that Just Culture functions to ensure safe quality care and provides both the employer and the employees the opportunity to explore and investigate processes, procedures and systems that advance safe quality care. In the event an issue or incident occurs with a bargaining unit member related to patient safety or in clinical areas that deal with patient safety and quality, the PHT will make every effort to examine the core fundamental cause utilizing the practices and algorithms of Just Culture per the PHT's Just Culture Policy. It is the mutual intent of both parties to ensure safe quality patient care through ensuring best practices and share learnings.

As both parties embrace Just Culture, and whereas the Union recognizes the PHT's intent to implement and utilize it throughout the System, the parties agree to create a Just Culture Committee. The purpose of the Committee is for management and the Union to meet and collaborate on the effective implementation and utilization of the Just Culture Policy for the members of the bargaining unit.

The parties agree that the Employer and the Union shall be responsible for establishing the Just Culture committee and determining its structure and scope.

Section 7. Absenteeism/Tardiness

This section will be in full force and effect six months after contract ratification.

A. Absenteeism

Absenteeism is defined as failure to report to work as scheduled, or working less than one-half the scheduled shift. Employees who violate this policy with patterned and/or excessive absenteeism shall be subject to corrective action.

An "absence occasion" is defined as one (1) to a maximum of seven (7) consecutive calendar day(s) with unplanned absences, excluding approved FMLA leave. For an illness extending beyond seven (7) calendar days, the employee must present the appropriate manager with a doctor's note for the illness to be treated as a single occasion. Hence, if an employee has eight (8) or more consecutive calendar days of unplanned absences, then the eighth (8th) consecutive calendar day will be considered an additional "absence occasion."

"Patterned" absences constitute a violation of this section. With the exception of absences on holidays which require longer time periods in which to investigate a possible pattern, examples of patterned absences include, but are not limited to, three (3) or more instances of the following in a three (3) month period:

- absence on scheduled weekends or holidays
- absence the day before or after a scheduled holiday, vacation, or personal day
- absence the scheduled workday after payday
- · coincidence of absence with desirable days off
- coincidence of absence with days of heavy or light work load
- repeated or patterned absence on a specific day of the week

"Excessive absenteeism" is defined as at least four (4) or more absence occasions during any six (6) month period. In addition, two (2) or more absence occasions within any two (2) month period following receipt of a corrective action for absenteeism constitute excessive absenteeism.

Repeated periods of extended absence due to illness or injury may be considered excessive absenteeism since they interfere with the delivery of patient care and departmental productivity, and may constitute a violation of

this policy unless these absences are covered under the provisions of Family & Medical Leave Act (FMLA).

B. Tardiness

- Tardiness is defined as arriving at the workstation after the scheduled starting time.
- Excessive tardiness is defined as reporting late for duty at least twice in a pay period. Tardiness that follows a set pattern also may constitute excessive tardiness.
- C. A joint management and union committee will be established to monitor the declinations of PL time and the reduction of call outs.

ARTICLE X - HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

Section 1. Work Hours

The standard work week shall consist of forty (40) hours.

Employees who are assigned to work eight and one half (8½) hour shifts or ten and one half (10½) shall be entitled to one (1) unpaid meal break of one half (½) hour which will be part of each shift. Every effort will be made to provide two fifteen (15) minute paid rest periods within each scheduled shift. The unpaid meal break may be combined with the fifteen (15) minute paid breaks with prior supervisory approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.

Employees who are assigned to work twelve and one half (12½) hour shifts shall be entitled to two (2) unpaid meal breaks of one half (½) hour which will be part of each shift. Every effort will be made to provide three fifteen (15) minute paid rest periods within each scheduled shift. The unpaid meal breaks may be combined with the fifteen (15) minute paid breaks with prior supervisory approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. No individual working twelve and one half (12½) hour shifts will normally be scheduled for more than three (3) consecutive days on duty or more than seven (7) days on duty within a period of fourteen (14) consecutive days.

In addition to the current full time status of 40 hours for nurses who work 12 and half hour (12 $\frac{1}{2}$) shifts (3 days one week, 4 another week), RNs who mutually agree with the employer to work three (3) 12 and one half hour (12 $\frac{1}{2}$) shifts per week shall also be considered full time employees with all full time benefits. Those who work these three (3) 12 and one half hour (12 $\frac{1}{2}$) shifts shall be paid for 72 hours per pay period plus any overtime. For the purposes of weekly overtime, the normal work week shall be considered 40 hours.

An employee who is currently on, or in the future is placed on, a schedule of working 12 ½ hour shifts, three (3) days one week and four (4) days another week (3-4), shall be entitled to continue on a (3-4) schedule, including in the event of a transfer or reassignment, whether voluntary or involuntary.

Effective September 30, 2014, full-time or part-time employees shall have the opportunity to convert to a schedule of working 12 ½ hour shifts, three (3) days one week and four (4) days another week (3-4), whenever any full-time or part-time vacancy is declared in the employees' unit, to a maximum of 50% of employees on a (3-4) schedule per unit. Whenever there is availability in a unit for the conversion of an employee to a (3-4) schedule, employees shall be offered the (3-4) schedule by unit seniority. Nothing in this section shall prevent JHS, in its discretion, from exceeding the 50% per unit cap, or from offering (3-4) schedules to employees by unit seniority without declaration of a vacancy.

Effective upon ratification, any per diem or part-time employee who averages forty (40) hours per week for six (6) consecutive months will be offered a full-time with benefits position in the same classification he/she has been working, subject to a six (6) month probationary period. Any per diem employee who averages twenty (20) hours per week or more for six (6) consecutive months will be offered a part-time position.

Section 2. Overtime

- A. It shall not be the general policy of the Employer to have its employees work frequent or consistent overtime. However, when non-job basis employees are required to work approved overtime, in addition to their regular hours, they shall be compensated.
- B. Effective March 1, 2012, work authorized to be performed in excess of forty (40) hours per week shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half of the normal rate of pay.
- C. For purposes of interpretation, all hours in pay status shall be considered hours worked except for unplanned personal leave days. However, employees covered by the bargaining unit may receive overtime payment for hours worked in excess of any forty (40) hour work week which includes the equivalent hours of one (1) planned personal leave day taken within any week (the exception being Thanksgiving week when the equivalent hours of two (2) personal leave days may be taken). These hours shall include use of "voluntary early out" personal leave when an employee agrees to leave early at the request of Management and/or usage of partial planned personal leave days up to the equivalent of an employee's regular scheduled shift.
- D. An employee shall not have the regular work schedule changed solely to avoid payment of overtime. This Article is intended to be construed only on the basis of overtime and shall not be construed as a guarantee of work per day or per week.
- E. In any situation requiring overtime, volunteers will be sought before the overtime is assigned. In the event that sufficient volunteers are not obtained, overtime will be assigned on a rotational basis.
- F. Except when demonstrated to be more expensive, overtime will be offered before any agency or TR nurses are utilized.

Section 3. Work Week

The work week shall begin on a Sunday and end on a Saturday.

Section 4. Time Schedules

Every effort shall be made to post time schedules four (4) weeks immediately preceding their effective date. Established schedules may be amended at any time by mutual agreement of the nurses involved with the consent of the appropriate supervisor.

Section 5. Hours of Work and Overtime

- A. Nurses working five (5) days per week schedule will not be scheduled for more than six (6) consecutive days without prior consent of the nurse. Nurses working compressed schedules will not be scheduled for more than three (3) consecutive days without prior consent of the nurse.
- B. The Employer will make every possible effort to provide nurses every other or

two weekends off per time sheet schedule. Weekends are defined as Saturdays and Sundays for day and evening shift and as Friday and Saturday nights for night shift employees. To meet this provision and to cover weekends normally worked during vacations, periods of illness, and other unavoidable absences, the Employer will make every effort to utilize flexible alternatives, such as: seek volunteers for overtime, utilize combination shifts (e.g. 2-8's, 2-12's), part-time, per diem and pool employees. If staffing standards cannot be met through the use of volunteers, the Employer may assign extra weekend work on a rotating basis. If any nurse does not desire every other weekend off or desires set days each week, the nurse should make this request in writing to the person responsible for the time schedule. While every possible effort will be made to adhere to paragraphs A and B, it is understood and agreed that patient care needs will be the paramount consideration in work scheduling.

C. No employee shall be denied vacation because such time begins, ends or includes a weekend(s) on which he/she is scheduled to work.

No employee shall be required to make up a weekend which occurred during an approved vacation, leave, or illness. It is understood, however, that additional weekends may be scheduled under the following conditions:

- 1. When a pattern of unplanned leave abuse is demonstrated, or
- To ensure that weekend work is distributed equitably over the period of a year.

Section 6. Alternative Schedules

Nursing units will have flexibility to adopt different work schedules according to their needs and demands with the approval of the Director of Patient Care Services or Administrator in consultation with Employee/Labor Relations and notification to the Union as provided under Article V, Section 2.

Any nurse who has researched different systems of scheduling should present the system to the Clinical Nursing Practice Committee and the Quality Nursing and Career Development Committee.

If an alternative scheduling system has been in effect on a unit in excess of twelve (12) months, the Employer will notify the Union of any pending change as provided under Article V, Section 2.

No change will be instituted to the alternate schedule for at least six (6) weeks unless an emergency situation exists.

Section 7. Rotating Shifts

Where rotating shifts are required, those responsible for making work schedules will assign shift rotation on an equitable basis. Individual requests for evening and night shift assignment may continue to be approved.

- A. The Employer will make every effort to avoid asking nurses regularly assigned to 3-11 or night shift to rotate to another shift.
- B. Every effort will be made to refrain from rotating nurses to evening or night shift immediately preceding their weekend off.

Section 8. Consecutive Shifts

No nurse will be scheduled for more than two (2) different shifts in any one (1) work week unless the nurse gives consent.

Nurses will not be required to work consecutive shifts except in emergency conditions. There will normally be at least a minimum of an eleven and one-half (11½) hour break between work shifts except in emergency circumstances. For purposes of this section only, staffing deficiencies which cannot be reasonably anticipated by the Employer shall be considered as emergency circumstances.

Section 9. Flexible Hours for Higher Degree Education

The Employer will make every effort to schedule employees working toward a higher degree in accordance with requests made in order for the employee to attend classes. Requests for leave will be granted based on the date of request.

Section 10. Public Holidays

Nurses assigned to facilities or units that are closed on public holidays shall have the option either to take the day of the holiday off, or to work in other areas of the bargaining unit if such work is available. Nurses who opt to work the day in question shall not have a Personal Leave day deducted from their paid leave account.

ARTICLE XI - SALARIES

Section 1. Pay Day

The Employer shall make a good faith effort to include relevant data such as accrued leave time and itemized deductions on each pay statement.

- A. Pay day shall be every other Friday. Paychecks may be picked up in division offices as soon as available. Every effort will be made to make such checks available to those nurses on the 3:00 p.m.-11:30 p.m. and 11:00 p.m.-7:30 a.m. shifts after 9:30 p.m. on Thursday and prior to the end of their shift.
- B. If a holiday is on Friday, pay shall be given on Thursday.
- C. The Employer will provide for direct deposit of pay checks in area banks and credit unions upon proper application from individual nurses who wish it. Nurses shall be informed as to the procedures for proper application.

Section 2. Paycheck Errors

In the event of an error in the pay check, a voucher in the corrected amount shall be made available to the RN within twenty-four (24) hours of reporting the error to the Payroll Department. In order for the voucher to be made available by 4:00 p.m. the same day, the error must be reported to the Payroll Department, with the proper documentation, by 11:00 a.m. The voucher may then be picked up in the Audit Section, General Accounting Department. Vouchers for error-s reported to the Payroll Department, with proper documentation, after 11:00 a.m., will be made available for pick up at the Cashier's Office within 24 hours. Vouchers that are not picked up by 4:00 p.m. in the Audit Section, General Account Department, will be given to the Cashier's Office.

Section 3. Salary Increases

A. First Year 2017-2018

Beginning in the pay period inclusive of September 30, 2018, all full-time and part-time bargaining unit employees who are not otherwise receiving an increase or having longevity step(s) added to their step schedules as set forth in subsection I. below will receive a two (2) percent wage increase.

B. Second Year 2018-2019

There will be no COLA increase during the 2018-2019 fiscal year.

C. Third Year 2019-2020

No later than May 1, 2019, either party may reopen negotiations regarding a potential COLA increase for the 2019-2020 fiscal year.

- D. Eligible nurses, upon signing a two (2) year commitment agreement to the Neonatal Pediatric Transport Team, will receive a one-step increase. This step shall be removed if the nurse leaves the Neonatal Pediatric Transport Team.
- E. ARNPs and other employees designated as lead workers by management shall receive a one-step pay increase until the lead worker designation is removed.
- F. Nurses performing the duties of the Neonatal Pediatric Transport Coordinator and the Pediatric Cardio Thoracic Liaison Case Manager will receive a onestep increase for 24-hour, 7-day per week responsibilities providing the nurse is not already receiving it. The step will be removed if the nurse is no longer performing the duty.
- G. The Associate Nurse Manager, Advanced Registered Nurse Practitioner and Nurse Manager will be paid a one-step increase for working in Corrections Health Services, providing the nurse is not already receiving it. The step will be removed if the nurse is no longer working in Corrections.
- H. If during the term of this Agreement Jackson Health System receives any amounts as a result of the SEIU/Sellers Dorsey initiative, JHS agrees to reopen this Article regarding possible wage improvements.
- I. Effective October 1, 2017, the step schedule for employees in the classification of Nurse Manager will have two (2) longevity steps added to the top of the schedule. Effective October 1, 2017, the Nurse Practitioner and Certified Nurse Midwife step schedules will be amended to add two (2) longevity steps to the top of the schedule. An employee whose step progression eligibility criteria changes due to changes in the maximum number of steps in their respective classification will be credited with time served in their current step towards advancement on the amended step schedule.

The Employer agrees that there shall be no selective wage adjustments for any classifications covered by this Agreement, other than those specified, unless it shall first meet and negotiate with the Union concerning the amount of such adjustments and the reasons therefore.

Section 4. Step Increases

A. The progression through steps and Longevity steps is listed in Appendix C on the "Step Progression Chart", with the exception of those classifications listed in Section 4(D).

The last two steps on all salary ranges are Longevity steps, progression through which will take forty-eight (48) months.

When there are eight (8) or fewer steps, progression up to the last two (2) Longevity steps will be every twelve (12) months.

When there are more than eight (8) steps but fewer than fourteen (14) steps, progression through steps 1 through 6 will be every twelve (12) months, thereafter progression up to the last two (2) Longevity steps will be every twenty-four (24) months.

When there are fourteen (14) or more steps, progression through steps 1 through 6 will be every twelve (12) months, progression through steps 7 through 11 will be every twenty-four (24) months, thereafter progression up to the last two (2) Longevity steps will be every thirty-six (36) months.

An employee will advance through the new pay scale on their anniversary date provided they are step eligible. An employee is step eligible if they have satisfactory performance evaluations (i.e. met standards) and worked the requisite number of months/hours towards the next step as outlined in Appendix C.

B. Make Up Steps

Effective upon ratification, any bargaining unit employee who was hired by Jackson prior to January 1, 2010, who has worked continuously in the same job classification since 2010 and who missed two (2) steps during the frozen period will be advanced one (1) step on his/her step scale. This will be known as the "make up step." Any employee who is granted a make up step will not have his/her anniversary date changed as a result.

There are seventeen (17) steps in the Clinical Staff Nurse, Clinical Staff Nurse
 Float Pool and Vascular Access Specialist classifications. Advancement in these steps is as follows:

Step 1 to step 2	12 months
Step 2 to step 3	12 months
Step 3 to step 4	12 months
Step 4 to step 5	12 months
Step 5 to step 6	12 months
Step 6 to step 7	12 months
Step 7 to step 8	24 months
Step 8 to step 9	24 months
Step 9 to step 10	24 months
Step 10 to step 11	24 months
Step 11 to step 12	36 months
Step 12 to step 13	36 months
Step 13 to step 14	36 months
Step 14 to step 15	36 months
Step 15 to step 16	48 months
Step 16 to step 17	48 months

There will be a minimum of 4.2% between all steps.

- D. Employees in this Unit are also eligible for the "Special Recognition Increase" program under the provisions established by the Employer for such a program.
- E. Part-time nurses are eligible for step increases based on 2080 hours worked and satisfactory performance evaluations (that is, evaluations which meet standards).
- F. A change in classification status does not alter a nurse's anniversary date for purpose of accrual of leave benefits. A nurse who is promoted will have his/her anniversary date changed to the date of promotion for purposes of receiving annual step increases in the new classification, except that a nurse who is promoted within thirty (30) days of his/her step increase anniversary date will receive both his/her step increase and then promotional increase.

Section 5. Shift Differential and Weekend Differential

The Employer agrees to pay a shift differential on the night shift (11:00 p.m. - 7:30

a.m.) and on the evening shift (3:00 p.m. - 11:30 p.m.). Employees on regular assigned shifts which qualify for differentials under this section who are temporarily assigned by the Employer to the day shift for education or work assignment, shall continue to receive the differential they normally receive. Employees who work the evening or night shift who request to work the day shift temporarily will not receive shift differential.

Shift differentials shall be paid in accordance with the following guidelines:

A. The shift differential rates shall be

Evening \$4.00/hour

Night \$6.00/hour

B. For employees hired before October 1, 1994, the shift differential shall be frozen at the dollar amount the employee would have received as a shift differential during the pay period immediately preceding October 1, 1994, or the above shift differential, whichever is higher. Shift differential will be paid for all hours worked after 3:00 p.m. The Employer will pay the appropriate differential for all hours worked on an evening or night shift. Registered Nurses working the twelve and a half-hour night shift will receive the night shift differential for the entire shift.

Shift differential will not be paid for hours worked on a day shift and which end prior to 5:00 p.m.

- C. Nurses who work weekends will be paid two dollars and seventy-five cents (\$2.75) an hour for hours worked between 7:00 p.m. Friday and 7:30 a.m. Monday providing the nurse's shift begins at 7:00 p.m. or later on Friday.
- D. This weekend shift differential will be paid only for actual hours worked, in addition to the shift differential. It does not apply to payment for leave of any type.

Section 6. Main Campus In-Patient Differential

An additional seventy-five cents (\$.75) an hour will be paid for all selected nurses working in an in-patient unit at Jackson Memorial Hospital. This includes the Emergency Care Center, Holtz Women's and Children's and Mental Health Hospital Center. This differential will be paid to Clinical Staff Nurses, Nurse Educators, Associate Nurse Managers, Nurse Managers, Certified Nurse Midwives, Advanced Registered Nurse Practitioners and Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetists, and Registered Nurse First Assist or any other classification where the nurse is working in an in-patient unit at Jackson Memorial Hospital. (See attached list of units excluded from this differential in Appendix B).

Section 7. On-Call Pay

- A. Employees designated as on-call shall be paid a minimum of thirty-five dollars (\$35.00) per shift on weekdays (Monday Friday) and forty-five dollars (\$45.00) per shift on weekends (Saturday-Sunday) and holidays.
- B. Employees who are called in from on-call status, after having left the Employer's facility at the conclusion of a work day, shall receive a minimum of four (4) hours pay at the applicable rate.
- C. The parties agree to meet to discuss guidelines and policies regarding on-call provisions, if either party requests it. Hourly employees who are designated as on call and are not required to come into the hospital, but are required to

resolve issues by telephone or computer, by their respective management or designee, shall be paid the appropriate hourly rate in 15 minute intervals and provide evidence for payroll as required by the employer. The proper form must be submitted to payroll timely for the respective payroll period. In the event that the employee is called back to work and receives call back pay, in no event will he/she receive pay for time spent on the telephone or computer.

- D. Salaried Employees On-call/Standby pay: Salaried employees who are designated as on-call and are not required to come into the hospital by their respective manager or designee, but are required to resolve issues by telephone or computer, shall be paid the appropriate hourly rate in fifteen (15) minute intervals, and shall provide evidence for payroll as required by the employer. The proper form must be submitted to payroll timely for the respective payroll period. However, no Employee performing on-call/standby duties will earn less than he/she is currently receiving.
- E. Any employee who is required to travel and/or float from one facility to another while on the clock will be reimbursed for their mileage at the federal reimbursement rate for the travel from one facility to the other.

Section 8. Call-In Pay

Employees who are not on-call but are called back to work after having left the Employer's facility at the conclusion of a work day, or who are called back to work on a day on which they are not scheduled to work, shall receive a minimum of four (4) hours pay at the applicable rate. Mandatory work-related activities, such as meetings, court appearances and depositions, shall be counted as "work" under this section. Call-in Pay does not apply however, if employees are called to report early for their regular shift, or are on on-call status.

Section 9. Uniform Allowance

All nurses in the bargaining unit shall receive a uniform allowance of \$125.00 per year.

A uniform allowance will be paid once per year in the month of January to all bargaining unit employees on the payroll at time of payment.

Section 10. Per Diem Nurse Rates

The Per Diem Nurse rates are as follows (Per Diem Nurses with thirty (30) months experience or less shall be paid at the lower rate):

Nurse I \$37.00/hour Nurse II \$40.00/hour

Per Diem Nurses who commit to seven (7) twelve (12) hour shifts per month, or its equivalent, which include one (1) holiday shift other than New Year's Eve or Christmas and two (2) weekend shifts, shall receive \$1.00/hour more added to their rate.

All other Per Diem Nurses will be required to work a minimum of three (3) shifts per month.

Current or former JHS employees with greater than seven (7) years of service will be offered a "meet or beat" Per Diem rate: either their base rate of pay upon separation from JHS or the tier corresponding to their years of experience referenced above (whichever is greater).

Per Diem Nurses may elect to participate in the on-call rotation on any unit where s/ he is competent.

The Per Diem Nurse will be responsible for the maintenance of all requirements, credentials and competencies necessary for continued employment in her/his area of specialty. All Per Diem Nurses will have access to Jackson's classes.

Per Diem Nurses who work weekends will be paid two dollars and seventy-five cents (\$2. 75) an hour for hours worked between 7:00 p.m. Friday and 7:30 a.m. Monday providing the nurse's shift begins at 7:00 p.m. or later on Friday.

Per Diem Nurses shall be paid time and a half (1½) for all hours worked on a holiday.

Job Basis Nurses who work additional shifts as Clinical Staff Nurses shall be compensated according to the Per Diem rates referenced above based on experience.

Upon mutual agreement, the parties may re-open negotiations on these wages at any time.

ARTICLE XII - PAID EDUCATIONAL LEAVE

Section 1. Eligibility Criteria

Every effort will be made to provide a reasonable amount of leave with pay each year to attend courses, institutes, workshops or other educational activities in accordance with the following criteria:

- A. Educational leave days will be used at the employee's discretion after receiving proper approval. Leave under this article is exclusive of mandatory education requirements.
- B. The nurse applies in advance in writing specifying the course, institute, workshop or class the nurse wishes to attend.
- The nurse obtains permission from the Director of Nursing or designee to attend.
- D. Such leave does not interfere with staffing.
- E. Requests for leave will be granted based on date of request.
- F. Employees working eight (8) hour shifts will get twenty-four (24) hours; those working twelve (12) hour shifts, thirty-six (36) hours; those working ten (10) hour shifts, thirty (30) hours yearly; and weekend schedule employees (Article XIV) will get thirty-six (36) hours of leave yearly under this provision. In the case of ARNP's, Nurse Midwives and CRNA's, employees working eight (8) hour shifts will get thirty-two (32) hours yearly; those working twelve (12) hour shifts, forty-eight (48) hours yearly; those working ten (10) hour shifts, forty (40) hours yearly.
- G. Hours spent in reeducation programs which qualify for contact hours conducted by the Employer shall count toward the number of hours of leave available under this article. If an employee who enters a reeducation program has already used his/her educational leave for the year, the appropriate number of days of leave will be deducted from the leave the employee would otherwise have been entitled to receive in the following year.

Section 2. Clinical Certification

The cost of one National clinical certification exam related to the employee's area of practice will be reimbursed following successful completion.

Section 3. Financial Aid

Nurses may continue to apply for financial aid to cover tuition, registration and travel to such seminars. Applications shall receive a timely reply.

Section 4. Staff Development Programs

It is understood that courses offered by the Employer in special areas of practice will be continued for nurses working in, or scheduled to work in, a specialty area as part of Staff Development Programs. These educational programs will be posted on the bulletin boards and any nurse may apply. These requests will be granted as patient care permits.

Section 5. In-Service and Career Development Program

Employees shall be compensated for all time spent in required in-service training programs. Every reasonable effort will be made so bargaining unit employees will be given sufficient time to complete all mandatory education requirements during work hours, in their work areas, and free of a patient assignment.

ARTICLE XIII - VACATION AND LEAVE

The Employer provides a certain number of paid hours per year to be used for rest, relaxation, vacation, sickness, bereavement, and other personal needs. Nurses in the bargaining unit employed by the PHT will receive personal leave hours in lieu of annual leave hours, sick leave hours, and holidays.

Section 1. Personal Leave Day Program

Paid personal leave hours are provided under the Personal Leave Plan to cover time off from work that is planned and/or unplanned. All paid personal leave must be approved by the employee's department head, supervisor, or other designee.

- A. A planned absence from work is defined as time off, requested and approved at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance by the employee's department head, supervisor, or other person designated to approve time off.
 - 1) Except as provided in Section 3, paragraph 1 of this Article, requests for planned personal leave of more than three (3) days shall be submitted at least forty (40) days in advance unless extenuating circumstances give rise to the need to submit requests within a shorter time frame.
 - Requests for planned personal leave shall be approved based upon staffing needs and to insure proper and adequate patient care. Except as provided in Section 3 herein, requests for leave will be granted based on date of request.
- B. An unplanned absence is defined as time taken off by the employee which is unscheduled and not approved in advance by the department head, supervisor, or other designee. In order to receive pay for hours not worked due to an unplanned absence, employees must provide timely notification prior to the start of the scheduled shift of work and a valid reason given to their supervisor or authorized designee as outlined in the Personnel Administrative Policy #358. Written documentation of illness will not be required unless a pattern of unplanned leave utilization exists. Personal leave hours accrue from date of hire.
- C. Full-time employees are eligible for paid personal leave hours after the completion of six (6) months of continuous service or, in the case of part-time employees, after six (6) months equivalent of service (1040 hours).
 - New full-time employees may take up to a maximum of forty (40) hours of paid planned personal leave during the first six (6) months of employment. However, the number of hours taken will be deducted from the total amount of hours accrued after the employee completes six (6) months of continuous service or its equivalent. Should the employee resign or be terminated prior to the end of the first six (6) months, the dollar equivalent of the number of hours taken will be deducted from the employee's final paycheck.
- D. Full-time employees shall earn paid personal leave hours as follows:

- During the first five (5) years of employment, 0.1115 hours shall be earned for each hour in pay status per pay period up to a maximum of 8.920 hours (80 hours or more in pay status). This approximates 29 days per year. However, a full-time employee shall not be eligible to receive payment for personal leave days until after the first six (6) months of employment, except as outlined in Section 2.
- In order to recognize longevity of service, employees with more than five (5) years of continuous service shall earn personal leave hours as follows:

Year of Employment	Per Hr. In Pay Status	Max. Hours Earned Per Pay Period	Equivalent Day* Earned Per Year
6th	.1154	9.232	30
7th	.1192	9.536	31
8th	.1231	9.848	32
9th	.1269	10.152	33
10th-15th	.1308	10.464	34
16th	.1346	10.768	35
17th	.1385	11.080	36
18th	.1423	11.384	37
19th	.1462	11.696	38
20th on	.1500	12.000	39

^{*}Calculations are based on 8-hour shifts.

- 3. Full-time employees who are assigned to work regularly scheduled ten (10) hour shifts shall earn an additional twenty-two (22) hours of personal leave per year (shorter periods of time will be prorated). Full-time employees who are assigned to work regularly scheduled twelve and a half (12½) hour shifts shall earn an additional thirty-eight point five (38.5) hours of personal leave per year (shorter or longer periods of time will be prorated).
- E. Part-time employees shall earn personal leave hours based on actual hours worked:
 - 1. During the first 10,400 hours (first five (5) full-year equivalents, FTE), 0.1115 hours shall be earned for every hour worked, up to a maximum accrual rate of 8.920 hours. However, part-time employees shall not be eligible to receive payment for personal leave until they have worked at least 1040 hours (six (6) month equivalent).
 - 2. Employees who have worked more than five (5) full-year equivalents shall earn paid personal leave hours as follows:

10.401-12.480 1154	Hours Worked	Hours Earned Per Hour Worked
10,401-12,430 12,481-14,560 11,4561-16,640 1231 16,641-18,720 1269 18,721-31,200 1308 31,201-33,280 1346 33,281-35,360 35,361-37,440 37,441-39,520 39,521 on 1500	14,561-16,640 16,641-18,720 18,721-31,200 31,201-33,280 33,281-35,360 35,361-37,440 37,441-39,520	.1231 .1269 .1308 .1346 .1385 .1423 .1462

- F. Personal leave hours shall be paid at the employee's regular shift rate of pay. Personal leave hours may be accumulated up to a maximum of five-hundred (500) hours.
- G. Personal leave hours shall be used during the first three (3) consecutive scheduled workdays (to maximum of twenty-four (24) hours) of any spell of illness. After 3 years, 16 hours of personal leave are used for illness and after 10 years, 8 hours of personal leave are used; these personal leave hours shall be defined as unplanned absences. If sufficient personal leave hours are not available to cover a spell of illness, any uncovered portion shall be without pay, until the benefits of the Extended Illness Leave Plan are in effect.

H. Personal Leave/Vacation Accrual

- 1. Employees who have at least 80 hours of unused Personal Leave/ Vacation as of the election date (from December 1 through December 21) of any calendar year (the "Election Year") may voluntarily elect to receive cash instead of 20 to 80 hours (for employees with less than 10 years of continuous service) or up to 120 hours (for employees with 10 years or more of continuous service) total for the year, but for no more hours than they may accrue in the next calendar year (the "Accrual Year"). The election must be made in increments of one hour. Based on the employee's request, cash-out payments will be distributed in the last paycheck in June and/or December of the Accrual Year.
- 2. An election to cash-out Personal Leave/Vacation hours that may accrue in the Accrual Year must be made before the beginning of the Accrual Year from December 1 through December 21 of the Election Year.
- The employee must make the election to cash-out Personal Leave/ Vacation hours that he or she will accrue in the Accrual Year in writing, on a cash-out election form provided by Jackson Health. The election must state the number of Personal Leave/ Vacation hours to be cashed out.
- All elections are irrevocable once made. Employees cannot increase or decrease the number of Personal Leave/Vacation hours they will cash out in the Accrual Year after December 21 of the Election Year.
- 5. Payment of cashed-out hours will be made in the last pay period of June and/or December of the Accrual Year at the rate of pay at the time of payment. Upon employment separation for any reason before the end of the Accrual Year, all accrued personal leave hours, including hours designated as cash out, shall be paid out in accordance with Section I., below.
- 6. During the accrual year, accrued time shall be allocated on a pro rata basis between cash out and Personal Leave/Vacation time on the same percentage basis as the cash out amount is to the potential maximum accrual. (Example: If an employee elects to cash out 80 hours and is entitled to accrue a maximum of 240 hours in the accrual year, personal leave accruals shall be allocated 33.33% toward cash out and 66.67% toward the leave balance.)
- 7. Elections to cash out leave must be made on a tax (calendar) year basis.
- 8. Employees are solely responsible for assuring appropriate leave

balances for their personal needs. An employee will be without pay (out of pay status) if appropriate leave balances or other sources of payment or leave are not applicable.

- Upon separation of employment, the employee shall be eligible for payment of accrued personal leave account hours.
 - To qualify for a 100% terminal benefit from the personal leave account, a
 minimum of six (6) months of continuous employment (or its equivalent
 for part-time employees) must be completed. Further, for job basis
 employees a minimum of four weeks advance notice of voluntary
 resignation must be given and two weeks for hourly paid employees,
 unless extenuating circumstances warrant a shorter time frame.
 - 2. An employee who has been discharged after a minimum of six (6) months of continuous employment shall be paid 100% of terminal benefits.
 - 3. The terminal leave benefit for accrued personal leave account shall be paid at the employee's base rate.
- J. Christmas & New Year Holiday Requests

If staffing requires, each employee will be expected to work one or the other of the two holidays in all units that are open during these holidays.

These holiday requests are unique. Requests for time off during the two pay periods around Christmas will be granted fairly and rotationally regardless of seniority or timing of request. No one person will be eligible to receive more than one week off at the expense of other employees not receiving time off, thus allowing everyone to get a week off if requested. Time off greater than one week not prohibited if logistically possible. Departmental supervisors will begin this request process each fall by posting notice to their employees that requests are due. Adequate notice should be allotted to allow all employees time to submit requests per "Clairvia". Seniority will be used as a tie breaker if necessary.

Thanksgiving time off is also done fairly & rotationally.

Section 2. Extended Illness Leave Program

In recognition of the employee's need for income protection against extended illness, an extended illness leave plan is established for each permanent employee. The number of hours earned and used by the employee shall be accounted for through the employee's extended illness leave account.

- A. To be eligible for payment of extended illness leave, the employee must fulfill the following requirements:
 - A full-time employee shall have completed six (6) months of full-time employment.
 - 2. A part-time employee shall have accumulated 1040 hours worked.
 - An employee shall give timely notice to the appropriate department head, supervisor, or other designee of the inability to report to work due to illness. The department head, supervisor, or other designee shall be kept informed on a daily basis (unless otherwise instructed by the supervisor) of the employee's physical condition and the expected date of return.

- A physician's certificate describing the disability and the inability to work may be required before approval will be given for payment of extended illness leave hours.
- B. A full-time employee shall accrue 0.024 hours extended illness leave for each hour in pay status per pay period up to a maximum of 1.850 hours per pay period, not to exceed forty-eight (48) hours per year.
- C. A part-time employee shall accrue 0.024 hours extended illness leave for every hour worked, up to a maximum of 1.850 hours per pay period, not to exceed forty-eight (48) hours per year.
- An unlimited number of days may be accumulated in the extended illness leave account.
- E. Extended illness leave shall be paid at the employee's regular shift rate of pay.
- F. Payment for extended illness leave for employees with less than three (3) years of service shall begin on the fourth (4) consecutive working day of a spell of illness. The first three (3) consecutive working days to a maximum of twenty-four (24) hours of illness shall be paid out of the personal leave account, if available. The three (3) working days, twenty-four (24) hour deductible will be waived for immediate family critical illness and an employee's illness requiring hospitalization. After three (3) full years of employment, payment for extended illness shall begin on the third (3) consecutive working day or after sixteen (16) hours of a spell of illness. After ten (10) full years of employment, payment for extended illness shall begin on the second (2) consecutive working day or after eight (8) hours of a spell of illness.

Extended illness payment shall begin on the first scheduled working day of the illness under the following conditions:

1. Any illness requiring hospitalization, or

Section

- 2. Employee is seen in out-patient care center for out-patient surgery, or
- Occupational diseases or injuries sustained prior to receiving Workers Compensation, or
- 4. Continuing illness when employee attempts to return to work too soon.
- G. For critical illness in the immediate family, an employee is entitled to five (5) days paid extended illness leave per leave year.

Effective upon ratification, employees hired prior to October 1, 2017, Employees with less than thirty (30) years full-time PHT/County employment who retire or resign from the PHT will be eligible to receive payment for up to a maximum of 1,000 hours of accrued extended illness leave at the employee's current rate of pay at time of separation, excluding any shift differential, prorated in accordance with the following schedule:

```
Less than 10 years -No Payment
Section10 yrs. but less than 11 yrs.
Section11 yrs. but less than 12 yrs.
Section12 yrs. but less than 13 yrs.
Section13 yrs. but less than 14 yrs.
Section14 yrs. but less than 15 yrs.
Section15 yrs. but less than 16 yrs.
Section15 yrs. but less than 16 yrs.
```

```
Section16 yrs. but less than 17 yrs. Section17 yrs. but less than 18 yrs.
                                               - 55%
                                               - 60%
Section 18 yrs. but less than 19 yrs.
                                               - 65%
                                               - 70%
Section 19 yrs. but less than 20 yrs.
Section20 yrs. but less than 21 yrs.
                                               - 75%
Section21 yrs. but less than 22 yrs.
                                               - 77.5%
Section22 yrs. but less than 23 yrs.
                                               - 80%
                                               - 82.5%
Section 23 yrs. but less than 24 yrs.
Section24 yrs. but less than 25 yrs.
                                               - 85%
Section25 yrs. but less than 26 yrs. Section26 yrs. but less than 27 yrs.
                                               - 87.5%
                                               - 90%
Section27 yrs. but less than 28 yrs.
Section28 yrs. but less than 29 yrs.
                                               - 92.5%
                                               - 95%
Section29 yrs. but less than 30 yrs.
                                               - 97.5%
```

Effective upon ratification, employees hired prior to October 1, 2017, who retire after 30 years of full-time PHT/County employment, will be eligible to receive 100% payment of their full balance of accrued extended illness leave. Such payment will be made at the employee's current rate of pay at the time of retirement, excluding any shift differential and will not be subject to any maximum number of hours.

Effective upon ratification, employees hired after September 30, 2017, will accrue extended illness hours in accordance with this Section, but shall not be eligible to receive payment for any accrued extended illness hours upon separation.

Section 3. Vacation Requests

A. Annual Vacation Scheduling Procedure

The annual vacation leave period will be January through December. The vacation scheduling procedure shall be as follows:

- Leave request forms will be distributed with a sample copy of the upcoming year's vacation calendar by October 1st.
- 2. Leave request forms shall be returned by employees by November 1st.
- Annual vacation calendars will be published and posted by December 1st.
- 4. Employees may request any two vacation periods, designating them as "first plan" and "second plan." Although forty (40) hour blocks of vacation are preferable for scheduling convenience, intermittent vacation (in periods of 8 hours or more each) may be scheduled.
- 5. Employees will be granted eighty (80) hours of vacation yearly based on this vacation scheduling procedure. Every possible effort will be made to accommodate a longer period of time if requested by the employee.
- 6. Vacation periods will be scheduled by unit seniority for the first eighty (80) hours of each employee's vacation schedule for the year. Remaining vacation will be scheduled on a "first come, first served" basis, based on patient care needs. All employees (except those who have not completed their probationary period as of January 1st of the upcoming year), will be encouraged to schedule and take at least forty (40) hours of vacation each calendar year.
- Employees whose forms are not returned by November 1st will have vacation scheduled for the upcoming year on the "first come, first served" basis mentioned above.

B. Other Vacation Requests

At all other times during the vacation year, requests will be scheduled on a "first come first served" basis. Vacation requests should be submitted forty (40) days in advance unless extenuating circumstances give rise to emergency requests. Response to vacation requests under this paragraph will be in writing, and will be provided to the employee no later than fourteen (14) calendar days after the date of submission.

Section 4. Leave Without Pay

- A. Permanent employees, with the approval of their department head, may be granted a leave of absence without pay for a period not to exceed one (1) year for sickness or disability, to engage in a course of study or other good and sufficient reason which is considered in the best interest of County service.
- B. Employees may be granted leave under this section to serve as full-time representatives of the Union or to enable them to take appointments in the exempt service.
- A leave of absence without pay for religious holidays may be granted by the department head.
- All requests for extensions of leaves without pay beyond one (1) year must be approved or disapproved by the department head and the director of Human Resources.
- E. Employees will be allowed to maintain forty (40) hours in their personal leave bank while on approved leave without pay.

Section 5. Bereavement Leave

Full-time employees who have completed nine (9) pay periods of County/PHT service will be granted three (3) days of emergency bereavement leave with pay in the event of a death in the immediate family. Immediate family is defined as the employee's spouse, and employee's or spouse's children, mother, father, sister, brother, grandfather or grandmother, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, or upon proof of any person in the general family whose ties would be normally considered immediate and living within the same household. For the purposes of this section "spouse" shall be understood to include a significant other living within the same household. Bereavement leave shall have no relationship to travel time or qualified use of any other leave time that may be due or useable by the employee.

Section 6. Military Leave

The Employer is governed by Federal and State law concerning military leave and all employees represented by this contract shall receive the benefits of such laws.

Section 7. Voting

The Employer agrees to allow each employee who meets the conditions set forth below reasonable time off with pay, not to exceed one (1) hour, to vote in each local and general election. Voting time will be scheduled in such a fashion as to not interfere with normal work production, however, the Employer shall attempt to schedule this time off at either the beginning or end of an employee's work shift. The location of the employee's precinct and the employee's work schedule shall be considered in scheduling time off. Whenever possible, scheduling of such voting time will be posted as early as ten (10) working days prior to the date of the election.

CONDITIONS

A. The employee must be a registered voter; and

- B. Must be scheduled for a shift of at least eight (8) hours duration on election day; and
- C. More than one-half (½) of the hours of the scheduled shift must be between 7:00 A.M. and 7:00 P.M. on election day.

Section 8. Jury Duty

Employees who are called to serve on jury duty or to testify as witnesses under subpoena will be excused from work and will be paid their regular salary for the duration of this service. To be excused, employees should present official notice of jury duty or subpoena to their immediate supervisor.

An employee who is subpoenaed by a private party to a suit and testifies while being excused from duty with pay may accept a witness fee, but must turn it over to the hospital properly endorsed. However, jury fees shall be retained by the employee.

Section 9. Administrative Leave

The present policy regarding the granting of administrative leave for job basis nurses will be continued. This policy provides for the granting of four (4) personal administrative days (PAD) off with pay to job basis employees (not hour for hour) who have worked in excess of their normal work schedule. These four (4) PAD days are available October 1 of each fiscal year and must be used by September 30 of the same fiscal year.

Beginning October 1, 2017, the annual holiday administrative day will be discontinued.

Section 10. Leaves for Union Business

- A. Leaves of absence without pay for periods not to exceed one (1) year shall be granted to the equivalent hours of up to nine (9) bargaining unit employees in order to accept positions with the Union. The Union shall make written application for such leaves thirty (30) days in advance, may not make application for more than one (1) FTE from any one (1) unit during the same period, and no more than one employee from the unit may be released at any given time. Employees granted such leaves shall continue to accrue bargaining unit seniority during the term of their leave. Employees returning before or at three (3) months shall return to their former unit and position. After three (3) but within twelve (12) months, employees shall return to a comparable position.
- B. Leaves of absence without pay for periods not to exceed one (1) week shall be granted to bargaining unit members to attend Union functions. The total number of person-weeks allowable under this paragraph shall not exceed ten (10) weeks per year. The Union shall make written application for such leaves sixty (60) days in advance. Employees granted such leaves shall continue to accrue bargaining unit seniority and, upon return, shall assume their former unit and position.
- C. Duly selected Union unit representatives and Officers shall be allowed leave with pay in order to attend Union training conferences. The total amount of leave with pay granted to employees under this paragraph shall not exceed fifty-five (55) working days in any calendar year. The Employer shall be given thirty (30) days notice of any such training conferences together with a list of those attending. Employees granted such leaves shall continue to accrue bargaining unit seniority and, upon return, shall assume their former unit and position. Leaves granted under this paragraph (C) shall be counted as time worked for the purpose of calculating overtime pay.
- D. Leaves of absence/release time with pay shall be granted to Union

representatives to perform Union roles and responsibilities. The total amount of this leave shall not exceed 300 days per calendar year. Employees granted such leave shall continue to accrue bargaining unit seniority and, upon return, shall return to their former unit and position, if available. If the former position is eliminated, the employee will be returned to a comparable position within the PHT. The Union will provide the Employer with thirty (30) days notice and will specify the length of release time.

- E. No more than one person from the same unit shall be released for more than thirty (30) days simultaneously, without mutual agreement.
- F. The Union President will be granted full time release from duty with full pay and benefits, including all benefits and compensation due under the SEIU/PHT contract and PHT policies and procedures.

ARTICLE XIV - FULL-TIME WEEKEND SHIFTS

The Employer may offer employees full-time weekend positions with such employees working twelve and one-half (12 1/2) hour shifts every Friday, Saturday, and Sunday, or Saturday, Sunday, and Monday, at the rate appropriate for their shift position and experience. These employees will be paid for forty (40) hours and will accrue and receive all benefits, and rights as full-time employees. Employees who work the weekend schedule are expected to do so for at least six (6) continuous months and on at least twenty-four (24) weekends. It is understood and agreed that applications for all full-time weekend positions shall initially be limited to RNs currently employed, and newly-hired RNs should not be oriented into these positions as long as there are qualified nurses who have applied for them.

The parties have agreed on the following guidelines for the full-time weekend shift:

- A. If an RN wishes to work the Modified Weekend Plan, the employee's request should be made in writing to the unit Nurse Manager.
- B. Request to work the Modified Weekend Plan will be approved based on the date the request is received by the Nurse Manager with seniority prevailing where date of application is equal.
- C. The availability of weekend shifts will be determined based on staffing and retention needs. Nurse requests to implement the full time weekend shift will not be unreasonably denied. Available positions will be offered and filled based on unit seniority.
- Both day and night shifts will be available. The numbers of RN's permitted to work the plan will be determined by the Director of Patient Care Services based on staffing needs.

The plan has been advertised to recruit RN's. The RN will start working the plan upon final approval by the Director of Patient Care Services. The Nurse Manager and RN will note the start date on the time sheet.

Any RN, who is currently working three 12-hour shifts on the same weekend shifts specified in the plan, will automatically be placed on the weekend plan as a full-time employee.

- G. The RNs will not be required to sign a contract. The Collective Bargaining Agreement language defines the time frame in which the RN is expected to work the Modified Weekend Plan.
- H. Trades not involving overtime may be allowed with approval of the Nurse Manager and indicated appropriately on the time card.

- Overtime will start after 36 hours. (The work week of the weekend plan employee).
- Educational hours may be taken at the RN's discretion upon approval by the appropriate supervisor.
- K. Nurse Educators will make arrangements for unit in-services. Staff meetings may be held on the weekend as determined by the supervisor.
- L. Nurses working the Modified Weekend Plan will only receive the weekend shift differential for hours worked between 7:00 a.m. on Saturday and 7:00 a.m. on Monday.
- M. If both holidays (Christmas and New Year's) fall on a weekend, the employee will receive one holiday off, upon request, providing staffing permits. If the holiday falls on the employee's day off, the employee will have the choice of taking the day off or volunteering to work.
- N. Employees will be subject to all applicable contract provisions, policies, procedures, practices, administrative orders and personnel rules unless specifically excluded.
- O. For purposes of payment and use of all leave time, the actual weekend shifts will be 13.3 hours for each of the weekend days/nights and 13.3 for the 3rd weekday or night shift.

ARTICLE XV - EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES

Section 1. Probationary Periods

The first six (6) months of full-time continuous employment shall be the probationary period. After successful completion of the probationary period, the nurse shall be considered a permanent employee unless specifically advised by the Employer. The Employer retains the right to terminate probationary nurses without notice or pay in lieu of notice. Probationary nurses are not required to give notice of intention to terminate. Probationary nurses are, however, requested to give two (2) weeks notice. The probationary period may be extended at the option of the Employer provided that the total probationary period may not exceed one (1) year, and the employee has agreed to the extension. The employee's agreement shall be in writing.

Section 2. Lounge Areas

Present lounge space will be maintained and the Employer agrees to provide adequate lounge space, or equivalent lounge space in all new facilities.

Section 3. Work in Higher Classification

Any bargaining unit member temporarily assuming the duties of a higher position such as Charge Nurse or Associate Nurse Manager will receive a two dollar and fifty cents (\$2.50) increase per hour above his/her regular hourly rate for a minimum of four (4) or more continuous hours worked in the higher position. Any bargaining unit member temporarily assuming the duties of a Preceptor will receive a one dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) increase per hour for a minimum of four (4) or more continuous hours worked in this position.

Any nurse, except an Associate Nurse Manager, temporarily promoted to the "Acting Nurse Manager" status will receive a two (2) step pay increase above his/ her regular rate of pay for the entire period that he/she works in that status. The Associate Nurse Manager will be entitled to receive the two (2) step pay increase only when the assignment is for more than two (2) consecutive pay periods. If the assignment exceeds two pay periods, a PAM approved by the Division Director/Vice

President must be submitted to Human Resources. The Acting Nurse Manager will be a job basis employee and will not be entitled to overtime pay. Any nurse temporarily promoted to an Acting Nurse Manager will not lose his/her shift differential.

Section 4. Classification Appeal

- A. Whenever an employee feels there is just cause to appeal a classification, the employee may apply for a review of the classification in writing to the immediate supervisor.
- B. Such a request, including a job description prepared by the employee shall be forwarded to their Chief Nursing Officer by the employee's supervisor.
- C. Within fifteen (15) working days of receipt of request, a meeting will be convened between the Chief Nursing Officer or designee and the Employee and the employee's representative.
- D. Within thirty (30) working days of such receipt for request of reclassification, the Senior Vice President/Chief Nursing Executive or designee shall render a decision.
- E. If the employee is not satisfied with the decision, the employee may within ten (10) working days request a hearing by the director of Human Resources. At the hearing, the employee may be accompanied by a representative of the employee's choosing and may produce any documents and evidence to support the claim for reclassification. The director of Human Resources will explain the basis for the decision in the event the request is denied. The director of Human Resources shall hold such hearing within thirty (30) days of request.
- F. The director of Human Resources' decision shall be rendered within thirty (30) days and shall be final subject to review by the President of the Public Health Trust. In the event the request for reclassification is upheld, the employee shall receive appropriate compensation beginning with the pay period that the original request was initiated in writing. For purposes of this Article, employees relieving for vacation, short-term illness and emergency leaves of absence will not be eligible to apply for reclassification.

Section 5. Employee's File

No performance evaluation, Record of Counseling, or corrective action notification, or any record of formal or informal counseling, shall be considered to be part of an employee's official record unless the employee has been offered or given a copy and has been afforded the opportunity to sign the document or to add the employee's written disagreement to it.

Upon prior request, employees shall have access to their personnel files. Nothing will be placed in an employee's file without knowledge of the employee. Employees shall have the right to attach written comments to items in their file and these comments shall become part of the official record. Employees may obtain one (1) copy of any item(s) in their file.

Employees who request in writing to be notified by the Personnel Administrator when anyone other than a County or PHT employee has received access to their file shall be so informed.

Section 6. Evaluation of Work Performance

A. Each nurse will receive an evaluation of her work performance at the end of the first six (6) months of probationary employment. Thereafter, nurses will receive

an annual performance evaluation with recurrent touchpoints to discuss progress and attainment of goals. Regular part-time and per diem nurses will also receive a similar yearly performance evaluation.

- B. The evaluators are ones who make frequent observations of the nurse's performance and share responsibility for the nurse's professional growth and development.
- C. The evaluator, oriented to the purpose and method of evaluation, will be the immediate supervisor of the nurse being evaluated. For ARNPs, the evaluation will be in conjunction with both the Nursing Supervisor and the Medical Director and the appropriate administrator. For nurses' whose immediate supervisor is not a Registered Nurse, a Director of Patient Care Services or designee will be assigned as the reviewer.
- D. The evaluator discusses the evaluation in conference with the nurse who has the right to make written comments on the form. A copy of the completed evaluation, signed and dated by both parties, is given to the nurse after it has been reviewed by the reviewer.
- E. If the evaluation is less than satisfactory, the employee shall be offered advice and counsel on how to improve performance and may be reevaluated within ninety (90) days.
- F. A permanent employee who receives a performance rating which is below standards may appeal the evaluation, in accordance with the grievance and arbitration procedure provided under Articles VII and VIII of the Agreement.
- G. When an employee is eligible for a step increase, it shall not be delayed beyond the employee's anniversary date if a supervisor does not complete the evaluation in a timely manner.
- H. If an employee's supervisor is a non-RN, the Chief Nursing Officer will designate a nurse to serve as the reviewer of the evaluation. The appointed reviewer shall discuss the evaluation with the nurse being evaluated before signing off.

Section 7. Promotions and Demotions

- A. It is the policy of the Employer to encourage and give priority to promotions from within, thereby providing all employees with the opportunity to aspire to higher level positions within the PHT's operations.
- B. "Promotion" shall be defined as the movement of an employee from a job classification to another job classification where the difference between the Step 1 hourly rate of the new position and the Step 1 hourly rate of the previously held position is at least 4.2%.

All promotions will involve a minimum increase of one (1) step except promotions to Associate Nurse Manager or Nurse Manager which will involve a minimum increase of two (2) steps. For purposes of clarification, a one (1) Step increase cannot be less than 4.2%.

All promotions will involve a six (6) month trial period. Permanent status employees who are promoted and serving a trial period shall continue to retain their rights under this agreement.

Permanent status employees who are promoted and fail to successfully complete their (6) six month trial period due to performance issues will be offered a vacant position in the previously held permanent status classification, if available, or may bump a probationary/trial employee in that classification.

C. "Demotion" shall be defined as the movement of an employee from a job classification to another job classification where the difference between the Step 1 hourly rate of the new position is a reduction of 4.2% or greater from the Step 1 hourly rate of the previously held position.

All demotions will involve a minimum decrease of one (1) Step except demotions from Associate Nurse Manager or Nurse Manager positions which will involve a minimum decrease of two (2) steps. For purposes of clarification, a one (1) Step decrease must be at least 4.2%.

- D. "Lateral" shall be defined as the movement of an employee from one position to another where there is an identical pay scale or the difference between Step 1 rates is less than 4.2%. Employees will be transitioned to the new position at the next highest step, so long as it is less than a 4.2% increase.
- E. For layoffs or reassignments that are considered demotions, the employee will transition to the same or next lowest step of the new pay scale.
- F. An employee who has been demoted as a result of a layoff or reassignment, and subsequently promoted to the previous or similar position, will have their salary history taken into consideration when determining the new rate.
- Any deviation from the rules referenced above will be noticed to the Union.

Section 8. Longevity Bonus

Annual longevity bonus payments will be made in accordance with the following schedule:

 Upon completion of 15 years of full-time continuous County Service, 1.5% bonus payment of base salary.

Upon completion of 16 years of full-time continuous County Service, 1.6% bonus payment of base salary.

Upon completion of 17 years of full-time continuous County Service, 1.7% bonus payment of base salary.

Upon completion of 18 years of full-time continuous-County Service, 1.8% bonus payment of base salary.

Upon completion of 19 years of full-time continuous County Service, 1.9% bonus payment of base salary.

 Upon completion of 20 years of full-time continuous County Service, 2.0% bonus payment of base salary.

Upon completion of 21 years of full-time continuous County Service, 2.1% bonus payment of base salary.

Upon completion of 22 years of full-time continuous County Service, 2.2% bonus payment of base salary.

Upon completion of 23 years of full-time continuous County Service, 2.3% bonus payment of base salary.

Upon completion of 24 years of full-time continuous County Service, 2.4% bonus payment of base salary.

C. Upon completion of 25 years of full-time continuous County Service, 2.5% bonus payment of base salary.

Upon completion of 26 years of full-time continuous County Service, 2.6% bonus payment of base salary.

Upon completion of 27 years of full-time continuous County Service, 2.7% bonus payment of base salary.

Upon completion of 28 years of full-time continuous County Service, 2.8% bonus payment of base salary.

Upon completion of 29 years of full-time continuous County Service, 2.9% bonus payment of base salary.

Upon completion of 30 years or more of full-time continuous County Service, 3.0% bonus payment of base salary.

The minimum amount of payment will be \$350.00.

Full-time employees who accept a part-time position and thereafter accept a full-time position will have their years of service in the full-time position recognized for purposes of receiving their longevity bonus as long as their service is continuous. Years of service in a part-time position will not count towards the longevity bonus.

Section 9. Educational Bonus

All full-time unit employees upon certification and/or recertification in their area of practice shall receive a one-time payment of \$250.00 upon receipt of the certification. All full-time unit employees with a Baccalaureate degree in nursing will receive a one-time payment of \$520.00 upon receipt of their degree providing the employee has not already received this bonus.

All full-time permanent employees as of June 3, 1997 who complete a Master's degree in a nursing program by September 30, 1999 will receive a \$1,040.00 bonus annually following receipt of the degree. All full-time employees with a Master's degree in nursing hired after June 3, 1997 and all full-time unit employees who earn their Master's degree in nursing after September 30, 1999 shall receive a one-time \$1,040.00 bonus upon receipt of their degree providing the employee has not already received this bonus.

These bonuses are not compounded in any one year. Eligible employees will receive only the higher bonus to which they are entitled.

All bonuses and payments for certifications are payable upon completion of the initial probationary period.

Section 10. Reference Books and Periodicals

A. To assure a high quality of patient care, each division and/or each agency where employees perform duties, will have a designated area for reference books and current periodicals, relating to patient care given in the area or agency.

Employees should submit their requests for certain books and publications for their use. Each agency or division will have a minimum of two (2) professional periodicals. These will be available to employees on all tours of duty.

Employees shall have access to the University of Miami Calder Library for reference books and periodicals. With prior approval from the employee's supervisor, the Employer agrees to pay for Medline and copying service charges incurred by the employee.

Section 11. Parking Facilities

The Employer will make every effort to provide adequate security in all parking facilities owned by the PHT especially during change of shifts.

The Employer will continue its practice of providing one (1) month free parking for all employees whose cars are vandalized or stolen.

Employees are encouraged to contact the Security Department for after-hours escort to and from parking facilities.

Section 12. New Equipment and Procedures

In-service training regarding new equipment or procedures and training required by a licensing agency will be provided in all areas on all tours of duty.

Section 13. Drug Discount

Employees may purchase drugs at the pharmacy at a rate of cost plus 10%. A surcharge of one dollar (\$1.00) will be added for each visit to the pharmacy for prescriptions for one (1) person.

Section 14. Tuition/Conference Reimbursement

All eligible full time bargaining unit employees employed by the Employer will receive one hundred per cent (100%) tuition reimbursement in accordance with the established policies and procedures maintained by the Employer. This reimbursement may be used for continuing education, seminars, conferences and/or certification modules, providing it is approved in advance by the Department of Education and Development.

All eligible regular part-time bargaining unit employees will receive 50% tuition reimbursement in accordance with the established policies and procedures maintained by the Employer.

Section 15. Job Specification Language

- A. No employee covered by this agreement shall be required to do work outside the employee's classification, except under emergency conditions as declared by the President of the PHT, County Manager or their authorized representatives.
- B. The Union shall have a representative on the Performance Standards Committee. Whenever there is a proposed change in the job specification or title of a class within this Bargaining Unit from this Committee, the Employer shall notify the Union of the proposed changes in job duties. The Union shall receive a copy of the current job specification and the proposed job specification.
- C. Upon notification, the Union may request to meet and negotiate over the impact of such changes on unit employees as provided in Article V, Section 2.
- D. Proposed changes shall be publicized among employees.

It is understood by the parties that the duties enumerated in job specifications are not always specifically described and are to be construed liberally.

It is understood by the parties that the duties to be added in the proposed change in the job specification shall bear a reasonable relationship to the duties and responsibilities currently contained therein. Changes proposed by the Employer other than the addition of new duties, shall be reasonable under the circumstances. The Union may make proposals to the Director of Human Resources. The decision of the Director of Human Resources shall be final, subject to review by the President of the PHT.

Section 16. Rubella and Hepatitis-B Vaccine

Rubella and Hepatitis-B vaccine will be offered to all nurses as part of pre-employment physical as well as to those nurses currently employed. Appropriate titers will be drawn as necessary.

Section 17. Injuries, Rehabilitation and Reorientation

A. Consistent with PHT and County policies, if a nurse is injured while on duty, the

Employer will make every effort to assist the employee in making application for worker's compensation. In the event the injury is of a nature which will inhibit the employee's ability to perform the employee's duties, the Employer will make every effort to rehabilitate and reorient the employee to perform duties of a different nature.

B. Eligible bargaining unit employees shall be entitled to eighty percent (80%) short-term disability leave benefits in accordance with coverage provided under the Miami-Dade County Code (Section 2-56.27.1).

Section 18. Child Care/Elderly Care

The parties agree that the provisions of quality, non-profit care facilities on site can have a beneficial impact on employee morale, absenteeism and turnover. Therefore, it is agreed that, if either party requests it during the six months prior to the expiration of this Agreement, the parties shall establish a joint Care Committee to study the feasibility of on-site care centers, including their costs and the degree of interest. The Committee shall present its findings and any recommendations to both parties at least sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of this Agreement.

Section 19. Scope of Nursing Practice

It is agreed that, except in emergency situations employees will not be expected to routinely perform duties outside the general scope of nursing practice. Consistent short staffing, whether of RNs or support personnel shall not be considered as emergency situations. The employer agrees to make a good faith effort to minimize non-nursing duties and to identify and reduce such duties.

Section 20. Referral and Recruitment Incentive Program

- In an effort to attract and retain qualified, experienced nurses for difficult to fill positions for the organization, the PHT may implement a recruitment incentive program for the purpose of providing cash incentives to recruit and retain newly hired, experienced staff for difficult to fill positions system-wide, excluding nursing homes, clinics, and CHS. "Difficult to fill position" is defined as a vacancy that has been posted for forty-five (45) days or greater. JHS will supply the Union with bi-weekly vacancy lists during the term of this agreement. The QNCD Partnership Committee will be responsible for monitoring implementation of this article.
- 2. To be eligible for recruitment incentives, new hires must have a minimum of three (3) years of direct experience in the specialty area identified; must meet all PHT employment screening requirement for the position applied for; and must accept a full-time position with the PHT. At the time of hire, new hires eligible for participation in the program will be required to execute and comply with all of the terms of the PHT's Recruitment Incentive Agreement. All current Jackson Health System employees are not eligible for the recruitment bonus.
- 3. Recruitment incentive pay will be in the amount of up to ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) and will be subject to distribution based upon the new hire meeting eligibility requirement as set forth generally, above, passing tenure-based milestones with the PHT, and experience in a related specialty as follows:
 - Prospective nurses with three to five years' experience in a related specialty will be eligible to receive five thousand (\$5,000) dollars in recruitment incentive pay;
 - b. Prospective nurses with greater than five to ten years' experience in a related specialty will be eligible to receive seven thousand five hundred (\$7,500) dollars in recruitment incentive pay;
 - c. Prospective nurses with more than ten years' experience in a related

specialty will be eligible to receive ten thousand (\$10,000) dollars in recruitment incentive pay.

- 4. Specifically, recruitment incentive pay will be disbursed to the eligible employee in four equal parts over a thirty-six (36) month period.
 - The first incentive payment will be disbursed immediately after satisfactory completion of six (6) months of continuous employment with the PHT.
 - The second incentive payment will be disbursed after the satisfactory completion of twelve (12) months of continuous employment with the PHT.
 - The third incentive payment will be disbursed after the satisfactory completion of twenty-four (24) months of continuous employment with the PHT.
 - d. The final incentive payment will be disbursed immediately after satisfactory completion of thirty-six (36) months of continuous employment with the PHT.
- PHT Talent Acquisition personnel will be responsible for monitoring the new hires/participant's employment throughout the distribution period for compliance with the incentive program's requirements.
- Any current employee of the Jackson Health System (exception: Executives, 6. Directors, Managers, Supervisors, Public Relations, and Human Resources staff) who refer a clinical staff nurse who is hired into a full-time position in specialty areas identified in this agreement will be eligible to receive a \$1,000 referral bonus. In order for the referring employee to receive the referral bonus, the new employee must have three years of experience in the specialty area and successfully complete an orientation period. The \$1000 payment will be made at the time the new employee completes orientation. Both the referring employee and new employee must be employed at the time of payout. If two or more employees refer the same candidate, the first referral form received and date stamped by Talent Acquisition will be eligible for the program, unless both parties agree to share the bonus. The referred employee cannot currently be in the recruitment database. If an employee refers multiple new candidates who are hired into full-time clinical staff nurse positions in specialty units identified in this agreement, the referring employee will be eligible for the referral bonus for each new employee referred who meets the criteria outlined in this agreement.
- 7. The PHT may stop the implementation of this referral and recruitment program at any time with thirty (30) days written notice to the union.

Section 21. Cellular Phone Program

Bargaining unit employees who have been required to carry a cellular phone to conduct PHT business because of the business needs of the PHT, including Nurse Managers and Case Managers, shall receive a monthly stipend of \$40.00 to be paid on an eligible employee's paycheck on a post-tax basis, subject to all required deductions. Bargaining unit employees who have been required to carry a cellular to conduct PHT business shall abide by PHT Policy and Procedure 232A.

ARTICLE XVI - VACANCIES, TRANSFERS, REASSIGNMENTS, UNIT MERGERS AND FILLING VACANCIES

Section 1. Shift Transfers, Posting and Filling of Vacancies and Reassignments

A. Shift Transfers. Recognizing that access to preferred shifts by nurses can make an important contribution to nurse morale and retention, the parties agree that all available shifts shall first be posted in the unit for a period of 7 days and made available to nurses within the unit by unit seniority.

- B. Posting of Vacancies. All unit available vacancies shall be posted in the unit and concurrently throughout all PHT facilities. If employees under paragraph A do not express interest in the vacancy within the first fourteen (14) days of posting, the vacancy shall continue to be posted on bulletin boards located throughout PHT facilities until a job offer is made by Recruitment Services. With written notice to the Union, the Employer may offer employment to an employee prior to the end of the fourteen (14) day posting period, provided that:
 - 1. More than one (1) vacancy exists in the unit.
 - 2. Priority for shift selection under A above is maintained.

Recruitment Services is responsible for posting all vacancies for which a personnel requisition has been submitted.

- C. Filling of Vacancies. During this posting period, current employees with the necessary qualifications will be given preference over outside applicants. When skill, competency and ability are considered substantially equal in the judgment of the Employer, seniority shall be the deciding consideration in filling vacancies. All employees who apply for a posted vacancy shall be advised of the vacancy status as soon as practical. An employee's current salary will not be a determining factor when considering employees for transfer.
- D. There will be no less than two (2) nor more than three (3) weeks' notice to the department from which an employee is transferred. In the event that the position being vacated is critical to the operation of the unit, the employee may be retained until such time as the employee is replaced, but for no more than sixty (60) days. However, for pay purposes, transfers will be effective at the beginning of the pay period following acceptance.
- E. An employee returning to a previous perman`ent status classification within one (1) month will be transferred to the employee's previous position and department unless the position has been abolished or has been filled by another employee with permanent status in the classification for that position. In the event the former position is not available, the returning employee will be offered a vacant position in that classification or will replace a probationary/trial employee in that classification.
- F. If it becomes necessary to reduce FTE's in a unit, the hospital will first seek volunteers in a unit. If there is an insufficient number of volunteers, affected employees will be reassigned in inverse order of hospital-wide seniority in the classification consistent with the reassignment procedure in Article XVIII, Section 1.

Section 2. Unit Mergers

When one or more units are merged, the following procedure will be utilized:

A. The unit seniority of all affected employees shall be maintained and merged into one new unit seniority list. Any shift selections or vacation scheduling in accordance with the Collective Bargaining Agreement will be based upon this merged seniority. B. In the event that a unit merger necessitates the elimination of any positions, the reassignment procedure will be followed and, unless there are volunteers, the employee with the least hospital-wide seniority in the affected classification of the new merged unit will be reassigned and/or offered the opportunity to voluntarily demote.

ARTICLE XVII

ORIENTATION, FLOATING, CROSS-TRAINING, CENTRAL STAFFING FLOAT POOL NURSES

Section 1. Orientation Types

A. Orientation is the introductory instruction concerning how to practice in a new clinical situation. Orientation is provided by the employer across all stages and continuums of employment and clinical practice. A nurse shall not be expected to take an assignment independently in any area of practice to which the employee does not have the competency to care for the patient(s).

SectionTypes of orientation include:

- 1. New employee orientation (for new hires at JHS) will include a generalized JHS, divisional, and unit specific orientation. Time frames may vary based on individual experience and the specialty area. A preceptor program whereby preceptors receive training will be used to guide orientation. Program standards of preceptorship include, but are not limited to: preceptor will not assume charge role when precepting, unless it is to train an orientee to that role; patient assignments will be considerate to meet the goals/standards for the orientee.
- Incumbent employee orientation is for JHS employees who transfer to a new unit and will include divisional and unit specific orientation based on experience.
- Cross training orientation is for those JHS employees who "float" to another unit on a temporary basis.-
- B. All three types of orientation include principles that assure the employee is prepared, competent and safe to practice according to the standards and skill competencies of the specific unit. All orientations for new employees or for employees who have never floated to specific units previously will include:
 - Clear goals and expectations specific to each unit. Mutually signed competency and checklist, the signing of which will not be unreasonably withheld or hinder patient care. Competencies and checklists are specific to the standards and skills required for the patient population;
 - Patient assignments congruent with attained competencies are not precluded by partially completed checklists;
 - A preceptor/mentor will be assigned to the nurse. Consistent preceptors is recommended;
 - 4. Competencies must be considered when covering assignments.

Section 2. Cross-training

Cross-training is the systematic process of providing training in different tasks or skills.

Cross-training will ensure that all necessary personnel successfully complete the unitspecific competencies to prepare the employee to care for specific patient populations. The Employer shall continue to have the authority to schedule an employee's cross-training consistent with the Division/Unit's staffing requirement. Volunteers will be cross-trained first. Checklists and competencies will be reviewed annually. In general, cross-training will happen in another unit and will not exceed twenty-four hours.

The QNCD Labor/Management Committee will develop a standardize format of all unit specific competencies/checklists in the JHS for all clinical areas (e.g., Holtz Children's Policy No. 06).

Section 3. Floating

Floating is the practice of temporarily reassigning nurses from their assigned areas and placing them elsewhere.

Standards for floating to a unit include:

- A. The employee is welcomed and introduced to the staff.
- B. The assignment is clear and reviewed with an assigned resource nurse.
- C. There are frequent check-ins with the resource nurse to assess the float nurses' progress and comfort.
- D. Near the end of the shift the float nurse will complete an evaluation of the experience which will be shared with both units for the purpose of improving the process.
- E. Floating will happen fairly and rotationally for employees who have been cross-trained according to the cross-training standards above.
- F. Assignments will be congruent with the employee's skills and experience and nurses will ideally be assigned a less acute patient assignment.
- G. Registered Nurses with less than 12 months experience in nursing will not be eligible to float out of their home base unit unless mutually agreed on.
- H. Float nurses will be given an assignment based on their level of skill, expertise and meeting the competency requirements for the patient assignment.
- Divisional/Unit specific competencies and skill checklist will dictate a nurses' ability to float.
- J. Agency/Travel and per diem nurses will be first to float.

Section 4. Central Staffing Float Pool Nurses

Central Staffing Float Pool Nurses are nurses who have been cross-trained to meet the staffing needs of Specific Units.

Terms and Conditions

- Jackson Health System (JHS) will determine the number of FTE's and shifts that are needed in the Float Pool. JHS may hire full time, part time, and per diem employees in the Float Pool.
- Applicants must have a minimum of one (1) year current experience and the requisite skills and ability to float to any unit(s) assigned.

Section 5. Pay Premium

A. A\$2.00 per hour premium will be paid when nurses are floated out of their home

campus to another campus or a facility outside of their home campus. When necessary to float a float pool nurse away from their home campus, the nurse will be chosen from a pre-established volunteer list. If there are no volunteers, assignments will be done based upon inverse seniority. The premium will only be paid for hours worked away from the home campus (including time spent traveling away from the home campus if floated during the course of a shift). Further, all nurses in the float pool cost code will receive \$2.00 per hour premium for all hours worked.

B. Non-Float Pool Nurses who float from their home base unit shall receive the \$2.00 per hour premium for hours spent floating when they float at least 50% of their hours worked in a pay period.

Jackson Health System reserves the right to adjust float pool pay premium as determined to be necessary to recruit, retain and remain competitive in the health care market. These rates will not be affected by any cost of living increase. The two dollar (\$2.00) premium shall not be decreased during the term of this agreement.

Jackson Health System has the sole right to determine the use of the Float Pool at any facilities within Jackson Health System.

Section 6. Extra Shift Bonus Program

Employees may be paid an extra shift bonus to work an unscheduled extra shift in any workweek in designated areas of the system when management determines that there is a critical need in those areas based on staffing. Opportunities for extra shift bonus dollars will be posted in each nursing unit. JHS agrees to provide the Union with a minimum of 24 hour's notice of its intention to start and/or stop this program. When activated, bonuses will be awarded as follows:

Eight-hour shift: \$40 Ten-hour shift: \$50 Twelve-hour shift: \$60

A partial shift of less than eight (8) hours but at least four (4) hours may be approved at a pro-rated rate.

Exclusions:

- Per Diem employees are not eligible for participation in the program;
- On-call and callback shift work is not applicable for the bonus.

ARTICLE XVIII

REASSIGNMENT, Layoffs, Recall and Reemployment Rights

Definitions:

Reassignment procedure is applicable when there is a reduction in FTE(s) in a unit and there are vacancies in the affected classification(s) on the same list.

Layoff procedure is applicable when there are no vacancies in the affected classification(s) on the same list.

Section 1. Reassignment Procedure

If it becomes necessary to reduce the FTEs in a unit, the hospital will first seek volunteers in the unit. If there is an insufficient number of volunteers, affected nurses will be reassigned in inverse order of hospital-wide seniority in the classification, consistent with the following reassignment procedure:

- A. Meeting dates will be scheduled with the Sr. Vice President, Chief Nursing Executive, the Director of Patient Care Services, Labor Relations and the Union to discuss the reassignment.
- B. Appropriate available positions on the affected list will be frozen.
- C. The Employer will notify the Union, in writing, of the affected unit(s), the affected nurses by name, hospital-wide seniority date by classification; the appropriate available positions in the affected classification and the effective date of reassignment.
- D. The number of volunteers in the affected classification(s) accepted from each affected unit(s) will not exceed the number of FTEs being reassigned from that unit. Volunteers from the affected unit(s) will be accepted on hospital-wide seniority basis in the classification(s).
- E. The volunteer reassignment process will generally be completed within two (2) weeks of notification to the employee(s). Notification of involuntary reassignments will be completed within seventy two (72) hours of completion of the voluntary process.
- F. Hospital-wide seniority in the classification(s) will prevail in the selection of the appropriate available positions.
- G. The unit seniority of the affected nurses shall be maintained and merged into one unit seniority list. Any shift selections or vacation scheduling in accordance with the Collective Bargaining Agreement will be based upon the merged seniority.
- H. This procedure will not be used in the layoff procedure of the collective bargaining agreement.

Section 2. Layoff Procedure

A. Layoff, defined, is the separation of an employee for lack of work or funds as determined by the Employer; or due to the reductions in or the contracting out of services, without fault or delinquency on the employees' part.

In the event of a layoff, employees will be laid-off and recalled in accordance with the procedures established herein.

B. The procedure will apply to full and regular part-time bargaining unit employees in the statuses of permanent, substitute, and probationary. Seniority points will be calculated for each affected employee. In calculating seniority points one (1) point will be assigned for each month of full-time service, one-half (0.5) point will be assigned for each month of part-time service. Points for months of service are simply totaled with the final number being the retention score.

All time spent on military leave of absence will be included in calculating seniority points. Seniority credit will be given to an employee who has volunteered for military service during peacetime (not eligible for military leave of absence), provided the employee is re-employed within ninety days of release from military service. Seniority credit will be given for the service time prior to and during the military service.

Qualified veterans will receive veterans' preference points equal to 5% of the highest seniority score. These points are added to the veteran's seniority score.

C. The Employer will make every effort to give sixty (60) days notice to the Union

of any decision to layoff unit members. No less than twenty-one (21) days written notice will be given to bargaining unit members who were laid-off or demoted. A copy of such notice will be simultaneously sent to the Union.

- D. In connection with the parties' commitment to the Reeducation and Skills Enhancement Program, for purposes of layoffs the parties have agreed to use two (2) lists, which are identified in Section 4.
- E. In the event of a layoff the Employer shall identify the unit(s) where FTE's are being reduced. These procedures include all affected nurses in the classifications represented by this CBA. Layoffs will be done in inverse order of seniority by classification, within the affected list(s). Employees in the statuses of temporary relief and per diem, on the affected list(s), will be terminated prior to any full-time or regular part-time employee in the bargaining unit being impacted by lay-off.

When a nurse(s) is/are laid off on a list, the employee(s) will first bump within their specialty area on the list. Only the least senior employee will leave their specialty area and bump into another specialty area within the affected list.

When a Nurse Manager, Associate Nurse Manager, or unit-based Nurse Educator classification is eliminated within a unit the affected employee may voluntarily opt to demote to another classification to remain in their unit.

When FTE(s) are eliminated and layoff procedure is implemented within the classification of Clinical Care Coordinator, Patient Placement, Nurse Educators, Wound Care, Infection Control, or Case Management, where the nurse is not unit-based, the affected employees will bump into the specialty area where they last held permanent status in another classification. Other examples may be identified and, if mutually agreed by the parties in writing, may be given the same consideration regarding bumping.

- F. Full time and regular part time employees on one list are not eligible to displace employees on the other list, unless they have held permanent status in a full time or part time job classification on the other list. Regular part time is defined as a minimum of twenty hours per pay period. Employees will automatically bump into any classification on the affected list(s), in which they previously held permanent status.
- G. During the twenty-one (21) day notice period, nurses who have been bumped shall be given five (5) calendar days to select, by hospital-wide seniority, a reassignment to a vacant position, if it exists, on the affected list(s). The union will be responsible for facilitating this process.
- H. Full time and part-time employees on the affected list(s) can only bump within the bargaining unit. It is understood that in a layoff, part-time employees may be required to move to full time status in order to exercise bumping rights. Reasonable efforts will be made to ensure that part-time employees may continue in part-time status. Full-time employees shall not be required to accept part-time positions.
- I. All time served in the higher classification will be credited as time served in lower classifications within the bargaining unit. Bargaining unit employees who previously held permanent status in classifications outside of this bargaining unit will be subject to the applicable layoff procedures of the classification to which they are displaced.
- J. For purposes of layoff only:

- Time served in these classifications in per diem status will not be considered. Time served as a Nurse 1 or Nurse 2 will count as time toward a Clinical Staff Nurse.
- 2. Time served as a Corrections Health Nurse I will count towards a Clinical Staff Nurse/Corrections Health Services classification. The time served as a Corrections Health Nurse II will count towards time in an equivalent Corrections Health Services classification, (e.g. Nurse Educator/ Corrections Health Services). Time served as an Administrative Nurse I will count towards an equivalent nurse classification. Time served as a Nurse III will count towards Clinical Care Coordinator, Enterostomal Therapist, and Nurse Educator classifications. Time served as a Nurse IV will count towards Clinical Nurse Specialist, Clinical Research Coordinator, Clinical Service Coordinator, Enterostomal Therapist Coordinator, Quality Management Education Coordinator and Trauma Coordinator classifications. Time served as an Associate Nurse Manager will count towards Clinical Resource Nurse, Officer of the Day-Emergency Services, and Patient Placement Coordinator classifications.
- Those nurses enrolled in Critical Care Internships or other specialty programs internships will be considered to be members of the Division/ Department sponsoring the program, rather than members of their previously assigned unit.
- 4. No bargaining unit employee on the affected list(s) shall be laid-off in lieu of maintaining a full-time equivalent traveler, agency, per diem, or TR nurse on the affected list(s). Following a layoff, per diem, TR and agency RNs may be used during the necessary transition time specifically to cover for orientation and cross-training that may be required as a result of layoff.
- K. Employees who have been displaced will be given priority consideration for other opportunities in PHT training programs and on-call/pool vacancies.
- L. The County and PHT agree that County employees cannot bump bargaining unit employees working for the PHT nor can PHT Bargaining Unit employees bump County Bargaining Unit employees.

Section 3. Recall Procedure

- A. Employees will be recalled in inverse order of layoff. Employees that have been laid-off will have recall rights to all full-time and part-time vacancies in their previously held position for a period of two (2) years from the date of layoff. If an employee is recalled and accepts a part-time position, he/she shall continue to have recall rights to a full-time position if one becomes available during the recall period.
- B. Once recalled, employees will have their previous seniority and extended ill bank restored. If employees received a payout of their extended ill upon layoff, once recalled they can purchase back their time.
- C. The Union will be notified of all employees on recall lists and vacancies, as offered and accepted.

Section 4. Layoffs, Recall and Reemployment Rights Lists

A	В
ADULT ICUs	MEDICAL FLOORS
TICU, MICU, NSICU, SICU, CCU	SW 5, SW 6, SW 7, SW 8
Jackson South Critical Care Service	WW 5, WW 7, WW 11, WW 12, Trauma
Jackson North Intensive Care Unit	4B, RCU
Nurse Float Pool - ICU	Nurse Float Pool – Med Surg (CSO)
PCUs/Stepdown	Jackson South 2 South
Trauma 3A, WW 6, Central 6, WW 11,	Jackson South 2 Tower
PTSU, WW9	Jackson North Medical/Surgical Unit
PEDIATRIC ICUs	Jackson North Ortho/Neuro/Rehab
PICU, NBICU (A,B, C & D) Main	Jackson North Telemetry
NBICU JN & JS	SURGICAL FLOORS
L&D (Main/JS/JN)	WW 6, WW 9, WW 10, WW 14
OR (Main/JS/JN)	WW 15, Trauma 3B
PATU/PARU/AMSU (Main/JS/JN)	Jackson South 3 Tower
ED (Main/JN/JS)	Jackson South 4 Tower
Trauma Resus	PEDIATRIC
Rape Treatment Center	ET5, ET 6, Pedi Dialysis
Jackson South Minor Care	Jackson North Pediatrics
INTERVENTIONAL UNITS	PRU
Radiology (JM/JS)	REHAB
GI Station	MENTAL HEALTH (Main and JS)
Cardiac Cath Lab (JM/JS/JN)	Crisis Emergency Room
Endoscopy (JM/JS/JN)	Geri Med I/P Unit
Jackson South Radiology Oncology	Behavioral Treatment I/P Unit
PBMU	Adult Intensive I/P Unit
I	I .

Hyperbaric Therapies

Α	В
	Health & Recovery I/P Unit Statewide Inpatient Psychiatric Program (S.I.P.P.) Child and Adolescent I/P Unit (C.A.A.P.) Highland 4 I/P Jackson South Behavioral Health NURSING HOMES Perdue Medical Center, LTCC WOMENS ET 3, ET 7, JN, JS Mother Baby, Jackson North Post Partum JAILS All Correctional Facilities CLINICS ACC East ACC West, Breast Center SFAN Jefferson Reaves PET center NDHC Downtown Clinic Rosie Lee Wesley Care A VAN JN Community Mental Health Employee Health Office Transplant Clinic Mental Health Dut Treatment Program Jackson Pediatric Center Rehab/Ortho Clinic Jackson North Specialty & Diagnostic Center Taylor Breast Center South Dade Homeless Assistance Center Miami Hope Center Wound Care Center Outpatient Clinic Pediatric Cardiology Clinic Penalver Clinic Observation Units Urgent Care Centers ET/WOC Nursing

Based on mutual agreement and patient populations, exceptions may be made to these lists on a case-by-case basis (ex A chemo certified RN may be exempt from the bumping process based on highly trained skill set). Pediatric ICU's and Pediatric employees may first bump within the Pediatric specialty areas and then the least senior employee will bump onto the correct list, A or B.

The units identified herein are based upon the current geographic configuration of the PHT. The parties agree that the placement of a unit on a list is based on the unit's function, not its name or location. The parties further agree that nothing herein shall prevent the Employer from relocating units within its facilities so long as the essential functions of the units remain the same. Units that are merely relocated or renamed will remain on the same list. In the event a new unit is created or two or more existing units are merged, the new or merged unit will be placed on the list that contains units with the most similar functions. For classifications and/or locations not listed here, the parties will meet to appropriately place these nurses on a case by case basis.

Section 5. ARNP Reassignment, Layoff, and Recall Procedures

Due to legal certification restrictions, the layoff, recall, and reemployment rights list in Section 4 does not apply for ARNPs.

ARNPs will be reassigned, laid off and/or recalled using the list below, based on the individual ARNP certification and experience.

- Adult → Adult*
- 2. Acute → Acute care areas (must have specialty certification as of 2007)
- 3. Family → Family/Adult/Pediatrics
- 4. Neonatal → Neonatal (Specialty area based on certification)
- 5. Pediatrics → Pediatrics/Family**
- 6. Psych → Psych (Specialty area based on certification)
- * Adult can bump family for an adult position that does not include pediatrics
- ** Pediatric can bump family for a pediatric position

A joint Labor/Management advisory group shall be consulted in the event of any case where there is a dispute involving the placement of a bargaining unit employee in the bumping process or for those who are not board certified.

Section 6. Furloughs

In the event it is financially necessary, system-wide furloughs may be implemented. The Employer will make every effort to give sixty (60) days written notice to the Union of any decision to furlough unit members. No less than twenty-one (21) days written notice will be given to bargaining unit members who are to be furloughed.

ARTICLE XIX - CONTRACTING OUT

If the PHT solicits bids or proposals from the public to contract out services currently being performed by members of the bargaining unit, the PHT will notify the union. Notice of the solicitation will be provided as soon as practicable but in no event later than members of the general public are notified. If the County Commission solicits bids or proposals from the public to contract out services currently being performed by members of the bargaining unit, the PHT will provide the Union with notice as soon as it receives notice of the County Commission's solicitation.

Jackson Health System shall not contract out Jackson Main, Jackson West, or Jackson South ER services, including but not limited to the Rape Treatment Center, at its Main Campus. In the event that the PHT solicits bids or proposals from the public to contract out services currently being performed by members of the bargaining units in the Pediatric ER, or in the Adult ER at Jackson North Medical Center, all of the provisions and rights contained in this Article shall apply, and if these services are contracted out, the PHT will require as a condition of its agreement/contract with any

entities or Provider(s) that any full-time or part-time attending physicians, physician assistants, or ARNPs employed by the PHT shall remain employed in those units as PHT employees.

Upon request by the Union, the PHT shall make available for inspection any and all documents publicly available relating to the services contemplated for contracting out, prior to action being taken by the Employer to accomplish the contracting out. The Union may, within thirty (30) days or less if possible, propose an alternative plan by which the work may be done economically and efficiently by appropriate members of the bargaining unit. If the PHT receives such a proposal from the Union it will give such proposal reasonable consideration.

ARTICLE XX - REEDUCATION AND SKILLS ENHANCEMENT PROGRAM

In the interest of minimizing the need for layoffs of bargaining unit members and to prepare RN's to follow the workflow needs of the hospital, the parties agree to institute, monitor and support the Reeducation and Skills Enhancement Programs identified below and to devote time in the Quality Nursing and Career Development (QNCD) Committee to explore outside funding sources for these programs.

A. General Description of Programs:

- 1. Every reasonable effort shall be made to provide ongoing educational programs in Critical Care, Perioperative/OR and other specialty areas for bargaining unit members to meet staffing needs of the hospital.
- 2. If the PHT determines that a floatpool is necessary to meet the fluctuating census needs of the various units, it may create a full time Medical/Surgical RN floatpool and/or a Critical Care floatpool. Vacancies in floatpools will be offered first to volunteers on the basis of seniority. If sufficient volunteers are not available, the Employer may fill the remaining vacancies using regular hiring practices.
- 3. The hospital agrees to establish a learning center to facilitate the goals and success of the educational program.

B. Selection and Training Criteria:

- 1. Applicants for the programs must meet the selection criteria and basic skills established by the Employer. The Quality Nursing and Career Development Committee will discuss the selection criteria and may make recommendations to the Senior Vice President of Patient Care Services, who shall continue to have the authority to determine the selection criteria and basic skills necessary for the program. Applicants meeting the selection criteria and basic skills will be placed on a list for selection in order of hospital-wide seniority. Any qualified persons remaining on the list after a class is filled shall be ranked in order of their seniority and will be selected ahead of all other applicants to fill up to thirty percent (30%) of the openings in the next available class.
- No RN shall be denied admittance to a program because of short staffing in his/her unit or division.
- Program preceptors shall be selected for their clinical, educational and interpersonal communication skills. Preceptor courses will be continued and made available to interested nurses. Reasonable efforts will be made to adjust the preceptor's assignment while serving as a preceptor.
- 4. If a bargaining unit member with permanent status fails to successfully complete the program, he/she will return to his/her previous position and unit, if available, or other comparable position within the division.
- 5. The probationary period in a new position shall begin at the conclusion of the reeducation and unit orientation program.
- 6. All employees who successfully complete the Critical Care internship

shall identify their ICU areas of interest and shall be interviewed for those available positions. They shall be selected in areas of need through the standard interview and selection process. As long as ICU area vacancies exist, each bargaining unit member shall be placed in such setting.

ARTICLE XXI - GROUP INSURANCE

- A. The parties agree that bargaining unit employees will be offered the opportunity to become members of a qualified Health Maintenance Organization and a Point of Service Plan pursuant to law and in accordance with all rules, regulations, and procedures pertaining thereto prescribed by the Employer and the qualified Health Maintenance Organization.
- B. The parties agree that bargaining unit employees will be offered the opportunity to participate pursuant to law and in accordance with all rules, regulations, and procedures pertaining thereto prescribed by the Employer and the Internal Revenue Code.
 - 1. The Trust's Group Health Insurance will be a Point of Service/Managed Health Care Group Insurance Plan.
 - 2. Copies of the 2018 plan designs and cost structures for all plans offered to eligible bargaining unit members are attached to this Agreement as an addendum, including employee premium contributions, co-pays, deductibles, RX benefits, etc. In addition to the POS and HMO plan, the PHT will continue to provide the Select Network/Managed Health Care and Jackson First Group Insurance Plans for the 2018 plan year.

Beginning January 1, 2018, the PHT will provide a two-tiered premium option which will allow the bargaining unit member to continue coverage under the POS, Select Network/Managed Health Care, and Jackson First Insurance Group Insurance Plans. Bargaining unit members who complete a required annual wellness visit prior to the end of the 2018 and 2019 fiscal years, respectively, shall be eligible to continue coverage at the 2017 rates for those Plans for the following plan year, except as follows:

- For plan year 2019, the employee cost of coverage for the POS and Select Network/Managed Health Care will increase by 5% over the 2018 rates.
- For plan year 2020, the employee cost of coverage for the POS and Select Network/Managed Health Care will increase by 5% over the 2019 rates.

Bargaining unit members who elect not to participate in the annual wellness visit for any reason will also have their cost of coverage increase by \$50 per pay period for the following plan year.

Beginning January 1, 2018, the employee cost of coverage for the HMO Plan will be adjusted as set forth in the attached Schedule. Bargaining unit members electing the HMO Plan who also elect not to participate in the annual wellness visit will have their cost of coverage increased by \$50 per pay period over the rates in the attached schedule. Thereafter, beginning January 1, 2019, the HMO Plan will be discontinued, and bargaining unit members who had elected the HMO Plan for the 2018 plan year will have the option of electing coverage under the POS, Select Network/ Managed Health Care, and Jackson First Group Insurance Plans for the 2019 plan year in accordance with the two-tiered premium option set forth, above.

3. Part time employees with benefits who consistently work 30 or more hours per week, and part time employees assigned to a 3/2 schedule that average 57 ½ hours bi-weekly, are eligible for participation in the PHT's health plans.

C. JACKSON FIRST PLAN

Eligible Jackson Health System employees will continue to be given the option of enrolling in the Jackson First health insurance plan, in addition to the current available options. This Plan is voluntary and available to any benefits-eligible employee and their dependents. There will be no co-pays and/or deductibles for services performed at Jackson facilities (except urgent care, emergency care and Pharmacy Services), or by any physician with admitting privileges at Jackson Health System. For individual employees electing the employee only option there will be no premium contribution for the term of the Agreement.

Jackson First plan participants and Select Plan participants electing to use Jackson services shall also have access to a concierge service as described in the attached addendum which includes a dedicated telephone line for scheduling appointments for Jackson Health System providers. Employees selecting the Jackson First plan shall have access to a primary care physician within 48 hours of requesting an appointment, and have access to a routine primary care physician within ten (10) days of requesting an appointment. Enrollees who request an outpatient diagnostic imaging (with valid referral) will be scheduled for the service within 5 calendar days of the request or sooner if medically necessary at the Jackson facility of the enrollee's choice. This includes diagnostic imaging including MRI, CT, mammography, colonoscopy, laboratory services, etc.

D. The parties will create a Health Care Committee comprised of two (2) members appointed by Management and two (2) members appointed by the Union. This Committee will meet monthly (unless otherwise mutually agreed), and shall be provided any and all information necessary to monitor utilization, cost, and effectiveness of the plans.

E. Telehealth

The parties agree that there is a need for the PHT to implement Telehealth, a voluntary program which allows employees to contact a physician on a 24/7 basis for convenient low cost medical care. This program will reduce our employees from seeking immediate health care for low intensity health concerns in urgent care centers and emergency rooms and provide immediate high quality access to care.

In an effort to encourage employees to participate in the Telehealth program, a co-pay of only ten (\$10) dollars will be charged for employees or dependents who use the services provided by telehealth.

Employees can access Telehealth via mobile app, visit the website or call toll free for physician to diagnose, treat, and prescribe with no additional charge.

ARTICLE XXII – NURSING REPRESENTATION ON COMMITTEES

A. The parties are jointly committed to the principle of nurse participation in all standing and special committees which discuss and recommend action which affects delivery of nursing care or the conditions under which nurses work.

- B. To this end, bargaining unit nurses will be included as full members of all such committees. The number of bargaining unit nurses included on any particular committee, where not separately specified elsewhere in this Agreement, shall be by mutual agreement between the parties.
- C. The selection of the individual nurses to serve on each committee shall in all cases be at the discretion of the Union, which shall inform the Employer in writing of the names selected. Whenever more than one (1) nurse is to be included on a committee and the committee composition is not separately specified elsewhere in this Agreement, the Union will endeavor to select committee nurses who are interested in the work of the Committee from different areas, shifts, etc., of the bargaining unit.
- D. Existing committees covered by this Article include, but are not limited to:
- 1. Joint Labor-Management Committees
 - a. Employee-Employer Management Conference Committee
 - b. Joint Health and Safety Committee
 - c. Quality Nursing and Career Development Committee
 - d. ARNP Committee
- 2. Other Hospital/Medical Staff Committees
 - Affirmative Action Committee
 - b. Employee Assistance Program Committee
 - c. Bio-Ethics Committee
 - d. Health & Safety Committee
 - e. ICU Committee/Critical Care Committee
 - f. Infection Control Committee
 - g. Health Information Management Committee
 - h. Nursing Policy and Procedure Committee
 - i. Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee
 - j. Product Review & Analysis Committee

SectionIt is recognized that committees will not be used for continuing negotiations.

ARTICLE XXIII - SAFETY AND HEALTH

Section 1. General Recognition

It is the responsibility of the Employer to provide safe and healthy working conditions in all present and future installations and to enforce safe working practices.

Nothing in this Agreement shall imply that the Union has undertaken or assumed any legal liability to provide a safe workplace.

Section 2. Joint Health and Safety Committee

A. Purpose

The purpose of the committee is to identify and investigate health and safety hazards and make recommendations on preventive measures. Additionally, the committee will assist in monitoring all ongoing health and safety programs to assure their effectiveness in preventing hazardous working conditions. Investigation and monitoring may include work site inspections as requested

by the Union.

The committee shall have the authority to make recommendations to correct health and safety hazards. The committee may research and make recommendations for safer substitutes or modifications to the new equipment, medical treatments and/or processes to the Product Review Analysis Committee.

The Employer shall provide the Committee on a quarterly basis with data containing the vital information on all work related injuries and illnesses, including but not limited to injury-on-duty quarterly, reports which will include needlestick and sharps injuries.

B. Establishment

The Employer will continue to comply with applicable federal, state, and county laws and regulations pertaining to occupational safety and health. To this end, any unsafe conditions reported by employees will receive priority corrective action by Management. If an employee believes a task or area is hazardous or unsafe the employee will inform his/her immediate supervisor. If the employee and supervisor do not agree on the matter, the employee will have direct access to the Management personnel on that shift who has been designated by the Employer to resolve possible imminent danger hazards. The decision of this designated Management personnel shall be final. Every reasonable effort will be made to remedy such conditions as soon as possible.

C. Make-up of the Committee

The committee shall be composed of eighteen (18) members. Nine (9) members may be designated by the Employer. Nine (9) members may be designated by the Union with no more than one (1) per patient care unit. The Committee will be co-chaired by Union and Management.

D. Meetings and Agenda

The Committee shall meet at least monthly and at other times when either side feels that there is a health and safety issue that requires immediate attention from the Committee. Each party will submit to the Chair for that meeting an agenda of topics to be discussed at least five (5) days prior to the regularly scheduled meetings. Either side may place any safety and health issue on the agenda.

Section 3. New Practices and Procedures

The Employer will inform the Union as soon as possible of the planned implementation of any new equipment, medical treatment and/or processes. Employees who are affected by any new equipment, medical treatment and/or processes shall be provided, prior to implementation, with the strongest feasible protection from hazards including but not limited to engineering controls, personal protective equipment, safer substitutes, and proper education and training.

Section 4. Protection from Respiratory Hazards and Infectious Diseases

A. Infectious Diseases

The Employer shall provide the strongest feasible protection to employees from occupational transmission of bloodborne and airborne infectious diseases, including but not limited to Tuberculosis and HIV/AIDS, through the use of engineering controls, work practice controls, personal protective equipment, training and education and the development of a comprehensive bloodborne and airborne infectious disease program.

B. Asbestos

The Employer shall inform all employees about all known materials that

contain asbestos in their work areas. The Employer shall notify all employees of asbestos removal in work areas where asbestos removal is scheduled to take place; supply copies of asbestos air monitoring for that area; and ensure the strongest feasible protection is provided to employees in the area where removal procedures are being performed.

The Employer shall provide a contact person and phone number for questions regarding asbestos-containing materials and to report any damage to asbestos-containing materials. The Employer must post the name and number of the contact person throughout the hospital.

Section 5. On the Job Assault

The Employer has a responsibility to take all reasonably practical steps to protect employees from physical assault on the job. No employee shall be disciplined for using reasonable measures to protect himself/herself from assault.

The Health and Safety Committee shall make recommendations on policies to prevent on the job physical assault, manage violent situations and provide support to workers who have experienced or face on the job assault.

Section 6. Security

The Employer will provide secure, limited access to all PHT facilities to protect bargaining unit employees and patients. Ongoing issues of security shall be addressed in the Health and Safety Committee.

Section 7. Safe Patient Handling and Minimal Lift Team

Consistent with the hospital's commitment to provide a safe and healthy workplace for employees and to ensure the highest quality care, the parties agree to maintain the safe patient handling and minimal lift plan.

The parties agree to maintain the multi-disciplinary team and to maintain the plan. The team shall consist of equal members of direct care providers and Employer representatives and others as necessary to develop an effective plan.

ARTICLE XXIV - QUALITY NURSING AND CAREER DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

Section 1. Establishment

To further their common goal - the delivery of quality healthcare to patients by nursing staff who are personally and professionally challenged, the Quality Nursing and Career Development (QNCD) Committee will be formed and will have nurse representation from throughout the bargaining unit.

Section 2. Purpose

The purpose of the QNCD Committee is to establish a mechanism for constructive discussion of matters related to the quality of patient care and professional nursing practice and to ensure ongoing professional nurse development. Types of issues that should be brought to this committee include but are not limited to changes in staffing levels, alternate work schedules, job descriptions, non-nursing duties, educational and recognition programs, mentorship activities and recruitment and retention activities. Except as provided herein, the committee shall not be limited in the matters it may discuss pertaining to patient care or nursing practice.

Section 3. Matters Eliminated from Discussion

The following shall not be discussed by the QNCD Committee without mutual consent, unless they are raised in the context of defining a more general problem within the brief of the QNCD Committee:

- A. Pending grievances or items properly handled under the grievance procedure.
- B. Individual disciplinary actions and individual performance evaluations.
- C. Matters or processes for which there are established joint committees or procedures. It is recognized that the QNCD Committee will not be used for continuing negotiations.

Section 4. Make-up of the Committee

The Committee shall be composed of no more than one representative per one-hundred (100) bargaining unit RNs selected by the Union, however, no more than one (1) per patient care unit.

The Senior Vice President of Patient Care Services may designate up to eight (8) management representatives to the QNCD Committee. The parties agree to each designate a committee representative to serve as co-chairs.

Section 5. Meetings and Agenda

The Committee will meet at least monthly. Committee members will be granted necessary paid time off for meetings, as provided under Article VI of this Agreement. Each party will submit its agenda of topics to be discussed at least five (5) calendar days prior to the scheduled meeting. When an agenda item submitted by a Committee representative indicates the involvement of a Hospital Center or area of the Hospital not represented on the Committee, the Employer agrees that a representative of said Hospital Center or area will attend the QNCD Committee meeting.

The parties agree that the Agenda will include, but is not limited to patient satisfaction, hospital acquired skin breakdown and hospital acquired infection rates.

Section 6. Recommendations

The Committee shall make reasonable and good faith efforts to develop broad consensus on the issues before it and to make recommendations as expeditiously as possible. Majority recommendations shall be forwarded in written form to the Senior Vice President of Patient Care Services.

ARTICLE XXV - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS AND SCOPE OF THIS AGREEMENT

- A. It is understood and agreed that the Employer possesses the sole right, duty and responsibility for operation of Employer facilities, and that all management rights repose in it, but that such rights must be exercised consistently with the other provisions of this Agreement.
- B. These rights include, but are not limited to the following:
 - 1. Determine the missions and objectives of the Employer;
 - 2. Determine the methods, means and number of personnel needed to carry out Employer responsibilities;
 - 3. Take such actions as may be necessary to carry out services during emergencies declared by the Employer;-
 - 4. Direct the work of the employees, determine the amount of work needed, and in accordance with such determination relieve employees from duty or reduce their hours of work. In addition, relieve employees from duty or reduce their hours of work for lack of work or funds or other legitimate reasons:

- 5. Discipline or discharge employees for just cause in accordance with applicable sections of the Miami-Dade County Code and the personnel rules of the Employer including the right to make reasonable rules and regulations for the purpose of efficiency, safe practices and discipline. The Employer will inform the Union of any changes in the existing rules and regulations before such changes are made effective;
- Schedule operations and shifts;
- 7. Introduce new or improved methods, operations or facilities;
- Hire, promote, transfer or assign employees;
- 9. Schedule overtime work as required;
- 10. Contract out for goods and services;
- 11. Establish health care policy and determine relationships between the Employer and governmental, educational and community agencies.

The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which preceded this Agreement each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to the subject or matter and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. This Agreement, including its supplements and exhibits attached hereto, concludes all collective bargaining between the parties during the term hereto, and constitutes the sole, entire and existing Agreement between the parties hereto, and supersedes all prior Agreements and undertakings oral and written, express or implied, or practices, between the Employer and the Union or its employees, and expresses all obligations and restrictions imposed on each of the respective parties during its term.

ARTICLE XXVI - TOXICOLOGY AND ALCOHOL TESTING

The Employer and the Union recognize that employee substance and alcohol abuse can have an adverse impact on Miami-Dade County government, the PHT's operations, the image of employees and the general health, welfare and safety of the employees, and the general public.

The Employer shall have authority to require employees to submit to toxicology and alcohol testing designed to detect the presence of any controlled substance, narcotic drug, or alcohol. The Employer agrees that requiring employees to submit to testing of this nature shall be limited to circumstances that indicate reasonable grounds to suspect that the employee is under the influence of such substances, suffers from substances or alcohol abuse, or is in violation of the Personnel Rules or Departmental Rules and Regulations regarding the use of such substances.

Employees reasonably believed to suffer from substance abuse may be referred, at the department's discretion, to the Employee Assistance Program. An employee who voluntarily seeks assistance for substance abuse may not be disciplined for seeking assistance. However, voluntary participation in a substance abuse program shall not preclude discipline for the employee should job performance or employee conduct issues arise.

It is further understood by the parties that the aforementioned authority to require that employees submit to such testing be approved by a division director, or higher authority within the department to ensure proper compliance with the terms of this article. An employee who is to be tested in accordance with the provisions of this article, will be permitted to make a phone call to the Union. This phone call shall not prevent, inhibit, or unreasonably delay the testing of such employee.

The results of such test or the employees' refusal to submit to toxicology or alcohol testing as provided for in this article, can result in appropriate disciplinary action in accordance with the applicable provision of the County Code, the Personnel Rules, Departmental Rules and Regulations and this Collective Bargaining Agreement.

The parties agree that toxicology and alcohol testing are an acceptable part of regularly scheduled Employer required physical examinations.

ARTICLE XXVII - PHYSICAL AND PSYCHOLOGICAL IMPAIRMENTS

A department director or their authorized representative(s) shall have the authority to require employees that have been determined, through reasonable suspicion, by the Department to possibly suffer from a physical, psychological or psychiatric impairment which may prevent the employee from satisfactorily performing the complete duties and responsibilities of his/her position, to submit to a physical, medical, psychological, or psychiatric examination deemed necessary for purposes of determining the employee's fitness to perform the complete duties and responsibilities of his/her position.

Such examinations will be performed by a physician approved and appointed by the Employer. The results of such examination(s) shall be promptly furnished to the concerned department director or their authorized representative. The results of the applicable information submitted by the examining physician to the Employer should be limited to information that is pertinent to the issues of the employee's ability to perform the duties and responsibilities of his/her position.

Based upon the results of such examinations, and other relevant information, the department director may place the employee on either paid or unpaid compulsory leave in accordance with the provision of the Leave Manual until such time as the department is satisfied that the employee can return to work. The department may require the employee or attending physician to furnish additional pertinent medical reports or information deemed necessary while the employee is on compulsory leave. The period of compulsory leave shall not exceed one (1) year. Should the condition be corrected and so certified by the attending physician or psychologist, the employee may petition the Department for reinstatement. If the employee's petition for reinstatement is denied by the department, disciplinary action must be initiated by the department in accordance with the Personnel Rules. Nothing in the provision of this article shall prevent the concerned department from administering appropriate disciplinary action in accordance with the Personnel Rules and this Collective Bargaining Agreement.

ARTICLE XXVIII - ASSIGNABILITY OF CONTRACT

The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto and upon their successors and assigns (as those terms are defined by state or federal labor law, including but not limited to a taxing district or 501(c)(3) designated entity) for the full term of this Agreement. The parties agree that the terms and obligations herein contained shall not be affected, modified, altered or changed in any respect by the transfer or assignment by the Employer of any or all of its property, control, ownership or management or by any change in the legal status of the Employer or any part thereof. The parties further agree that:

- A. In the event of a sale, merger, assignment, or other transfer of operations of the Hospital, prior to the sale, merger, assignment or transfer the Hospital shall:
 - Inform the prospective purchaser, merger party, assignee, transferee
 or other relevant acquiring or surviving entity ("New Employer") of the
 existence of this Agreement and of its terms and conditions;
 - Provide a copy of this Agreement to the New Employer;

- Require as a condition of the sale, merger, assignment or transfer that the New Employer shall recognize the Union as the collective bargaining representative;
- 4. Require as a condition of the sale, merger, assignment or transfer that the New Employer shall assume (by written instrument executed with the Union) this Agreement between the Hospital and Union [subject to the modification that the New Employer shall offer comparable benefit plans in lieu of benefits plans that are specifically administered by and available only through the Hospital, for the remainder of its term];
- 5. Including the foregoing terms and conditions in a binding, written agreement between the Hospital and the New Employer, which states that the Union and the bargaining unit employees covered by this Agreement are the intended beneficiaries of these terms and conditions with the legal right to enforce them; and
- Provide the Union satisfactory documentation of compliance with the foregoing terms and conditions prior to the sale, merger, assignment or transfer.

ARTICLE XXIX - MISCELLANEOUS

Should any part of this Agreement or any portion herein contained be rendered illegal, legally invalid or unenforceable by a Court of competent jurisdiction, or by the decision of any authorized governmental agency, such invalidation of such part or portion of this Agreement shall not invalidate the remaining portion thereof. In the event of such occurrence, the parties agree to meet immediately, and, if possible, to negotiate substitute provisions for such parts or portions rendered or declared illegal or invalid. The remaining parts and provisions of this agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

The parties recognize that during the term of this Agreement situations may arise which require that terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement must be clarified or amended. Under such circumstances, SEIU Local 1991 is specifically authorized by bargaining unit employees to enter into the settlement of grievance disputes or memoranda of understanding to clarify or amend this Agreement without having to be ratified by bargaining unit members.

ARTICLE XXX - STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS

There will be no strikes, work stoppages, picket lines, slowdowns or concerted failure or refusal to perform assigned work by the employees or the Union and there will be no lockouts by the Employer for the duration of this Agreement. The Union guarantees to support the Employer fully in maintaining operations in every way.

Any employee who participates in or promotes a strike, work stoppage, picket line, slowdown, or concerted failure or refusal to perform assigned work may be discharged or otherwise disciplined by the Employer.

It is recognized by the parties that the Employer and the Union are responsible for and engaged in activities which are the basis of the health and welfare of our citizens and that any violation of this section would give rise to irreparable damage to the Employer and to the public at large. Accordingly, it is understood and agreed that in the event of any violation of this section the Employer shall be entitled to seek and obtain immediate injunctive relief. However, it is agreed that the Union shall not be responsible for any act alleged to constitute a breach of this section if it can show that the Union did not instigate, authorize, condone, sanction or ratify such action, and further, that the Union has used every reasonable means to prevent or terminate such action.

ARTICLE XXXI - TERM OF AGREEMENT

- A. The collective bargaining agreement between the PHT, Miami Dade County and Local 1991, Service Employees International Union, shall be effective October 1, 2017 and continue to September 30, 2020.
- B. Either party may require by written notice to the other no later than June 30, 2020 negotiations concerning modification, amendments, and renewal of this Agreement to be effective October 1, 2020.

ARTICLE XXXII - NURSE STAFFING RATIOS

In recognition of the fact that sufficient nurse staffing is imperative to the development of a healthy practice work environment, evidenced by the following: a collaborative practice culture; expert, competent, credible, and visible leadership; shared decision-making; patient safety; and, recognition of nurses for their meaningful contribution to practice, Jackson Health System (JHS) shall implement the following Nurse Staffing Ratios:

- When planning staffing in advance or for the next shift, and taking into consideration the acuity, case mix index, technology and equipment needs, infection control needs, qualified available staff etc., staffing patterns will be:
 - A. Adult medical, surgical, rehabilitation and palliative care patients, One (1) registered nurse for up to six (6) patients.
 - B. Telemetry patients, One (1) registered nurse for up to five (5) patients.
 - C. Pediatric Medical/Surgical patients, One (1) registered nurse for up to five (5) patients.
 - Medical Oncology and Gyn/Gyo patients, One (1) registered nurse for up to five (5) patients.
 - E. Transplant and Intermediate Care patients, One (1) registered nurse for up to three (3) or four (4) patients based on acuity.
 - F. Acute and emergency mental health patients, One (1) registered nurse for up to nine (9) patients with direct support from a number of care providers who are specially-trained in the management of the psychiatric milieu. Depending on the acuity, complexity and mix of psychiatric patients being cared for within a clinical service, the number of patients assigned to each Mental Health RN can be adjusted to promote concurrent safe staffing.
 - G. Geriatric Psychiatric patients, One (1) registered nurse for up to eight (8) patients.
 - H. In Emergency Services, One (1) registered nurse for up to four (4) or five (5) patients based on acuity.
 - I. Critical Care patients, One (1) registered nurse for up to two (2) patients.
 - J. Charge Nurse and/or Associate Nurse Managers will not routinely be assigned patients.
 - K. The staffing ratios provided for in this Article will apply regardless of whether the patient is physically located in the units specified above.
 - L. In blended units, staffing will be based on the acuity of the patient(s). Patient acuity, not the unit in which they are housed, will determine the appropriate ratio.

2. Additionally, the Jackson Health System will endorse and make every reasonable effort to adhere to the staffing ratios/guidelines set forth and recommended by national professional nursing organizations (i.e., AWHONN [Association of Women's Health, Obstetric and Neonatal Nurses]; RPICC [Regional Perinatal Intensive Care Center],; AORN [Association of Peri-Operative Registered Nurses],; ASPAN [American Society of Peri-Anesthesia Nurses], etc.) and external regulatory agencies (i.e., DCF, AHCA, and the Florida Department of Health, Office of Trauma), unless a different staffing ratio/guideline is specifically set forth above.

Unforeseen emergencies and swings in volume, and multiple unplanned absences in any one unit, may at times preclude compliance with this Article. When a unit is not in compliance with this Article under these circumstances, the Department Manager or his/her designee will immediately make all reasonable attempts to return the unit to compliance by assigning additional personnel to the unit. The Nurse Manager, Associate Nurse Manager, Nurse Educator or Charge Nurse may temporarily assume a patient assignment until the unit is back in compliance, but no longer than is necessary to resolve the issue. It is not a violation of this Article for a registered nurse to step away temporarily for breaks, meals, and to meet their personal needs as consistent with professional judgment.

JHS agrees that a pre-grievance meeting will occur between the Associate VP of Human Resources (or designee), the CNO of the affected area, and the President of SEIU 1991 (and/or designee) within 72 hours of an alleged violation of the ratios listed above.

This Article shall be enforceable by expedited arbitration. An arbitration hearing will be held within five (5) business days of notice by the Union that the Hospital is not in compliance with this Article. The parties agree the hearing could be telephonic. The arbitrator will announce a "bench ruling" at the conclusion of the hearing which will be followed up by a written ruling within thirty (30) days of the hearing.

ARTICLE XXXIII - PENSION BENEFITS

- A. Effective March 1, 2012, the pension benefits of the Public Health Trust Retirement Plan shall be amended to reflect the following changes to the pension benefits of the Florida Retirement System (FRS) which became effective July 1, 2011: cost-of-living adjustments; changes to the definition of retirement age for new hires, other than the increase of the minimum years of service requirement; and changes to the calculation of average final compensation for new hires. Similarly, effective upon ratification of this Agreement, employee contribution levels shall also be amended to reflect the FRS employee contribution levels in effect as of July 1, 2011 (3% of pensionable earnings on a pre-tax basis, other than per diem pool).
- B. The Summary Plan Description for the PHT Retirement Plan shall be amended to conform to this Agreement, and a copy shall be provided to the Union upon its completion.

ARTICLE XXXIV - EMPOWERMENT PROGRAM FOR SEIU REGISTERED NURSES, ATTENDING PHYSICIANS & PROFESSIONALS BARGAINING UNITS

Section 1. Labor-Management Partnership Agreement

A. Purpose

Health care services and the institutions that provide them are undergoing

rapid change. Advances in health care and ensuring the well-being of the Miami-Dade County community present challenges as well as opportunities for the Public Heath Trust (PHT), the public, SEIU Local 1991 (Union), and the members they represent. The PHT and the Union believe that now is the time to enter into a new way of doing business. Now is the time to unite around our common purposes and work together to most effectively deliver high quality health care.

Founded on the common principle of making life better for those we serve, it is our common goal to make Jackson Health System (JHS) a pre-eminent deliverer of health care in the United States. It is further our goal to demonstrate by any measure that labor-management collaboration produces superior health care outcomes, leading performance, and a superior workplace for PHT employees.

In this spirit and with this intent, the PHT and the Union agree to establish a Partnership in pursuit of our common goals to:

- Improve quality health care for the communities we serve;
- Assist the PHT in achieving and maintaining leading performance;
- Make the PHT a better place to work;
- Provide PHT employees with the maximum possible employment and income security within the PHT; and
- Involve employees and their union in operational, clinical, and business decisions.

B. Process and Structure

Senior Partnership Committee

The parties will establish a Senior Partnership Committee (SPC) consisting of an equal number of (but not less than four (4) each) PHT executive level staff and Union leadership. JHS's COO and CFO, as well as the Union President, will be members of the SPC. The COO and the Union President shall be co-chairs of the SPC. The SPC may expand the Partnership to include representatives of other parties as necessary, as agreed to by the labor and management representatives on the SPC. The responsibilities of the SPC are to establish, consistent with the terms and scope outlined in this agreement, targets, goals, objectives, time lines and other Partnership initiatives. The SPC will meet as often as necessary but no less than twice per quarter to discuss strategic issues of the Partnership, and implement, review and oversee initiatives at all levels.

The powers of the SPC do not supersede the legally mandated obligations of the parties such as the duty to bargain over mandatory subjects, the responsibilities and duties of the governing board of the PHT, and the duty of the Union to represent the interests of its members. However, any initiatives approved by a super majority vote (i.e. six (6) out of eight (8)), of the members of the SPC shall not be rejected.

The initial initiatives of the Partnership shall be: (1) Primary Care Implementation, (2) ER through-put, and (3) Clinical Staffing and Training.

Access to Information

It is the express intention of the parties to freely share information with each other. The parties will have timely access to all relevant and pertinent information necessary to address the purposes of the Partnership. The PHT will provide such documentation at no cost to the Union.

Consultants

The parties will jointly select a third-party consultant to assist the Partnership formation and implementation process and to continue with such assistance until such time as the SPC members agree that these services are no longer required. The PHT and the Union shall be equally responsible for all fees and costs of the consultant hired for the first \$200,000 annually; thereafter, the PHT will be responsible for the fees and costs of the consultant.

4. Partnerships at Other Organizational Levels

The SPC acknowledges that the involvement of employees from all levels of the organization in appropriate and relevant issues results in high quality decisions beneficial to the continued viability of the enterprise. To this end, the SPC may create joint committees to monitor the implementation of action plans and initiatives. All joint committees created by the SPC will consist of an equal number of members from the Union and the PHT.

Costs of the Partnership

Following execution of this agreement, the PHT shall cover lost time for any PHT employees who are members of the SPC to attend these meetings. Any lost time for bargaining unit employees chosen by the Union to participate in any sub-committee established by the SPC shall be covered by the Union.

Scope

The issue of scope is inextricably tied to decision making. Scope sets the boundaries for the Partnership; what is in play, what is not. The decision-making process describes the procedures for disposing of or resolving the issues deemed within the parameters of the Partnership.

The scope of this Partnership should be broad and includes: strategic initiatives; quality; member and employee satisfaction; business planning; and business unit employment issues.

With respect to quality, we recognize that business units aim to meet and/or exceed quality requirements of various accrediting and review organizations. The SPC's quality focus will be on achieving results to meet and surpass these requirements.

Business unit activities will be consistent with principles established at the strategic level.

7. Existing Labor-Management Cooperation Arrangements

These arrangements should be permitted to continue and where possible be enhanced by partnering efforts.

Current and Future Business Issues and Plans

The PHT will make every effort to educate and fully brief members of the SPC about current business initiatives, business plans, including executive plans and plans relating to bonds, and the environment in which the PHT currently operates. Opportunity for recommendations will be made available to Partnership participants with respect thereto. Business initiatives or plans, including executive plans and plans relating to bonds, begun following formal establishment of the Partnership will be managed in compliance with the Partnership process outlined in this document and opportunity for recommendations will be made available to Partnership participants before final decisions are made where feasible.

9. Employment Security

There will be no loss of employment to any employee because of participation in a Partnership program at the worksite.

10. Applicability

Articles VII and VIII do not apply to subsections B., 1, 2, 3, 5 and 9 of this Section.

Section 2. Empowerment and Efficiencies

The Union and the Employer recognize that it is in the interest of all parties and the public to ensure the stability, efficiency, and improvement of the Jackson Health System. To that end, upon ratification of this Agreement, the Employer shall provide one million dollars annually to SEIU to work on ways to achieve these goals (the "Empowerment and Efficiencies Funds"), or, alternatively, and in lieu of the aforementioned and upon mutual agreement, the Employer shall provide no less than 8 FTE paid released employees (total and not "per bargaining unit") selected by the SEIU to work on ways to achieve these goals (or upon mutual agreement, a combination of less than 8 FTE paid released employees and monetary payment to the maximum combined value of one million dollars).

Any expert or consultant hired by the Union shall have access to all SEIU requests for data, financial records (including underlying primary documents), financial analyses, models, computer runs, contracts, billing, audits and other records. The documents shall be provided at no charge. The parties agree to discuss the most cost effective ways to provide information requested. Such experts or consultants shall be provided access to the employer facilities and shall be provided suitable working space at the facility.

ARTICLE XXXIV - HEALTH AND WELLNESS CULTURE

The Public Health Trust has implemented health and wellness programs which benefit employees and promote an optimal state of wellness.

Section 1. Introduction

Jackson Health System, in collaboration with the Union, is committed to the optimal health of every employee. The purpose of the wellness program is to create an emphasis on wellness from a perspective that promotes overall balance, awareness, and well-being such that employees can thrive in work and life.

The top motivators for offering a program are to reduce healthcare costs, improve the health of employees, reduce absenteeism/presenteeism, improve employee morale, increase productivity, and provide an example to the community.

Section 2. Pillars of Wellness

- 1. Role model of health
- Culture of healthy living
- 3. Provide variety of programs
- 4. Provide positive incentives
- 5. Track participation with outcomes
- 6. Measure for Return On Investment (ROI)
- 7. Sustainability

Section 3 Goals & Objectives

- Primary Goals:
 - Nutrition coaching
 - Physical activity
 - Stress management

- Secondary Goals:
 - Weight management
 - Smoking cessation
 - Biometric screening PCP visit
 - Diabetes
 - HTN (hypertension)
 - Cardiovascular disease markers, such as cholesterol
- Tertiary Goals:
 - Existing health problems
 - Reduce and/or control symptoms
 - Chronic illness management:
 - Hypertension
 - Diabetes
 - Obesity
 - Tobacco

Section 4. Implementation and Recommendations:

Create Wellness Taskforce of equal parts JHS Management and the Union recommending 3 and 3 for the purpose to further mature the wellness program.

Recommendations to be considered by the Wellness Taskforce:

- Nutrition with counseling
 - Permanent designated areas for lactating employees in each building
 - Nutrition Specialist/coaches included in our benefit
 - Nutrition Specialist counseling on campus (Employee Health Services.) to help employees with food addictions Partner with Sodexo:

 - Color code high calorie foods versus medium and low calorie food on glass panels in cafeteria. Should be visible
 - Discounts for low calorie foods
 - More healthy food available at all hours in cafeteria and vending machines
 - Healthy food station in cafeteria including juice bar
 - Cafeteria should offer weight watchers program with a selection of meals on a daily basis. Should also provide flyers, classes, and education.
 - "Healthier Hospital Initiative" multiple hospitals participates
 - Bring back farmer's market at the Alamo and introduce it at all campuses
 - Spouse eligibility for all programs to boost motivation for continuous wellness especially on off-hours
- Physical activity
 - Outdoor and indoor walking paths (all campuses)
 - Stairs/motivational signs
 - In-house gym or gym discounts (more gyms added to list), trainer discounts, and gym classes/programs discounts
 - Biometric/wellness screenings quarterly in house (all campuses)
 - Online wellness profiles for employees
 - Incentives for community walks/runs/etc.
 - Current UM wellness center discount or tiered program for participation and free Jackson employee trainers
 - Access to water in each unit
- Stress management
 - Chair massage
 - Email newsletter for ideas for: Stretch breaks, Yoga breaks, Meditation breaks, etc.
 - 15min sleeping breaks after lunch
- Tracking and Sharing:
 - Department of Nutrition/Employee Services Nutrition Specialists team
 - Offer employees to buy "Step Counters", "Fitbits", or other trackers at

discount

- Using badge IDs or Calorie/step count Score Cards to keep track of wellness programs' success
- Platform where employees can participate and offer not only each other help and share ideas and stories but can also provide ideas for the Department of Nutrition/Employee services Nutrition Specialists team
- Offer scheduled counseling, lectures, and newsletter on Jackson Media
- Newsletter should include healthy eating meals, for employees who reached goals, made improvements in their lifestyle, and other success stories
- Provide Return On Investment (ROIs) for the employees, employees groups, and overall hospital

Section 5. Join the Movement (Wellness Incentive Plan)

All bargaining unit members currently enrolled in PHT health insurance will be eligible to participate in the Jackson Health System Wellness Program. This program will allow bargaining unit members to earn and accumulate wellness reward points. In order to begin earning reward points, bargaining unit members must first complete a Personal Health Assessment and their annual wellness visit.

Below is a sample breakdown of the activities available for bargaining unit members to participate in, and the corresponding value of reward points. These activities and points are subject to change on an annual basis.

- Disease Management 20 reward points
- Weight Watchers 10 reward points
- Biometric Screening 5 reward points
- Flu shot 10 reward points
- Complete the CHIP Journey 15 reward points
- Wellness Challenge 5 reward points each, 25 points max
- Be Smoke Free 5 reward points
- Emotional Wellbeing 5 reward points each
- Maintain a Healthy BMI- 10 reward points
- Elect a JHS primary Care Physician 15 reward points

An accumulation of 50 reward points will be worth Fifty (\$50.00) dollars; 75 reward points will be worth Seventy-five (\$75.00) dollars and 100 reward points will be worth One hundred and fifty (\$150.00) dollars. The deadline to complete the program and submit any required documentation is December 1st, with incentive to be paid out in January of the following calendar year.

All forms, websites, and an updated activity list can be found on www.JacksonBenefits.org

APPENDIX A ACTIVE JOB CLASSIFICATIONS



lob Code	Title
1161	Associate Nurse Manager
3081	Case Manager RN 1
2829	Case Manager RN 2
1178	Clinical Staff Nurse Float Pool
1133	Clinical Care Coordinator
1797	Clinical Documentation Coordinator
2941	Clinical Documentation Educator
2777	Clinical Research Nurse Coordinator
2482	Clinical Resource Coordinator
1171	Clinical Resource Nurse
1136	Clinical Service Coordinator
1137	Clinical Staff Nurse
1138	Clinical Staff Nurse CHS
2661	Clinical System Coordinator
2230	Clinical Transplant Nurse Practitioner
2229	Clinical Transplant Coordinator
2238	Critical Acute Care Nurse Practitioner
1170	Enterostomal Therapist
2783	Fetal Therapy Clinical Coordinator/ Research Nurse
2726	Neonatal Pediatric Transport Coordinator
2468	Neonatal Nurse Practitioner
1924	Nurse 1
2172	Nurse 2
1158	Nurse Anesthetist
1139	Nurse Educator
1162	Nurse Manager
1166	Nurse Midwife
2621	Nurse Navigator Outpatient
1167	Nurse Practitioner (ARNP)
1163	Nurse Practitioner (ARNP) Supervisor
3108	Organ Placement Clinical Coordinator RN
1477	Patient Placement Coordinator
2771	Pediatric Palliative Care Coordinator
2872	PI Nurse / PPS Coordinator
3012	Rehab PPS Coordinator
2825	Retinopathy of Prematurity Nurse
1177	RN First Assistant
1195	RN Lactation Specialist
2505	Stroke Coordinator
2985	Transplant Donor Coordinator
2710	Transplant Nurse Educator
2323	Transplant Nurse Manager
2943	Transplant Nurse Supervisor
2665	Trauma Performance Improvement Nurse
1176	Trauma Program Manager
1292	Unit Practice Council Coordinator
2525	Vascular Access Specialist
3050	Wound Care Coordinator

APPENDIX B UNITS IDENTIFIED AS EXCLUDED FROM IN-PATIENT UNIT DIFERENTIAL

Breast Center/Diagnostic Treatment Center

Radiology

Cardiac Cath Lab

Pedi Dialysis

ACC East Wing/West Wing

Transplant Clinic

Education Department at JMH Towers

Health Office

WW12 Same day Chemo

Park Plaza West Women's Center

Poison Information Center

GI Station

Clinical Resource Management

Pediatric Special Procedures Room

APPENDIX C

REGISTERED NURSES BARGAINING UNIT STEP PROGRESSION CHART

Depending upon the maximum number of steps in each classification, the step progression shall be as follows:

MAXIMUM NUMBER OF STEPS:	60	on.	10		
	Step 1 to Step 2 = 12 months	Step 1 to Step 2 = 12 months	Step 1 to Step 2 = 12 months	Step 1 to Step 2 = 12 months	
	Step 2 to Step 3 = 12 months	Step 2 to Step 3 = 12 months	Step 2 to Step 3 = 12 months	Step 2 to Step 3 = 12 months	
	Step 3 to Step 4 = 12 months	Step 3 to Step 4 = 12 months	Step 3 to Step 4 = 12 months	Step 3 to Step 4 = 12 months	
	Step 4 to Step 5 = 12 months	Step 4 to Step 5 = 12 months	Step 4 to Step 5 = 12 months	Step 4 to Step 5 = 12 months	
SIEP	Step 5 to Step 6 = 12 months	Step 5 to Step 6 = 12 months	Step 5 to Step 6 = 12 months	Step 5 to Step 6 = 12 months	
TAGGRESSION	Step 6 to Step 7 = 48 months	Step 6 to Step 7 = 24 months	Step 6 to Step 7 = 24 months	Step 6 to Step 7 = 24 months	П
	Step 7 to Step 8 = 48 months	Step 7 to Step 8 = 48 months	Step 7 to Step 8 = 24 months	Step 7 to Step 8 = 24 months	
		Step 8 to Step 9 = 48 months	Step 8 to Step 9 = 48 months	Step 8 to Step 9 = 24 months	
			Step 9 to Step 10 = 48 months	Step 9 to Step 10 = 48 months	
				Step 10 to Step 11 = 48 months	

MAXIMUM NUMBER OF STEPS:	12	- 13	14	16
	Step 1 to Step 2 = 12 months	Step 1 to Step 2 = 12 months	Step 1 to Step 2 = 12 months	Step 1 to Step 2 = 12 months
	Step 2 to Step 3 = 12 months	Step 2 to Step 3 = 12 months	Step 2 to Step 3 = 12 months	Step 2 to Step 3 = 12 months
	Step 3 to Step 4 = 12 months	Step 3 to Step 4 = 12 months	Step 3 to Step 4 = 12 months	Step 3 to Step 4 = 12 months
	Step 4 to Step 5 = 12 months	Step 4 to Step 5 = 12 months	Step 4 to Step 5 = 12 months	Step 4 to Step 5 = 12 months
GHE	Step 5 to Step 6 = 12 months	Step 5 to Step 6 = 12 months	Step 5 to Step 6 = 12 months	Step 5 to Step 6 = 12 months
PROGRESSION	Step 6 to Step 7 = 24 months	Step 6 to Step 7 = 24 months	Step 6 to Step 7 = 24 months	Step 6 to Step 7 = 24 months
	Step 7 to Step 8 = 24 months	Step 7 to Step 8 = 24 months	Step 7 to Step 8 = 24 months	Step 7 to Step 8 = 24 months
	Step 8 to Step 8 = 24 months	Step 8 to Step 9 = 24 months	Step 8 to Step 9 = 24 months	Step 8 to Step 9 = 24 months
	Step 9 to Step 10 = 24 months	Step 9 to Step 10 = 24 months	Step 9 to Step 10 = 24 months	Step 9 to Step 10 = 24 months
	Step 10 to Step 11 = 48 months	Step 10 to Step 11 = 24 months	Step 10 to Step 11 = 24 months	Step 10 to Step 11 = 24 months
	Step 11 to Step 12 = 48 months	Step 11 to Step 12 = 48 months	Step 11 to Step 12 = 36 months	Step 11 to Step 12 = 36 months
		Step 12 to Step 13 = 48 months	Step 12 to Step 13 = 48 months	Step 12 to Step 13 = 36 months
			Step 13 to Step 14 = 48 months	Step 13 to Step 14 = 36 months
				Step 14 to Step 15 = 48 months
	51			Step 15 to Step 16 = 48 months

"The last two steps of the salary structure are longevity steps in recognition of years of service.

New Step Schedule for SEIU RN - Co. 400 Effective October 1, 2017

aff Clin Nu	1137 1138	8 29.2114	30.4382	31.7167	33.0487	34.4368	832	902	506	970	12	787	18	591	692	637	381	
Clinical Staff Nurse	137	00	ļ	m	33,	34.	35.8832	37.3902	38.9606	40.5970	42.3021	44.0787	45.9300	47.8591	49.8692	51,9637	56.2381	
		26.5718	27.6878	28.8507	30.0624	31.3250	32.6407	34.0116	35.4401	36.9286	38.4796	40.0958	41.7797	43.5345	45.3629	47.2682	49.2535	52.4053
Clinical Service Coord.	1136	36.8673	38.4156	40.0292	41.7104	43.4622	45.2876	47.1897	49.1717	51.2368	53.6041							
Clinical Resource Nurse	1171	31.6634	32.9931	34.3789	35.8227	37.3274	38.8950	40.5287	42.2309	44.0045	45.8527	47.7786	49.7853	51.8762	54.4989			
Clinical Resource Coord.	2482	36.8673	38.4156	40.0292	41.7104	43.4622	45.2876	47.1897	49.1717	51.2368	53.6041	9						
Clinical Research Nurse Coord.	7777	29.5717	30.8136	32.1079	33.4563	34.8616	36.3258	37.8514	40.7833									
Clinical Nurse Specialist	1134	36.1444	37.6624	39.2443	40.8925	42.6100	44.3996	46.2644	48.2075	50.2322	52.5530							
Clinical Document. Educator	2941	35.7140	37.2140	38.7769	40.4056	42.1026	43.8709	45.7135	47.6335	49.6340	51.7187	53.8910						
Clinical Clinical Document.	1797	34.1359	35.5696	37.0635	38.6202	40.2423	41.9324	43.6935	45.5287	47.4409	49.6326							
e e	1133	34.1359	35.5696	37.0635	38.6202	40.2423	41.9324	43.6935	45.5287	47.4409	49.6326							
	1178	26.5718	27.6878	28.8507	30.0624	31.3250	32.6407	34.0116	35.4401	36.9286	38.4796	40.0957	41.7797	43.5345	45.3629	47.2682	49.2535	52,4053
Case Manager RN 2	5829	34.1359	35.5696	37.0635	38.6202	40.2423	41.9324	43.6935	45.5287	47.4409	49.6326							
Case Case Clin Staff Manager RN Manager RN Nurse Float 1 2 Pool	18081	30.1722	31,4395	32.7600	34.1358	35.5695	37.0635	38.6202	40.2422	41.9324	43.6935							
ei F	1161	31,6634	32,9931	34.3789	35.8227	37.3274	38.8950	40.5287	42.2309	44.0045	45.8527	47.7786	49.7853	51.8763	54,4989			
Job Title	Job Code	Step 1	Step 2	Step 3	Step 4	Step 5	Step 6	Step 7	Step 8	Step 9	Step 10	Step 11	Step 12	Step 13	Step 14	Step 15	Step 16	Step 17

New Step Schedule for SEIU RN - Co. 400 Effective October 1, 2017

Nurse Navigator Outpatient	2621	28.2201	29.4054	30.6403	31.9273	33.2681	34.6654	36.1215	37.6385	39.2193	40.8665	42.5830	44.3714	46.4078				
Nurse Midwife	1166	41.3160	43.0512	44.8595	46.7435	48.7067	50.7524	52.8840	55.1052	57.6430	60.0638	62,5865	65.2151					
Nurse Manager, Anesthesia	1604	77.9251	81.1979	84.6083	88.1618	81.8646	95.7229	99.7433	103.9325	108.2977	112.8462							
Nurse Manager	1162	43.5492	45.3782	47.2841	49.2700	51.3394	53,4956	55.7425	60.1797	62.7072	65.3410		İ					
Nurse	1139	31.6634	32.9931	34.3789	35.8227	37.3274	38.8950	40.5287	42.2309	44.0045	45.8527	47.7786	49.7853	51.8762	54.4989			
Nurse Anesthetist	1158	69.4809	72.3990	75.4397	78.6081	81.9098	85.3499	88.9346	92.6699	96.5620	100.6177	105.8625						
Neonatal Nurse Practnr.	2468	41.3160	43.0512	44.8595	46.7435	48.7067	50.7524	52.8840	55.1052	57,4196	60.0718	62.5948	65.2238					
Neo Pedi Transport Coord.	2726	31.6634	32.9931	34.3789	35.8227	37.3274	38.8950	40.5287	42.2309	44.0045	45.8527	47.7786	49.7853	51.8762	54.4989	i		
Fetal Therapy Clinical Coord.	2783	27.9707	29.1455	30.3696	31.6451	32.9743	34.3591	35.8021	37.3059			42.5208						i
Entero stomal Therapist Coord.	1933	36.1444	37.6624	39.2443	40.8925	42.6100	44.3996	46.2644	48.2075									
Entero stomal Therapist	1170	32.5761	33.9443	35.3699	36.8556	38.4034	40.0164	41.6971	43.4483	45.2732	47.3643							
Critical Acute Care Nurse Practnr.	2238	41.3160	43.0512	44.8595	46.7435	48.7067	50.7524	52.8840	55.1052	57.4196	60.0718	62.5948	65.2238					
Clinical Transplant Coord.	2229	34.1359	35.5696	37.0635	38.6202	40.2423	41.9324	43.6935	45.5287	47.4409	49.6326							
Clinical Transpl Nurse Practnr.	2230	41.3160	43.0512	44.8595	46.7435	48.7067	50.7524	52.8840	55.1052	57.4196	60.0718	62.5948	65.2238					
Clinical System Coord.	2661	31.6634	32.9931	34.3789	35.8227	37.3274	38.8950	40.5287	42.2309	44.0045	45.8527	47.7786	49.7853	51.8762	54.4989			
Job Title	Job Code	Step 1	Step 2	Step 3	Step 4	Step 5	Step 6	Step 7	Step 8	Step 9	Step 10	Step 11	Step 12	Step 13	Step 14	Step 15	Step 16	Step 17

New Step Schedule for SEIU RN - Co. 400 Effective October 1, 2017

		6	9	2	2	m	4	5	7	6	S	7	Ţ.	6		_	
RN First Assistant	1177	34.1359	35.5696	37.0635	38.6202	40.2423	41.9324	43.6935	45.5287	47.4409	49.4335	51.5097	53,6731	57.1119			
Retinopathyo f Prematurity Nurse	2825	29.2538	30.4824	31.7626	33.0967	34.4868	35.9352	37.4444	39.0170	40.6558	42.3634	44.1426	45.9966				
Rehab PPS Coord.	3012	26.2112	27.3120	28.4592	29.6546	30.9000	32.1978	33.5500	34.9592	36.4276	37.9575	39.5516	41.2129				
Pulmonary Nurse Specialist	1906	34.4023	35.8472	37.3528	38.9216	40.5563	42.2597	44.0346	45.8841	47.8112	49.8193	51.9117	54.0920				
PI Nurse /	2872	29.9558	31.2137	32.5247	33.8908	35.3143	36.7975	38.3429	39.9533	41.6314	43.3799	45.2018	47,1003	49.0786			
PG RN Maternal Fetal Medicine	2890	24.7602	25.8001	26.8837	28.0128	29.1893	30.4153	31.6927	33.0238	34,4108	35,8561	37.3621	38.9313				
Pedl Palliative Care Coord.	2771	30.8391	32.1343	33.4839	34.8903	36.3557	37.8826	39.4737	42.5311								
Pedi ICU Clinical Nurse Spec.	2973	36.1444	37,6624	39.2443	40.8925	42.6100	44.3996	46.2644	48.2075	50.2322	52.5530						
Patient Placement Coord.	1477	31.6634	32,9931		35.8227		38.8950	40.5287	42.2309	44.0045	45.8527	47.7786	49.7853	51.8762	54,4989		
Organ Plcmnt Prsrvtn Coord.	3109	26.0100	27.1024	28.2407	29.4268	30.6627	31.9506	33,2925	34,6908	36.1478	37.6661	39.2481	40.8965				
Organ Plcmnt Clin Coord RN	3108	27.6878	28.8507	30.0625	31.3250	32.6407	34.0116	35.4401	36.9286	38,4796	40.0958	41.7798	43.5345				
Nurse Practnr. (ARNP) Sprvsr	1163	43.9603	45.8066	47.7304	49.7351	51.8239	54.0005	56.2686	58.6318	61.0943	63.6603	66.3342	71.9727				
Nurse Practnr. (ARNP)	1167	41.3160	43.0512	44.8595	46.7435	48.7067	50.7524	52.8840	55.1052	57.4196	60.0718	62.5948	65.2238				
Nurse Navigator Rehab	2949	27.6668	28.8288	30.0395	31.3013	32.6158	33.9857	35.4132	36.9005	38.4503	40.0652	41.7480	43.5014	45.4978			
Job Title	Job Code	Step 1	Step 2	Step 3	Step 4	Step 5	Step 6	Step 7	Step 8	Step 9	Step 10	Step 11	Step 12	Step 13	Step 14		

New Step Schedule for SEIU RN - Co. 400 Effective October 1, 2017

		,	+		,		,		-,-									
Wound Care Coord.	3050	28.1235	29.3047	30,5355	31.8181	33.1544	34 5469	35 9978	37 5098	39.0851	40.7268	42.4373	44.2197					
Vascular Access Specialist	2525	26.5718	27.6878	28.8507	30.0624	31.3250	32.6407	34 0116	35.4401	36 9286	38.4796	40.0957	41.7797	43.5345	45.3679	47.2682	49 2535	52.4053
Unit Practice Council Coord	1292	33.6062	35.0177	36.4884	38.0209	39.6178	41.2818	43.0156	44.8223	46.7048	48.6663	50.7104	53.5656					
Trauma Program Manager	1176	44.5745	46,4466	48.3974	50.4299	52.5482	54.7551	57.0548	59.4511	61.9481	64.8106							
Trauma Prfrmnce Imprvmnt Nurse	2665	34.1359	35.5696	37.0635	38.6202	40.2423	41.9324	43.6935	45.5287	47,4409	49.6326				-			
Transplant Nurse Supervisor	2943	31.0595	32.3640	33.7233	35.1397	36.6155	38.1534	39.7558	41.4256	43.1654	44.9784	46.8675	48.8359	50.8870	53.0243			
Transplant Nurse Manager	2323	43.5492	45.3782	47.2841	49.2700	51.3394	53.4956	55.7425	60.1797	62.7072	65.3410							
Transplant Nurse Educator	2710	31.6634	32.9931	34.3789	35.8227	37.3274	38.8950	40.5287	42.2309	44.0045	45.8527	47.7786	49,7853	51.8762	54.4989			
Transplant Donor Coord.	2985	23.4897	24.4762	25.5042	26.5754	27.6915	28.8546	30.0665	31.3293	32.6450	34.0162	35.4449	36.9336	38.4848				
Stroke	2505	37.3478	39.1348	41.0146	42.9819	45.0316	47.1946	49.4503	51.8244	54.3067								
RN Lactation Specialist	1195	32.5761	33.9443	35.3699	36.8556	38.4034	40.0164	41.6971	43.4483	45.2732	47.3643							
Job Title	Job Code	Step 1	Step 2	Step 3	Step 4	Step 5	Step 6	Step 7	Step 8	Step 9	Step 10	Step 11	Step 12	Step 13	Step 14	Step 15	Step 16	Step 17

New Step Schedule for SEIU RN - Co. 400 Effective September 30, 2018

Job Title	Associate Nurse Manager	Case Manager RN 1	Case Case Clin Staff Manager RN Manager RN Nurse Float 1 2 Pool	Clin Staff Nurse Float Pool	Clinical Care Coord.	Clinical Documentat ion Coord.	Clinical Document. Educator	Clinical Nurse Specialist	Clinical Research Nurse Coord.	Clinical Resource Coord.	Clinical Resource Nurse	Clinical Service Coord.	Clinical Staff Clinical Staff Nurse Nurse CHS	Clinical Staff Nurse CHS
Job Code	1161	3081	2829	1178	1133	1797	2941	1134	2777	2482	1171	1136	1137	1138
Step 1	32.2967	30.7756	34.8186	27.1032	34.8186		36.4283	36.8673	30.1631	37.6046	32.2967	37.6046		29.7956
Step 2	33.6530	32.0683	36.2810	28.2416	36.2810	36.2810	37.9583	38.4156	31.4299	39.1839	33.6530	39.1839	28.2416	31.0470
Step 3	35.0665	33.4152	37.8048	29.4277	37.8048		39.5524	40.0292	32.7501	40.8298	35.0665	40.8298	29.4277	32.3510
Step 4	36.5392	34.8185	39.3926	30.6636	39.3926	39.3926	41.2137	41.7104	34.1254	42.5446	36.5392	42.5446	30.6636	33.7097
Step 5	38.0739	36.2809	41.0471	31.9515	41.0471	41.0471	42.9447	43.4622	35.5588	44.3314	38.0739	44.3314	31.9515	35.1255
Step 6	39.6729	37.8048	42.7710	33.2935		42.7710	44.7483	45.2876	37.0523	46.1934	39.6729	46.1934	33.2935	36.6009
Step 7	41.3393	39.3926	44.5674	34.6918	44.5674	44.5674	46.6278	47.1897	38.6084	48.1335	41.3393	48.1335	34.6918	38.1380
Step 8	43.0755	41.0470	46.4393		46.4393				41.5990	50.1551	43.0755	50.1551	36.1489	39.7398
Step 9	44.8846	42.7710	48.3897	37.6672	48.3897	48.3897	50.6267	51.2368		52.2615	44.8846	52.2615	37.6672	41.4089
Step 10	46.7698	44.5674	50.6253	39.2492	50.6253	50.6253	52.7531	53.6041		54.6762	46.7698	54.6762	39.2492	43.1481
Step 11	48.7342			40.8976			54.9688				48.7342		40.8977	44.9603
Step 12	50.7810			42.6153							50.7810		42.6153	46.8486
Step 13	52.9138			44.4052							52.9137		44.4052	48.8163
Step 14	55.5889			46.2702							55.5889		46.2702	50.8666
Step 15				48.2136									48.2136	53.0030
Step 16				50.2386									50.2386	57.3629
Step 17				53.4534									53.4534	

New Step Schedule for SEIU RN - Co. 400 Effective September 30, 2018

Job Title	Clinical System Coord.	Clinical Transpl Nurse Practnr.	Clinical Transplant Coord.	Critical Acute Care Nurse Practnr.	Entero stomal Therapist	Entero stomal Therapist Coord.	Fetal Therapy Clinical Coord. Research RN	Neo Pedi Transport Coord.	Neonatal Nurse Practnr.	Nurse Anesthetist	Nurse	Nurse	Nurse Manager, Anesthesia	Nurse Midwife
ob Code	2661	2230	2229	2238	1170	1933	2783	2726	2468		1139	1162	1604	1166
Step 1	32.2967	41.3160	34.8186	41.3160	33.2276	36.8673	28.5301	32.2967	41.3160	70.8705		43.5492	79.4836	41.3160
Step 2	33.6530	43.0512	36.2810	43.0512	34.6232	38,4156	ĺ		43.0512	73.8470	33.6530	45.3782	82.8219	43.0512
Step 3	35.0665	44.8595	37.8048		36.0773	40.0292	30.9770	35.0665	44.8595			47.2841	86.3005	44.8595
Step 4	36.5392	46.7435		1					46.7435			49.2700	89.9250	46.7435
Step 5	38.0739	48.7067	í	48.7067		ĺ	ì	i	48.7067	83.5480	38.0739	51.3394	83.5019	48.7067
Step 6	39.6729	50.7524	42.7710	1	40.8167	45.2876	i	i	50.7524	87.0569	39.6729	53.4956	97.6374	50.7524
Step 7	41.3393	52.8840			1	1	İ			90.7133	41.3393	55.7425	101.7382	52.8840
Sten 8	43.0755	55.1052			44.3173	49.1717	38.0520	43.0755					106.0112	55.1052
Step 9	44.8846	57.4196	1	_		1			57.4196	98.4932	44.8846	62.7072	110.4637	57.6430
Step 10	46.7698	60.0718		60.0718		53.6041		1	60.0718	102.6301	46.7698	65.3410	115.1031	60.0638
Step 11	48.7342	62.5948		62.5948	1		43.3712		62.5948	107.9798	48.7342			62,5865
Step 12	50.7810	65.2238		65.2238				50.7810	65.2238		50.7810			65.2151
Step 13	52.9137							52.9137			52.9137			
Step 14	55.5889							55.5889			55.5889			
Step 15														
Step 16														
Step 17														

New Step Schedule for SEIU RN - Co. 400 Effective September 30, 2018

		92	9	8	97	71	10	74	93	97	22	66	99	41			-
RN First Assistant	1177	34.8186	36.2810	37.8048	39.3926	41.047	42.7710	44.5674	46.4393	48.3897	50.4222	52,5399	54.7466	58.2542			
Retinopathy of Prematurity Nurse	2825	29.8389	31.0920	32.3979	33.7586	35.1765	36.6539	38.1933	39.7973	41,4689	43.2107	45.0255	46.9165				
Rehab PPS Coord.	3012	26.7354	27.8582	29.0284	30.2477	31.5180	32.8418	34.2210	35.6584	37.1562	38.7167	40.3426	42.0372				
PI Nurse / PPS Coord.	2872	30.5549	- !	33.1752	34.5686	36.0206	37,5335	39.1098	40.7524	42.4640	44.2475	46.1058	48.0423	50.0602			
PG RN Maternal Fetal Medicine	2890	25.2554	26.3161	27.4214	28.5731		31.0236	32.3266	33.6843	35.0990	36.5732	38.1093	39.7099				
Pedi Palliative Care Coord.	2771	31,4559	32.7770	34.1536	35.5881		38.6403	40.2632	43.3817								
Pedi ICU Pedi Clinical Palliative Nurse Spec. Care Coord	2973	36.8673	38.4156	40.0292	41.7104	!	45.2876	47.1897	49.1717	51.2368	53.6041						
Patient Placement Coord.	1477	32.2967	33.6530	35.0665	36.5392	38.0739	Ĭ	41.3393	43.0755	44.8846	46.7698	48.7342	50.7810	52.9137	55.5889		
Organ Plcmnt Prsrvtn Coord.	3109	26.5302	27.6444	28.8055	30.0153		32.5896	33.9584	35.3846	36.8708	38.4194	40.0331	41.7144				
Organ Plcmnt Clin Coord RN	3108	28.2416	29.4277	30.6638	31.9515	33.2935	34.6918	36.1489	37.6672	39.2492	40.8977	42.6154	44.4052				
Nurse Practnr. (ARNP) Sprvsr	1163	44.8395	46.7227	48.6850	50.7298	52.8604	55.0805	57.3940	59.8044	62.3162	64.9335	67.6609	73.4122				
Nurse Practnr. (ARNP)	1167	41.3160	43.0512	44.8595	46.7435	48.7067	50.7524	52.8840	55.1052	57.4196							
Nurse Navigator Rehab	2949	28.2201	29.4054	30.6403	31.9273	33.2681	34.6654	36.1215	37.6385	39.2193	40.8665	42.5830	44,3714	46.4078			
Job Title	Job Code	Step 1	Step 2	Step 3	Step 4	Sten 5	Step 6	Sten 7	Step 8	Sten 9	Step 10	Step 11	Step 12	Step 13	Step 14		
Nurse Navigator Outpatient	2621	28.7845	29.9935	31.2531	32.5658	33 9335	35.3587	36 8439	38 3913	40.0037	41.6838	43.4347	45.2588	47.3360			

New Step Schedule for SEIU RN - Co. 400 Effective September 30, 2018

		-			10	10	~	· ·	Ò	00	m	0	н			-7		\neg
Wound Care Coord.	3050	28.6860	29.8908	31.1462	32.4545	33.8175	35.2378	36.7178	38.2600	39.8668	41.5413	43.2860	45.1041					
Vascular Access Specialist	2525	27.1032	28.2416	29.4277	30.6636	31.9515	33.2935	34.6918	36.1489	37.6672	39.2492	40.8976	42.6153	44.4052	46.2702	48.2136	50.2386	53.4534
Unit Practice Council Coord	1292	34.2783	35.7181	37.2182	38.7813	40.4102	42.1074	43.8759	45.7187	47.6389	49.6396	51.7246	54.6369					
Trauma Program Manager	1176	45.4660	47.3755	49.3653	51.4385	53,5992	55.8502	58.1959	60.6401	63.1871	66.1068							
Trauma Prfrmnce Imprvmnt Nurse	2665	34.8186	36.2810	37.8048	39.3926	41.0471	42.7710	44.5674	46.4393	48.3897	50.6253							
Transplant Nurse Supervisor	2943	31.6807	33.0113	34.3978	35.8425	37.3478	38.9165	40.5509	42.2541	44.0288	45.8780	47.8048	49.8126	51.9048	54.0848			
Transplant Nurse Manager	2323	43.5492	45.3782	47.2841	49.2700	51.3394	53.4956	55.7425	60.1797	62.7072	65.3410							
Transplant Nurse Educator	2710	32.2967	33.6530	35.0665	36.5392	38.0739	39.6729	41.3393	43.0755	44.8846	46.7698	48.7342	50.7810	52.9137	55.5889			
Transplant Donor Coord.	2985	23.9595	24.9657	26.0143	27.1069	28.2453	29.4317	30.6678	31.9559	33.2979	34.6965	36.1538	37.6723	39.2545				
Job Title	Job Code	Step 1	Step 2	Step 3	Step 4	Step 5	Step 6	Step 7	Step 8	Step 9	Step 10	Step 11	Step 12	Step 13	Step 14	Step 15	Step 16	Step 17
RN Lactation Specialist	1195	33.2276	34.6232	36.0773	37.5927	39.1715	40.8167	42.5310	44.3173	46.1787	48.3116							



SEIU RN Per-Diem Rates

Job Code	Job Title	Union	Pay Grade	Pay Step	Per-Diem Rate
		400	10P	1	39,0000
3081	Case Manager RN 1	400	10P	1	39,0000
2829	Case Manager RN 2	400	10P	1	38.0000
2661	Clin Syst Coord Clinical Care Coordinator	400	10P	1	39.0000
1133		400	10P	1	38.0000
1138	Clinical Staff Nurse CHS	400	10P	1	37.0000
3065	Clinical Staff Nurse PRN-Spec1	400	10P	1	40.0000
3066	Clinical Staff Nurse PRN-Spec2	400	10P	1	40.0000
2230	Clinical Transplant Nurse Practitioner	400	10P	1	45.0000
2238	Critical Acute Care Nurse Practitioner	400	10P	1	29.0000
2783	Fetal Therapy Clinical Coordinator Resource Nurse	400	10P	1	38.0000
2726	Neo/Pedi Transport Coordinator	400	10P	1	45,0000
2468	Neonatal Nurse Practitioner	400	10P	1	37.0000
1924	Nurse 1	400	10P	1	40.0000
2172	Nurse 2	400	10P	1	135,0000
1158	Nurse Anesthetist		10P	1	38.0000
1139	Nurse Educator	400	10P	1	43.0000
1293	Nurse Educator Inpatient	400		1	45.0000
1166	Nurse Midwife	400	10P		45.0000
1167	Nurse Practitioner (ARNP)	400	10P	1	45,0000
1163	Nurse Practiotioner (ARNP) Supervisor	400	10P	1	30,0000
2621	Outpatient Nurse Navigator	400	10P	1	
2825	Retinopathy of Prematurity Nurse	400	10P	1	39.0000
1195	RN Lactation Specialist	400	10P	1	39.0000
2985	Transplant Donor Coordinator	400	10P	1	16.0000
2665	Trauma Performance Improvement Nurse	400	10P	1	39.0000
1292	Unit Practice Council Coordinator	400	10P	1	38.0000
2525	Vascular Access Specialist	400	10P	1	34.0000

Group Medical Plans

What AvMed medical plans are offered?

- Jackson First HMO
- · Jackson Select HMO
- Jackson Standard HMO
 Jackson Point of Service (POS)

NOTE: Members are required to select a primary care physician if selecting health insurance.

Jackson First HMO

Plan offers no referral access to the Jackson-only network. Employee and covered dependents must reside in Miami-Dade, Broward and Palm Beach Counties. The plan provides 100% benefits for services performed at Jackson Health System facilities and University of Miami (except emergency care) or by any AvMed physician with admitting privileges at Jackson Health System. Conclerge services are available under this plan.

- No deductibles
- · No copays, and
- No coinsurance

Jackson Select HMO

Plan offers no referral access to the Jackson Select HMO Network of providers. The plan provides 100% benefits for covered charges after applicable copays. Concierge services and SmartShopper benefits are available under this plan.

Jackson Standard HMO

Plan offers no referral access to an expanded network of providers. The plan provides 100% benefits for covered charges after the applicable copayments. SmartShopper benefits are available under this plan.

Jackson Point of Service (POS)

+ IN NETWOR

Plan offers no referral access to an expanded network of providers. The plan provides 100% benefits for covered charges after the applicable copayments. SmartShopper benefits are available under this plan.

OUT OF NETWORK

A fee for service program that provides you the freedom to use any physician or accredited hospital of your choice outside of the network. Payments are based on Maximum Allowable Payment (MAP) charges. Providers who do not participate in the network may balance bill you for the amount which exceeds MAP. Coverage is subject to deductibles and coinsurance.

Understanding Your Medical Options

Is my group medical coverage guaranteed? Yes. Enrollment in any of the group medical plans is guaranteed

How do I pay for these medical plans? Medical plans are paid through automatic biweekly payroll deductions. Premiums are deducted from your salary on a pre-tax* basis to pay for any medical insurance premiums before Feder taxes are calculated. This reduces your taxable income and increases your spendable income.

How much do the plans cost?

Premiums vary according to the plan you select. Jackson Health System will pay the cost of your personal coverage in the Jackson First HMO medical plan. Dependent premiums are your responsibility and will be deducted from your biweekly check. Eligible employees will be required to pay a portion of the employees premium for the Jackson Select HMO, Jackson

Standard HMO and Jackson Point of Service (POS) plans.

Medical Biweekly Rates

AvMed Employee, Spouse, Domestic Partner & Child(ren)

		EMPLOYEECO	NTRIBUTION	
	JACKSON FIRST HMO PLAN	JACKSON SELECT HMO PLAN	JACKSON STANDARD HMO PLAN	JACKSON POS PLAN
Employee	\$0.00	\$15.00	\$91.95	\$100.00
Employee + Child(ren)†	\$105.00	\$140.93	\$277.46	\$314.45
Employee + Spouse/DP	\$120.00	\$165.99	\$320.86	\$378.99
Family [†]	\$160.00	\$236.11	\$443.17	\$655.15

† Option also applies to Adult Child(ren)(AC) between 26 through 30 years of age and/or Child(ran) of a Domestic Partner (CDP)



Understanding Your Medical Options

JACKSON FIRST HMO

JACKSON SELECT HMO

• Freedom to choose from a variety of JHS HMO Plan offered to Jackson Health System with the exception of emergency room, urgent care visits, and/or prescriptions. scheduling • No pharmacy copayments for Savings of up to\$4,000 annually • No charge for employee coverage

healthcare professionals. • No copayments employees and covered dependents who reside or work in Miami-Dade, Broward and Palm Beach counties. Offers nationwide Access to a concierge appointment network for dependents residing outside the service area. Members who enroll in generic medications at Jackson pharmacy • the JHS Select Network plan must receive all medical care except for emergency and urgent care services through an AvMed contracted Jackson Health System Select Network Provider.

Concierge Services	Concierge services available	Concierge services & SmartShopper benefits are available
Deductibles	\$0	\$0
PCP Office Visits	\$0	\$15
Specialist Office Visits	\$0	\$30
Preventive Services	\$0	\$0
Pediatrician Office Visits	\$0	\$15
Routine Physical	\$0	\$0
Obstetrical/Gynecological	\$0	\$30
Maternity	\$0	\$30 copay for fist visit. No charge for subsequent visits.
Preventive Mammogram/Pap Smears	\$0	\$0
Hospitalization - In-Patient	Benefits Covered at 100%	Benefits Covered at 100%
Urgent Care	\$25 participating Urgent Care, \$5	50 non-participating Urgent Care
Emergency	\$50 copayment, waived if admitted	\$50 copayment, waived if admitted
Outpatient Surgery	\$0	\$0

JACKSON STANDARD HMO & JACKSON POS IN NETWORK

JACKSON POS **OUT OF NETWORK**

Access to an expanded network of A fee for service program that provides providers in the state of Florida. In addition, Jackson Health System employees and AvMed offers a nationwide network for covered dependents the freedom to use those residing outside of the service area. any physician or accredited hospital of their choice outside of the network. Payments are based on maximum allowable payment (MAP) charges. Providers who do not participate in the network may balance bill members for the amount which exceeds MAP. Coverage is subject to deductibles and coinsurance.

Concierge Services	SmartShopper benefits are available	SmartShopper benefits are available
Deductibles	\$0	\$200 Deductible Individual/\$500 Family
PCP Office Visits	\$15	Plan pays 70% coinsurance, after deductible is met
Specialist Office Visits	\$30	Plan pays 70% coinsurance, after deductible is met
Preventive Services	\$0	Plan pays 70% coinsurance, after deductible is met
Pediatrician Office Visits	\$15	Plan pays 70% coinsurance, after deductible is met
Routine Physical	\$0	Plan pays 70% coinsurance, after deductible is met
Obstetrical/Gynecological	\$30	Plan pays 70% coinsurance, after deductible is met
Maternity	\$30 copay for fist visit. No charge for subsequent visits.	Plan pays 70% coinsurance, after deductible is met
Preventive Mammogram/Pap Smears	\$0	Plan pays 70% coinsurance, after deductible is met
Hospitalization - In-Patient	Benefits payable at 100% after \$200 copayment	Plan pays 70% coinsurance, after deductible is met
Urgent Care	\$25 participating Urgent Care, \$	50 non-participating Urgent Care
Emergency	\$100 copayment, waived if admitted	\$100 copayment, waived if admitted
Outpatient Surgery	Benefits payable at 100% after \$100 copayment	Plan pays 70% coinsurance, after deductible is met
		Chart continued on next page.

JACKSON FIRST HMO

JACKSON SELECT HMO

Prescription Drugs

Includes prescription contraceptives at participating pharmacies nationwide. If member/physician selects Brand when Generic is available, member pays difference in cost plus Brand copayment. See plan literature for other participating pharmacies. No charge for generic medications under the Jackson First HMO for employees using the Jackson Pharmacy.

Participating Network Pharmacy	\$15 Generic/\$25 Brand/ \$40 Non-Preferred for 30-day supply	\$15 Generic/\$25 Brand/ \$40 Non-Preferred for 30-day supply
Mail Order	\$30 Generic/\$50 Brand/ \$80 Non-Preferred for 90-day supply	\$30 Generic/\$50 Brand/ \$80 Non-Preferred for 90-day supply
Specialty Rx	\$50 for 30-day supply through Specialty Pharmacy	\$50 for 30-day supply through Specialty Pharmacy
Substance Abuse Treatment		
Inpatient	\$0	\$0
Outpatient	\$0	15 per visit
Behavioral Health		
Inpatient	\$0	\$0
Outpatient	\$0	\$15 per visit
Durable Medical Equipment (DME)	\$50 per episode per illness	\$50 per episode per illness

Coverage Area

Jackson Health System; University of Miami Network includes over 33 hospitals and over 7,000 physicians. All AvMed participating providers with admitting privileges at one of the covered hospitals are also covered in the Select HMO. Dependents residing outside the network area may be covered through the PHCS network (Must complete "Away From Home" form for approval).

2018 MEDICAL PLAN CHARTS - www.aymed.org/jhs

JACKSON STANDARD HMO & JACKSON POS IN NETWORK

JACKSON POS OUT OF NETWORK

Prescription Drugs

Includes prescription contraceptives at participating pharmacies nationwide. If member/physician selects Brand when Generic is available, member pays difference in cost plus Brand copayment. See plan literature for other participating pharmacies...

Participating Network Pharmacy

Mail Order

Specialty Rx

Substance Abuse Treatment

Inpatient
Outpatient

Behavioral Health

Inpatient
Outpatient

Durable Medical Equipment (DME)

Coverage Area

\$15 Generic/\$40 Brand/ \$55 Non-Preferred for 30-day supply \$30 Generic/\$80 Brand/\$110 Non-Preferred for 90-day supply

\$100 for 30-day supply through Specialty Pharmacy

Benefits paid at 100% after \$200 copayment

15 per visit

Benefits paid at 100% after \$200 copayment

\$15 per visit

Standard HMO - \$50 per episode per illness. POS In-Network - DME and Orthotic covered at 100%. External prosthetic appliance - No charge after \$200 deductible per contract year.

Covers hospitals excluded on the Select Plan. Dependents residing outside the network area may be covered through the PHCS network (Must complete "Away From Home" form for approval).

Plan pays 70% coinsurance, after deductible is met

Plan pays 70% coinsurance, after deductible in met for DME and Orthotic. External prosthetic appliance not covered out of network.

N/A

CRNA AGREEMENT

ORIGINAL

AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into by and between the Public Health Trust/Jackson Memorial Hospital (hereafter "PHT") and the Service Employees International Union, Local 1991, (hereafter SERU - Local 1991) and on this 19TH day of July, 2086.

PURSUANT to the Side Letter Agreement that the PHT would meet with SERU, Local 1991 and Certified Registered Nurse Assessments (CRNA) to address issues of specific concern to CRNA's including but not limited to, recruitment, retention, salaries, figuible schedules, Broward Liver-Call, educational reimbursement, account based retirement plans and other related metters, and

WHEREAS, the parties mutually agree to the terms outlined below, which are in addition to those benefits already specified by the 2005-2008 collective bargaining agreement.

IT IS THEREFORE agreed that effective and retroactive to July 2, 2005, the first pay period following final ratification of the 2005-2008 collective bargaining agreement for the registered surges:

- 1. The PHT agrees to delete Step 2 of the current CRNA silery range and add a new Step 8. The remaining steps will be renumbered consecutively 1 through 8. CRNA's will be placed in the new salary range at their current rate of pay and will maintain their current anniversary date. If the CRNA's current rate of pay falls below the mindmum of the new Step 1 of the range, the CRNA will be placed at the new Step 1.
- 2. The PHT further agrees to add a Step 9 and a Step 10 to the new 8 step salary range. Advancement to each step of the salary range will be made upon completion of 12 months worked and provided the employee has received a met standards performance evaluation. Part time CRNAs will advance after 2000 hours worked as part time CRNAs.
- The PHT agrees to move each CRNA who is currently at Step 4 or Step 5 up one step without interruption on their anniversary date.
- 4. The PHT agrees to pay overtime pay (time and one-half the normal rate of pay) for hours worked beyond the CRNA's scheduled shift and when called back to work for On-Call JMH Liver Call.
- The PHT agrees to pay double the CRNA's hourly rate of pay for hours worked on the Broward Liver Call after October 1, 2006. The calculation of overtime shall commonce either from the

i of 4

- time the CRNA leaves his/her work assignment at PHT for Broward or, if traveling from a location other than the PHT, at the time they arrive at Broward. Mileage shall be paid at the current County mileage rate.
- 6. (a) The PHT agrees to provide flexible work schedules of 8-hours, 10-hours, 12-hours and 13 hours shifts and the current number of 14-hours shifts will be maintained. The 16-hour shift is shall be maintained as long as there is an incumbent in the position. Once the 16-hour shift is vacated by the incumbent, it will be eliminated.
 - (b) The option of moving to vacant schedules will be done by saniority.
 - (c) Temporary schedule switches shall be done by mutual agreement between the employees and the supervisor.
- The PFIT agrees that CRNA's who have a regular schedule of a 4-day work-week shall not be scheduled on- call the day before their scheduled day off.
- 8. The PHT agrees to maintain the current practice of equitable on-call rotation.
- 9. The PHT agrees to pay full-time benefits for 36-hours (3 x 12-hr shifts) per week schedule. In addition, employees in this category shall be paid their step increase on their anniversary every 12 months pursuant to Article XI, Section 3, A. Overtime will be paid in accordance with Article X, Hours of Work and Overtime, Section 2, Overtime of the collective bargaining agreement.
- 10. (a) The PHT agrees to grant Administrative Leave (AD) to the CRNA who has either been called in to work or who has been requested to work beyond his/her scheduled shift and is scheduled to return to work with less than eleven and a haif (11 1/2) hours rest break between the ending of the most recent shift and the start of the next regularly scheduled shift. The PHT shall grant AD time to CRNA's in this circumstance for their successive scheduled shift up to a maximum of 11.5 hours.
 - (b) The PHT will provide a maximum of eleven and a half (11 ½) hours rest break prior to returning to work. The CRNA will have the option of: (1) Working the balance of the scheduled shift; (2) Supplementing the AD Leave with Parsonal Leave (PL) for the remainder of the scheduled shift; or, (3) Taking the remainder of the scheduled shift as unpaid leave.

CRNA and Critical Care Recruitment Agreement

2 of 4

- (c) Exception: Scheduled overtime shifts are excluded from the Administrative Leave emittement period.
- 11. The PHT agrees to reimburse full-time CRNA's up to five hundred (\$500.00) dollars per calendar year for CME credits and related travel, lodging and professional dues. Appropriate receipts and invoices must support the sequest for reimbursement and must be submitted before the end of the calendar year. All reimbursements require supervisory approval.
- 12. The PHT agrees to give full-time CRNA's an additional two (2) days of Educational Leave per contract year, up to a maximum of seventy-two (72) hours depending on the hours of the shifts worked.
- 13. The PHT will establish a Loan Forgiveness Program of up to \$10,000 per calendar year, with a maximum of \$30,000 over a three-year period, to full-time CRNA's with less than 36-mentins of service since licensure as a CRNA. The parties agree that the CRNA must sign a commitment for 12 months employment service for each year the employee receives a Forgiveness Loan (maximum of 36 months employment service as a CRNA). Failure to complete the defined employment service will result in repayment of the loan upon the CRNA's employment service.
- 14. The PHT will establish a CRNA scholarship program for three (3) nurse emesthesia students per calendar year. A Selection Committee will be created to develop the Scholarship Program criteria. SEIU, Local 1991, may appoint one representative to the Selection Committee. The SEIU representative will have no veto power. Students will be required to sign a contract with a minimum of five (5) years employment service or will be required to repay the pro-rate amount of the scholarship upon earlier separation.
- 15. The PHT will establish a Committee to discuss issues of concern to the CRNA's exclusive of mandatory subjects of bargaining.
- 16. The PHT agrees that the CRNA's may do self-scheduling using parameters provided by management and providing the self-scheduling meets staffing needs while decreasing use of overtime, agency and Travelors expenses.

CRNA and Critical Care Recruitment Agreement

3 o€4

- 17. The PHT agrees to conduct periodic salary surveys, which will be shared with SEIU, Local 1991.
- 18. The PHT will create focus groups composed of internal and external CRNA's to discuss issues of concern to the CRNA's for recruitment/retention purposes, excluding mandatory subjects of bargaining.

The parties agree this constitutes the full and complete Agreement. This Agreement sets no precedent between the parties.

DATED THIS 25th day of July, 2006.

Littlic Liegini i concaneracii Melliotiin Moshini	Service Employees International Culon,
0 9 . / /	Local 1991
Jun 10al 9/22/06	Kettle J. Par 9/25/06
Trummeli Valdera Date	Kalpheen A. Cayr / Links
Senior Vice President/CHRO	Labor Consultant
Human Refources Capital Management	SEIU, Local 1991
Danny L. Curry Date Director Employee/Labor Relations & Workforce Compliance	Martin Platte 9: 16-06 Martin Baker, RN Date President SERU, Local 1991 Seruel Detroit, Ann 9/26/06 Daniel Accepted, MSN, CRNA/Date
	Deniel Acevend, Man, CRNA, Date
	A MOSERUB
	NOUVA DAVA CROST MHS

CRNA and Critical Care Recruitment Agreement

4 of 4

CRNA SIDE LETTER AGREEMENT (SUPLEMENT)

CRNA Side Letter Agreement (Supplement)



1611 N.W. 12th Avenue Miami, Florida 31336-1094

MEMORANDUM

To: Kathy Cibula

Assistant Director, Anesthesia Services

From: Danny L. Curry

Director

Employee/Labor Relations & Workforce Compliance

Date: March 6, 2007

Re: CRNA Side Letter Agreement

The following lists the response to your questions regarding the Implementation of the CRNA Side Letter Agreement.

1) Item # 11 - re; the \$500.00 CME credit reimbursement for related travel, lodging and professional dues per calendar year.

Labor Relations will work with MIS to create a program for yearly automatic payment in the first pay period in October, in a separate check.

Those CRNA's who have not received the full reimbursement for 2008, will be issued a separate check.

2) Item # 14 - re: who will be responsible for the receipt of the information.

The Education & Development department will be responsible for coordinating the receipt of the applications, and all correspondence for both programs:

- a) the three (3) CRNA scholarship, and
- b) the three (3) year Loan Forgiveness Program

The Department will designate a Job Title with the line authority to be the coordinator of the scholarship program. All correspondence will refer to this address. The designee will also be responsible for monitoring the scholarship holders, progress during the CRNA program and for communicating issues to the Selection Team and relevant personnel or department.

3) Item # 14 - re: If the scholarship holder defaults.

If the scholarship holder defaults, repayment of the scholarship loan will be in installments over the next 3-year period, starting 30 days after the separation. If the CRNA scholarship holder is currently on the payroll, the final pay-out checks will be garnished and the remaining debt will be repaid, in installments, over the next 3-years.

An Equal Opportunity Employer



1611 N.W. 12th Avenue Miami, Florida 31336-1094

4) Item # 14 - re: scholarship loan amount.

Although the defined total amount may not exceed \$75,000 for the tuition, the program does allow for flexibility for the yearly total loan amount. This will assist CRNAs who are enrolled in programs that front load the tultion cost in the first semesters.

5) Item # 14 - re: scholarship payment. --

The scholarship payment will be made directly to the school/university. However, exemptions will be considered on an Individual basis.

6) Item # 14 - re: Scholarship Student Status.

The CRNA scholarship holder will be placed on On-Call Pool status, then on an Educational Leave of Absence. Compliance Dept, requires a 1-hr mandatory class of On-Call Pool employees. Maybe this can be malled to them by Education & Development for completion and timely returned if still mandatory while on LOA??

Will discuss with Leah Jaffe regarding need to complete mandatory education and annual Performance Evaluations for On-Call Pool employees.

7) Item # 14 - re: 5-years commitment after receipt of CRNA Scholarship

The commitment is the same regardless of the amount of the tuition scholarship received. In case of early separation, the default payment will be pro-rated on the amount of the scholarship.

8) Item # 13 - re: Loan Forgiveness service commitment

A CRNA will be required to work 12-months full-time for every \$10,000 received as a Loan Forgiveness. Full-time is any status working 36-hrs or more per week (3 x 12-hrs shifts/wk; 3 x 13-hrs/wk, etc.).

Documents to include language say that the PHT reserves the right to interpret, revise, modify this policy/program at any time and if a situation should arise that is not addressed it will be addressed at that time?

An Equal Opportunity Employer

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENTS AND MEMORANDA OF UNDERSTANDING

CRNA Pediatric Cardiac Team

SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN

SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION, LOCAL 1991 (UNION)

PUBLIC HEALTH TRUST/JACKSON MEMORIAL HOSPITAL (EMPLOYER)

the Employer exercised its management rights and mandated that the Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetists (herein after CRNA) would be assigned to the Pediatric Cardiac Team (hereafter referred to as the Team) call schedule effective May 7. 2007, and

the Union submitted a written request to the Employer dated May 4, 2007, Whereas: requesting impact bargaining over the impact on the CRNA's, and

in order to amicably resolve the issues raised by SEIU the parties have met and bargained over the impact and mutually agree to the following terms and conditions:

- The Team will consist of six (6) CRNA's and may be adjusted by the Employer based on business need and the current call schedule.
- No more than two (2) CRNA's who volunteered or were assigned to the 2. Team, effective May 26, 2007, shall be eligible to leave the Team on May 26, 2008. Of the remaining four (4) original CRNA's a maximum of two (2) CRNA's may leave the team on or after November 26, 2008, provided that they have given at least three (3) months advance notice.
- 3. Assignment
 - a. To be eligible for assignment on the Team, a CRNA must have a minimum of one year of employment with the Employer and twenty-four (24) months of experience as a CRNA. The Employer agrees that they will train employees who are to be assigned to the team within six (6) months. Exceptions shall be reviewed by a panel composed of one physician, two (2) Team members, one (1) Supervisor and the Union
 - b. CRNA's who volunteer or are assigned to the Team shall serve a twentyone (21) month commitment inclusive of training.
- To be removed from the Team the following must apply:
 - a. CRNA Team members must have a minimum twenty-one (21) month service on the Team to elect to leave the team.
 - b. No more than two (2) Team members can leave the team within a one (1) year period (per calendar year)
 - c. Team members who elect to leave the team will notify the employer of their intentions six (6) months prior to being removed.
 - d. All requests (from either the current or future teams) to be removed from the Team shall be granted by seniority on the team first and if there is a contest, by bargaining unit seniority.

emoved from if there is a way of the way of

- At the time the employee is responsible for the Team call they will be removed from the Liver Call obligation.
- 6. Vacancies created by attrition or by completion of a CRNA's twenty-one (21) month obligation shall be filled by volunteers beginning with the most senior employee. If there are insufficient volunteers, the Employer shall assign the vacant positions to employees in the classification with the least seniority.
- Coverage for the Team will be twenty-four (24) hours per day. The Employer
 commits to make a good faith effort to expand the call obligation to other
 providers with the intention of limiting the weekend call for CRNA's.
- CRNA's assigned to the Team will be responsible for self scheduling.
- The Team will cover all operating room/bedside (PICU & NICU) "Complex" Pediatric Cardiac cases.
 - a. Team member will provide services during their regular scheduled work hours. An "On Call" Team member will provide services during nonscheduled work hours.
 - b. Routine Pediatric Catheterization Cardiac cases will be performed by non-cardiac team CRNA's between 7:00 am to 11:00 pm Monday through Friday (excluding holidays and weekends).
 - c. "Complex" Pediatric Cardiac cases will be performed by the Team twenty-four (24) hrs a day, seven (7) days per week. Management or the Pediatric Anesthesia Attending/Pediatric Cardiac Anesthesia Attending will determine which case is deemed "complex".
- AD time shall be granted in the same manner as it is administered for Liver Call.
- 11. Neonatal Resuscitation and PALS certification courses shall be paid by the Employer. The employee shall be paid straight time for their regular schedule if the course is taken on their regular assigned work day and time and one half if the course is taken on a day off and exceeds forty (40) paid hours in the work week.
- 12. Consistent with Article XVII, Section 2 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the parties, the Employer agrees to train employees who are assigned to the Team, including those employees who may be scheduled on the team within six (6) months. Training will consist of weekly conferences, a lecture series, Cardiac Catheterization meetings (rotated among team members) and a skills checklist, which is mutually completed by the Employer and the employee throughout training.
- 13. The CRNA's who are assigned to the Team shall be paid time and one half their current base hourly rate of pay for all hours they are assigned to provide Pediatric Cardiac Anesthesia care except during the first six (6) months of orientation. Employees who complete orientation in less than six (6) months will also be paid time and one half their current base hourly rate of pay for all hours they are assigned to provide Pediatric Cardiac Anesthesia care. In addition, pursuant to Article XI, Salaries, Section 6, On-Call Pay; CRNA's assigned to the Team shall receive double the on-call shift pay rate for week days and weekends respectively all hours assigned to call.

TKNA'S SM For week & SC NO WSSW XC 2 P

- 14. The Employer agrees that all benefits which apply to Liver Call detailed in the Agreement between the parties effective July 2, 2006, shall apply to employees working the Team. Effective the date of execution of this agreement, the employees obligated to work the Team call and the Liver Call are separate. The exception to the above is that double time for Broward Liver call shall not apply.
- 15. Nothing in this Agreement shall prejudice the Employer as they carry out their obligations to manage the business or the Union as they administer the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the parties.
- 16. At the request of either party, the parties agree to re-open this agreement no sooner than one (1) year from the date of signature. Any such discussions shall not exceed a period of ninety (90) days from the date of the first meeting.
- 17. This agreement is made without precedent or prejudice to any future similar situation which may arise. This agreement shall not be introduced as evidence in any grievance or legal proceeding entered into by the parties except as is necessary to enforce the terms and conditions of this agreement.

FOR THE EMPLOYER:	FOR THE UNION:
DH 1 5/15/08	Mostly Blu la 5-15-08
Dale	1 1ABS. SOULISSI Date
Harming 5-15-08	Dinel Mounts
Kothy Chile 5-15-08	Hallen Wahr
	Donnel Keinels, NSP, and 5.15.08

Make-up Weekend Regarding Vacation and Leave

SETTLEMENT BETWEEN THE PUBLIC HEALTH TRUST AND

LOCAL 1991, SEIU

CLASS GRIEVANCE - MAKE-UP WEEKENDS, 7/30/98

The above referenced grievance is settled as follows:

- WhiteHeinell be denied vacation because such time begins, ends or includes a weekend(s) on which she is scheduled to work.
- No RN shall be required to make up a weakend which occurred during an approved vacation, leave or linear, it is, however, understood that additional weekends may be scheduled under the following conditions: B.
 - When a pattern of implanmed leave abuse is demonstrated.
 - To ensure that weekend work is distributed equitably over the period of a
- C. Restore one (1) weekend to Della Sunega, Corrections Health Nurse/Correcflons Health Services.
- The Union hereby withdraws the above referenced grievance without prejudice D, to its position.

O. Jarle Mass Sr./Vige President Patient Care Services

Labor Relations

(n;sresisent)

Executive Director Local 1991, SEIU

President

Local 1961, SETU

3-12 Shift Breaks

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, a grievance and/or arbitration has arisen under the collective bargaining agreement by and between Service Employees International Union, Local 1991 and the Jackson Health System/Public Health Trust of Miami-Dade County, case titled SEIU Local 1991 and Jackson Memorial Hospital/PHT, All Affected RNs Working 3-12 ½ Shifts (FMCS #090731-59436-3); and,

WHEREAS, the parties desire to smicably settle this arbitration/grievance on the terms outlined below; and,

WHEREAS, the parties without any admission of liability, or violation of any law, rule or regulation, desire to fully and finally settle all differences and disputes relating to the aforementioned claim; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual promises contained herein, it is agreed as follows:

- 1. The grievance filed on June 11, 2009 by SBiU on behalf of the RNs who work 312 ½ hour shifts per week who have not been converted to full-time status (72 hours pay per
 week), retroactive to December 17, 2008, as required by Article X, Section 1 of the current CBA
 between the parties (PMCS #090731-59436-3) is hereby withdrawn.
 - 2. JHS agrees that it shall:
- a. comply with Article X, Section 1 of the CBA and convert the affected RNs to fill-time status retroactive from December 17, 2008.

March 10, 2010

- b. insure that all RNs who work 3-12 % hour shifts per week receive two (2) one-half-hour areal breaks per shift.
- retroactivity under this Agreement shall apply only to longevity and date of status change.
 - 3. The parties shall evenly split the cost of the arbitration, if any.
- This Agreement shall be resolved and enforced pursuant to the parties' arbitration mechanism in the pertinent Collective Bargaining Agreement.
- 5. The settlement entered into herein shall set no precedent between the parties and nothing in this agreement shall be deemed to change, alter, or amond the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned parties have caused this Settlement

Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized representatives as of the day and year first
above written.

Service Employees International

Union Local 1991

- The Klack

Jackson Health System

Public Realth Trust/ Mlami-Dade County

MIID & SMALL

ENP & CLIO

Merch 10, 2010

ARNP On-Call OT Rate for Surgical Hospital Center

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PUBLIC HEALTH TRUST OF DADE COUNTY AND

Service Employees International Union (SEIU) Local 1991

The parties hereby agree to the following pay rate for the Advanced Registered Nurse Practitioners (ARNP).

ARNP's in the Surgical Hospital Center, required to be On-Call, will be paid the higher rate of either the overtime rate of time and one-half the normal rate of pay, or the On-Call rate, as stated in the Collective Bargaining Agreement.

This pay will be retroactive to the beginning of the first pay period, in October, 2004:

Aria Clayton

Senior Labor Relations Sp

Employee/Labor Relations & Workforce Compliance Department

ecialist

Danny L. Curry Director Date

Employee/Labor Relations & Workforce Compliance Department

Senior Representative SEIU. Local 1991

President

SEIU, Local 1991

Grant Funded

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into this _______ day of Manch__, 2010 by and between the Jackson Health System/Public Health Trust of Miami-Dade County (the "JHS") and the Service Employees International Union Local 1991 ("SBIU").

WHEREAS, a griovance and/or arbitration has arisen under the collective bargaining agreement by and between Service Employees International Union, Local 1991 and the Jackson Health System/Public Health Trust of Mismi-Dade County, case titled SERU Local 1991 and Jackson Memorial Hospital/PHT; All Affected Grant Funded RNs (FMCS #090713-58695-3); and,

WHEREAS, the parties desire to amicably settle this arbitration/grievance on the terms outlined below; and,

WHEREAS, the parties without any admission of liability, or violation of any law, rule or regulation, desire to fully and finally settle all differences and disputes relating to the aforementioned claim; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual promises contained herein, it is agreed as follows:

- The grievances filed on June 11, 2009 by SEIU on behalf of affected grant funded RNs for improper lay offs (FMCS #090713-58695-3) is hereby withdrawn.
- JHS and SEIU agree that an RN's seniority and status as a permanent employee is unaffected by the source of funding, whether by grant or otherwise, for the position held by that RN.
 - JHS agrees that:

March 10, 2010

 a. Any RN, whether their position is grant funded or otherwise funded, be provided the same rights as all other RNs under the CBA including, but not limited to Appendix D and Appendix B;

b. None of the affected RNs shall be required to serve a new probationary period.

4. The parties shall evenly split the cost of the arbitration, if any,

5. This Agreement shall be resolved and enforced pursuant to the parties' arbitration mechanism in the pertinent Collective Bargaining Agreement.

6. The settlement entered into herein shall set no precedent between the parties and nothing in this agreement shall be deemed to change, siter, or amend the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned parties have caused this Settlement Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized representatives as of the day and year first above written.

Service Employees International Union Local 1991 By: William Klaulk	Jackson Health System/ Public Realth Trust/ Miami-Dade County
	BAV. D. R. SHALL ENP & COB
Ву:	

March 10, 2010

OR ON CALL PAY

AGREEMENT.

This Agreement is entered into this 26 th day of Mrch, 2012 by and between the Jackson Health System/Public Health Trust of Mismi-Dade County (the "JHS") and the Service Employees International Union Local 1991 ("SEIU");

WHEREAS, a grievance has arisen under the Collective Bargaining Agreement by and between Service Employees International Union, Local 1991 and the Jackson Health System/Public Health Trust of Miami-Dade County, case titled <u>SEIU Local 1991 All Aff'd RNs</u> in OR-Violating On Call Pay which has been advanced to arbitration and was assigned FMCS Case # 090805-596063 ("the Orievance and Arbitration"); and,

WHEREAS, the parties desire to amicably settle this Grievance and Arbitration on the terms outlined below; and,

WHEREAS, the parties without any admission of liability, or violation of any law, rule or regulation, desire to fully and finally settle all differences and disputes relating to the aforementioned claim; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual promises contained herein, it is agreed as follows:

- The Grievance and Arbitration are hereby withdrawn with prejudice. This
 Agreement conclusively and finally resolves all issues raised in the Grievance and Arbitration.
- 2. JHS agrees to grant Administrative Leave (AD) to an Operating Room Registered Nurse in the SEIU Local 1991 bargaining unit who is either called in to work or who is requested to work beyond his/her scheduled shift and is scheduled to return to work with less than eleven and half (11 ½) hours rest break between the ending of the most recent shift or working period and the start of the next regularly scheduled shift. The PHT shall grant AD time to an Operating Room Registered Nurse in this circumstance for their next immediately succeeding scheduled

W.

shift up to a maximum of 11.5 hours. Exceptions: (A) Scheduled overtime shifts are excluded from the AD Leave entitlement period. (B) If an Operating Room Registered Nurse is called back to commence work two (2) hours or less prior to the beginning of their next regularly scheduled shift, he/she is excluded from the AD Leave entitlement provided by this Agreement. The effective date for implementation of this AD leave entitlement is April 15, 2012.

- 3. JHS will credit Personal Leave (P.L) time on an hour for hour basis to the leave bank of any currently employed Operating Room Registered Nurse in the SEIU bargaining unit that submits proper documentation that demonstrates that such employee used P.L. instead of AD leave time from the period of January 1, 2011 through April 14, 2012.
- The parties shall evenly split the cost of the arbitration hearing set for March 27,
 2012.
- 5. This Agreement shall be resolved and enforced pursuant to the parties' arbitration mechanism in the pertinent Collective Bargaining Agreement.
- 6. The settlement entered into herein shall set no precedent between the parties and nothing in this agreement shall be deemed to change, after, or amend the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned parties have caused this Settlement
Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized representatives as of the day and year first
above written.

Service Employees International

Union Local 1991

Du Marta Bala 6 3-26-12

By: Corel /h

Jackson Health System/

Public Health Trust/ Miami-Dade County

By: Kolimung RN 3-26-2012

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

This agreement is entered into and by and between the Public Health Trust/Jackson Health System (hereinafter "PHT") and the Service Employees International Union, Local 1991 (hereinafter SEIU, Local 1991) and on this 5th day of October 2017.

IT IS THEREFORE agreed that:

- Effective Immediately, Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetists (hereafter "CRNA") who are
 assigned to Jackson South Medical Center and who are on-call will be paid time and a half of
 their normal rate of pay for all hours worked when they are called in.
- CRNAs who were on-call and worked on-call hours at Jackson 5outh Medical Center
 between June 1, 2017, and the date of execution of this MOU will be paid an extra half-time
 their normal rate of pay for all hours worked on-call during that period. Retroactive
 payment will be made on the first full pay period after execution of this MOU.

DLIT

SEIU, Local 1991

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

Between The Public Health Trust of Dade County Service Employees International Union Local 1991

This Memorandum of Understanding is entered into this 17th day of October, 2017 between the Service Employees International Union, Local 1991 ("SEIU") and the Public Health Trust of Miami-Dade County, Florida (the "JHS/PHT") collectively referred to as the "Parties",

WHEREAS, the parties agree to pay any Per Diem registered nurse who is members of the bargaining unit who worked between October 1, 2016 to the present, back pay for all hours worked that were not compensated up to the following per diem rate:

> \$37.00 for non-critical areas Nor-se \$40.00 for critical areas. Nursea

This agreement shall be implemented the second full pay period following execution of this document.

IT IS HEREBY acknowledged and agreed to between the Parties on this 17th day of October, 2017.

Roberte Campos-Marquetti, J.D.

Associate Director

Employee/Labor Relations & Workforce Compliance Department

President

SEIU, Local 1991

WHL

This Agreement between Service Employees International Union (SEIU) – Local 1991, Registered Nurses and the Public Health Trust is made in the State of Florida and shall be governed according to the laws of the State of Florida. Proper venue for this agreement shall be Mlami-Dade County, Florida.

In witness whereof, the parties have caused this Agreemen	t to be executed on this day of2017.
LOCAL 1991, SERVICE EMPLOYEES	JACKSON HEALTH SYSTEM
INTERNATIONAL UNION /	MANAGEMENT LEADERSHIP
11-A 21/10	WANAGEMENT LEADERSHIP
/ Willia / Telan For	4
Martha Baker, RN	Carlos A. Migoya
President/Chief Negotiator	President/CEO
A) The	F) (O)
- Jewis	12, Ferguer
Barbara Vicki" Gonzalez RN, NM	Don S. Steigman √
Jackson Memorial Hospital – Wound Care	Executive Vice President/COO
A) II	Mach Kuight
Adam Schowalter	Mark Knight
Assistant-Director	Executive Vice President/CFO
(D. Dunger	July A Strus
(Komvets viz RN	
Samuel Ruiz, ŔN	Julie A. Blaub Executive Vice President/CHRO
Holtz Children's Hospital, Pedi Transport	Executive vice President/CHRO
12ada Chella	Michelle Klyman
Barbara Scollon RN	Michelle M. Kligman,
Jackson Memorial Hospital - MICU	Vice President of HR/CXO
States Rila Bushing RN	Logotto wood floweth
Jarnes "Keith" Buehner RN	Roberto Campos-Marguletti.
Education & Development	Roberto Campos-Marquetti, Director of Employee/Labor Relations
	$\mathcal{L}(\mathcal{L})$
CIMPO DIMMUN OPRIODE	March
Angela Freshley-Fairchild RN	Tala Teymour
Jackson Memorial Høspital – Case Management	Sr. Director of Total Rewards/Wellness
**	19e/1/
Alibertation Day Asset	Eugene Shy, Esq.
Nikki Luna RN ANM Jackson Memorial Hospital – WW11	Assistant County Attorney
Sacksoft Weithorial Hospital - VVVVII	
Least la	
Shelly Pagan-Jones, RN	Robert L. Norton, Esq.
Holtz Children's Hospital - NB ICU	Chief Negotiator/
F-17' 1(')	Allen, Norton Blue
Ores.	N/DX-V
Carol Ann Robley, ARNP	Luke Savage, Esg.
Jackson South Medical Center - Emergency Room	Chief Negotiator
Either Su sol	Allen, Norton & Blue
Esther Segura, RN	
Jackson South Medical Center - Operating Room	
Angle Line Von ()	
maumoln	
Laletrice "Lisa" Ward RN	
Jackson North Medical Center - Telemetry	

Mark H. Richard, Esq. General Counsel